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No dealer, broker, salesman, or other person has been authorized by the Corporation or the Undenvriter to give any 
infomiation or to make any reprcscntations, othcr than those contained in this Official Statement, and, if given or made, 
such other infonnation or representations must not be reliedupon as having bcen authorized by either the Corporation or 
the Undenvritcr. This Official Statemcnt docs not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy, nor is there 
authorized to be any salc of tlic 2005 Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawhl for such person to 
make such offer, solicitation, or salc. This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract with purchasers or 
registered owners of the 2005 Bonds. 

The infonnation set forth in this Official Statcmcnt has been provided by the Corporation and other official sources, all 
ofwhich are belicvcd to be reliable. The information and cspressions of opinion in this Official Statcnicnt are subject to 
change without notice, and neither the delivery of this Official Statemcnt nor any sale made hereunder will, under any 
circumstances, create any implication that there has bccn no change in the affairs of the Corporation or that thc other 
infonilation or opinions are correct as of any time subsequent to the date of this Official Statement. Such infonnation and 
expressions ofopiliion are made for the purpose ofproviding information to prospective investors and are not to be used 
for any othcr purpose or relied on by any other party. 

The Undenvriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement. The Undenvriter has 
reviewed the infonnation in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, its responsibility to investors under 
the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the Undenvriter docs not 
guamntcc the accuracy or completeness of such information. 

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING OF THE2005 BONDS, THE UNDERWRITER MAY OVER ALLOT OR 
EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE 2005 BONDS 
OFFERED HEREBY AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN 
MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IFCOMMENCED, MAY BEDISCONTMUED AND, IFDISCONTMUED, THEN 
RECOMMENCED AT ANY TIME. 

UPON ISSUANCE, THE 2005 BONDS WILLNOT BE REGISTERED UNDERTHE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS 
AMENDED, AND WILL NOT BE LISTED ON ANY STOCK OR OTHER SECURITIES EXCHANGE. NEITHER THE 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION NOR ANY OTHER FEDERAL, STATE, OR OTHER 
GOVERNMENTAL ENTITY OR AGENCY HAS PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR DETERMINED THE 
ADEQUACY OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT OR APPROVED THE 2005 BONDS FOR SALE. ANY 
REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE. THE INDENTURE WILL NOT BE 
QUALIFIED UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE ACT OF 1939, AS AMENDED. 

This Official Statement is submitted by the Corporation in connection with the sale of the 2005 Bonds referred to hercin 
and may not be reproduced or used, in whole or in part, for any othcr purpose. 
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SUMMARY STATEMENT 

(This Summary Statement is subject in all respects to the more 
complete information contained elsewhere in this Official Statement.) 

No person is authorized to detach this Summary Statement from this Official Statement or to othenvise use it without 
this entire Official Statement. 

Delinitions 

Capitalized tenns not othenvise defined in this Summary Statement shall have the meanings given to such tenns 
elsewhere in this Official Statement, including the Appendices attached hereto. 

The Corporation 

The Alaska Student Loan Corporation (the "Corporation") is a public corporation and governmental 
instrumentality within the Department ofEducation and Early Developn~ent ofthe StateofAlaska (the "Statc"), but having 
a legal existence independent of and separate from the Statc. The Corporation was created by State law in 1987. 

The 2005 Bonds 

The Corporation's $58,250,000 aggregate principal amount of Education Loan Revenue Bonds, Senior 2005 
Series A (the "2005 Bonds") are being issued as fixed rate bonds and are to mature in the amounts and on the dates and 
bear interest at the rates all as set forth on the cover page of this Official Statement. 

Purpose of the 2005 Bonds 

The proceeds of the 2005 Bonds will be used (i) to finance Education Loans made to eligible borrowers to fund 
aportion of their postsccondary education costs, whether in or out ofthe State, (ii) to makea Capital Reserve Fund deposit, 
and (iii) to pay the 2005 Bonds issuance costs. 

Interest Payments 

The 2005 Bonds will bear intcrcst from their date of delivery, until payment of principal has been made or 
provided for, at the rates set forth on the cover of this Official Statement, payable on June 1 and December I, commencing 
Deceniber I, 2005, until maturity or earlier redemption. 

Security for the 2005 Bonds 

The 2005 Bonds are secured by and are payable solely from the Trust Estate created by the Indcnturc. The Trust 
Estate includes Education Loans acquircd with moneys held under the Indenture, Bond proceeds (until used as provided 
in the Indenture) and Pledged Receipts on deposit in certain of the funds and accounts established under the Indcnturc. 
Sce "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS." 

Education Loans 

The tcnu Education Loans includes both Altcmative Loans and FFELP Loans. Alternative Loans include 
Supplemental Education Loans, Family Education Loans and Teacher Education Loans. The Altcmative Loans are 
described hcrein under "DESCRIPTION OF ALTERNATIVE LOANS." FFELP Loans include several different 
educational loans governed by the Higher Education Act, including Federal Family Education Loans, Subsidized Stafford 
Loans, Unsubsidized Stafford Loans, PLUS Loans and FFELP Consolidation Loans (collectively, the "FFELP Loans"). 
The FFELP Loansare describctl hereinutiderthc caption "DESCRIPTIONOFFEDERALFAMILY EDUCATION LOAN 
PROGRAM." 



The Alaska Commission on Postsecondary Education (the "Commission") is an "eligible lender" under Title IV 
of the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended. 

The Corporation expects to use proceeds of the 2005 Bonds to finance only Alternative Loans 

Priorities by Class 

The 2005 Bonds will be issued as Class I Bonds and will be payable on an equal priority with all other Bonds 
of the same Class outstanding. The Corporation reserves the right to issue additional Classes of Bonds in the future as well 
as additional Class I Bonds. 

The Indenture provides that Bonds of each series must be designated a priority or priorities by Class, with 
Class I constituting the highest priority and successively lower priorities represented by increasing roman numerals. See 
"INTRODUCTION -- Class and Bond Characteristics." Priority of payment on the Bonds at any particular time and 
exercise of various rights and remedies is determined on the basis of Class priority of the Bonds. Exercise of remedies by 
or on behalf of a higher priority Class upon a default, including particularly acceleration of a higher priority Class of 
Bonds, or exercise of remedies by a Credit Enhancement Agency following a default by the Corporation under tlie related 
agreement, or exercise of remedies by tlie provider of an Interest Rate Exchange Agreement following a default by the 
Corporation under such agreement could adversely affect the ability of the Corporation to pay debt service when due on 
lower priority Classes of Bonds. See the caption "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS." A payment default witli respect to 
a Class of Bonds other than the Ilighest priority Class then outstanding, is not an Event of Default under the Indenture. 

Capital Rescrve Fund 

Upon the issuance of tlie 2005 Bonds, proceeds in an amount sufficient, when added to amounts previously on 
deposit in the Capital Reserve Fund, will be deposited with the Trustee to satisfy the Capital Reserve Requirement under 
the Indenture. Tlle Indenture provides that all, or any portion, of the Capital Reserve Requirement may be satisfied by the 
deposit with the Trustee of a s k t y  bond. The capital Reserve Fund is-a pooled reserve;and the casli~or surety bonds are 
available to be drawn upon witli respect to any shortfall by Class in descending order of priority. 

Moral Obligation 

The statute creating the Corporation rcquires that the Chairperson of the Board of Directors of tlie Corporation 
certify in writing to the Governor and the State Legislature, by January 15 of each year, if any amount is required to restore 
the Capital Reserve Fund to the Capital Reserve Fund Requirement. The State Legislaturc may, but is not obligated to, 
appropriate to the Corporation the amount certified by the Chairperson; however, this legislative option does not create 
a debt or liability of the State. The Corporation is required to deposit the amounts so appropriated into the Capital Reserve 
Fund. 

Guarantee and Reinsurance 

FFELP Loans are insured by theUnited States Secretary ofEducation (the "Secretary") or covered by aguarantee 
by certain guarantors and reinsured by the Secretary for claims payments made on FFELP Loans, subject to certain limits 
under tlie Higher Education Act as described herein. 

The Corporation docs not expect that proceeds of the 2005 Bonds will be used to finance FFELP Loans. 

Additional Bonds 

Tlle Corporation may issue additional series of Bonds under the Indenture from time to time, payable on a lien 
basis senior to, on a parity with, or subordinate to, any Class or Classes of the Outstanding Bonds, provided that such 
issuance does not, among other things, adversely affect the rating of any Outstanding Bonds. 



Rcdcmption 

The 2005 Bonds maturing prior to June 1,2016 are not subject to redemption prior to their scheduled maturities. 
Thc 2005 Bonds maturing on and after June 1,201 6 are subject to redemption at the option of the Corporation on or after 
June 1, 2015 in whole or in part on any date, in increments of S5,OOO, with maturities to be selected by the Corporation, 
at a price of 100% of the principal amount thereof to be redeemed plus accrued interest to the date of redemption. 

Change in Rating Agencies 

The Corporation has outstanding the following Bonds issued under the Master Indenture: Education Loan 
RevcnueBonds, Senior Scrics 2002A, 2003A-1,2003A-2,2004A-1,2004A-2, and2004A-3 andEducation Loan Revenue 
Bonds Subordinate Series 2002B (collectively, the Prior Bonds"). The Prior Bonds are rated by Standard & Poor's, a 
Division of McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. ("Standard & Poor's") and Fitch Ratings ("Fitch"). The Prior Bonds, as well 
as the 2005 Bonds. will receive ratings from Fitchand Standard &Poor's. See "RATINGS." The Cornoration has chanaed - - 
rating agencies in the past and may, in the future, change rating agencies. No assurance can be given that the Corporation 
will continue to request ratings of the Bonds from either Fitch or Standard & Poor's. The Indenture requires that the Bonds 
be rated by at leas; one nationally recognized rating agency and that one of such rating agencies be either Standard & 
Poor's or Moody's Investors Service ("Moody's"). 

Actions Taken Without Bondholder Approval 

The Indenture provides that the Corporation and the Trustee may undertake various actions upon rcceipt by the 
Tmstee of confinnation from the Rating Agencies that such actions will not adversely affect the outstanding ratings 
assigned by the Rating Agencies to the Bonds. Such actions include (but are not limited to) the execution and delivery 
o f  additional Bonds. the inclusion in the Trust Estate of additional Education Loans which are other than as described .. .~~~~~~~~~~~ - ~ ~ ~ ~ - ,  ~~~~ ~~~~~~ 

herein, the release of funds held under the Indenture and the extension of certain dates for the acquisition or origination 
of Education Loans. 

Cl~angcs in Federal Law 

The programs effected by the Higher Education Act have been thc subject of numerous statutoly and regulatoly 
changes over the last several years which have resulted in material modifications to such programs. No assurance can be 
given that relevant laws, including the Highcr Education Act, will not be further changed in the future in a manner which 
might adversely affect the availability and flow of funds of the Corporation. See "CERTAIN INVESTMENT 
CONSIDERATIONS - Changes to Federal Family Education Loan Program." 

Tax Status 

The2005 Bonds will be accompanied by an opinion of Wohlforth, Johnson, Brecht, Cartledge & Brooking, P.C., 
Bond Counsel to the Corporation, to the effect that, under existing statutes, regulations, rulings, and court decisions, 
interest on the 2005 Bonds is excluded for federal income tax purposes from gross income ofregistered owners of the 2005 
Bonds. However, interest on the 2005 Bonds is a specific preference item for purposes of the federal individual and 
corporate alternative minimum taxes. Interest on the-2005 Bonds is exempt froni-taxation by the State of Alaska except 
for inheritance and estate taxes and taxes on transfers by or in contemplation of death. See "TAX EXEMPTION" herein. 
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

Relating to 

S58,250,000 ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 
Education Loan Revenue Bonds, Senior 2005 Scries A 

INTRODUCTION 

This Oficial Statement is being distributed by the Alaska Student LoanCorporation (the "Corporation") to furnish 
infomiation regarding S58,250,000 aggregate principal amount of Education Loan Revenue Bonds, Senior 2005 Series 
A (the "2005 Bonds"). The 2005 Bonds will be issucd as fixed rate bonds. 

The 2005 Bonds will be issued and secured under the Indenture, datcd as of June I, 2002, as heretofore and 
hereafier amended and supplemented from time to time (the "Master indenture") by and behveen the Corporation and US.  
BankNational Association, Seattle Washington, as successor trustee (the "Trustee"), and aFourth Supplemental Indenture, 
dated as of July I, 2005, by and behveen the Corporation and the Trustee (the "Fourth Supplemental Indenture" and, 
together with the Master Indenture, the "Indenture"). The Tn~stee is also the initial Paying Agent and Registrar for the 
2005 Bonds. The 2005 Bonds, togetlier with all bonds issued under the Indenture, are referred to herein as the "Bonds". 
The 2005 Bonds arc the fourth series of Bonds issued under the Mastcr Indenhlre. 

The Corporation has outstanding the following Bonds issued under the Master Indenture: 

Class of 
Bonds 

Class I 

Class I 

Class I 

Class I 

Class I 

Class I 

Class 111 

Initial Principal 
Amount 

Currently Outstanding 
Princi~al Amount 

S45,500,000 

$47,600,000 

$22,015,000 

$16,500,000 

S30,500,000 

S21,100,000 

S 15,000,000 

Title - 
Senior Scries 2004A-I 

Senior Series 2004A-2 

Scnior Series 2004A-3 

Senior Series 2003 A-1 

Senior Series 2003A-2 

Senior Series 2002A 

Subordinate Series 2002B 

Date of 
Issue 

May 19,2003 

May 19,2004 

May 19,2004 

Junc 5, 2003 

June 5,2003 

June 4,2002 

June 4,2002 

(collcctivcly, the "Prior Bonds"). 

All capitalized ternis used in this Official Statement and not othenvise defined lierein shall have the meanings 
assigned to such ternis in the Indenture. Certain defined terms are contained in APPENDIX I1 -- "THE MASTER 
INDENTURE." The summaries ofandextracts from the hidentureand other documents included in thisOficial Statement 
do not purport to be comprehensive or definitive and are qualified in their entirety by refcrence to each such document. 

In 1987, the Corporation was created under laws of the State of Alaska (the "State"). Thc statute creating the 
Corporation is codified at Alaska Statutes 14.42. I00 through 14.42.990, as amended (the "Act"). The Act authorizes the 
Corporation, among otlicr things, to acquirc, purchase and make co~iiniit~nents to purchase loans made to students or 
ccrtain family nicnibers of smdents and to loan money to students or certain family ~iienibcrs of sh~dents for the purpose 
of assisting stodents in obtaining a postsecondary education, and to issue revcnuc bonds and notes to obtain funds to 
purchase or niake such loans. 



In order to finance its acquisition ofEducation Loans, tlieCorporation isauthorized to borrow lnoney and to issue 
bonds payable from sources authorized by the Act, including the revcnues derived from such loans. All Education Loans 
acquired witli proceeds of tlie Bonds will secure the Bonds. The Corporation, as owner ofsuch loans, is entitled to receive 
benefits with respect to any loss resulting from default, death, disability or bankruptcy of a student borrower. Such 
benefits, loan payments and other amounts constitute revenues pledged under the Indenture and are discussed herein under 
the heading "THE ALASKADVANTAGEO LOAN PROGRAM." Loans for the financing of postsecondary education 
that are eligible for purchase by the Corporation include both Alternative Loans and FFELP Loans, and are hereinafter 
referred to as "Education Loans." Tlie Corporation's program for the financing of loans for postsecondary education, 
including tlie acquisition of Education Loans, is hcrcin refcrred to as the "Loan Program." 

Tlie Alaska Conlmission on Postsecondary Education (the "Commission") is an "eligible lender" under Title IV 
of the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended (the "Higher Education Act"). Pursuant to a Custodian 
DepositoryISc~vicing Agrcenlent, the Commission has agreed to apply all benefits received under the Higher Education 
Act, with respect to tlie FFELP Loans financed under the lndenture, for the benefit of the Corporation and the Trustee. 

Class and Bond Cliaraeteristies 

The Master Indenture provides that Bonds issued thereunder, including the 2005 Bonds, be designated a priority 
Class, with Class I being tlie highest priority and the lower priorities designated by increasing roman nunlerals. The 2005 
Bonds are designated Class I Bonds. The Corporation reserves the right to issue additional Bonds under the Master 
Indenture witli Class designations the same as or different from the designations givcn to the 2005 Bonds as well as 
additional Class I Bonds. The 2005 Bonds are tlie fourth series of Bonds issued under the Master Indenture. 

At any time a current principal or interest paylnent is required to be made, it is to be madc first with respect to 
Bonds of the highest priority Class, and then in descending order of priority. In addition, tlie ability to control or pursue 
remedies is given "By Class in Descending Priority" as described in APPENDIX I1 to this Official Statement. 

EXERCISE OF REMEDIES BY A HIGHER PRIORITY CLASS UPON A DEFAULT, INCLUDING 
PARTICULARLY ACCELERATION O F  A HIGHER PRIORITY CLASS O F  BONDS, OR EXERCISE O F  
REMEDIES BY A CREDIT ENHANCEMENT AGENCY FOLLOWING A DEFAULT UNDER A RELATED 
AGREEMENT (SEE "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS - CERTAIN PAYMENT PRIORITIES") COULD 
ADVERSELY AFFECT THE ABILITY O F  LOWER PRIORITY CLASSES O F  BONDS T O  RECEIVE 
PAYMENT O F  DEBT SERVICE WHEN DUE. A PAYMENT DEFAULT WITH RESPECT T O  A CLASS O F  
BONDS OTHER THAN THE HIGHEST PRIORITY CLASS THEN OUTSTANDING IS NOT AN EVENT OF 
DEFAULT UNDER THE INDENTURE. 

General 

The 2005 Bonds will be dated as of their date of delivery and, subject to the redemption provisions set forth 
below, will mature on the respective dates set forth on the cover page of this Off~cial Statement. The 2005 Bonds will be 
issued in authorized denominations of S5,OOO or any integral multiple thereofwithin a maturity. See "THE 2005 BONDS" 
herein. The 2005 Bonds will be issued in fully registered form, without coupons, and when issued will be registered in 
tlie nanle of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust Company ("DTC), New York, New York. DTC will act 
as Securities Depository for tlie 2005 Bonds. Individual purchases of the 2005 Bonds will be made in Book-Entry Fonn 
only in the principal amount of authorized denominations. Purchasers of the 2005 Bonds will not receive certificates 
representing their interests in the 2005 Bonds purchased. See "APPENDIX V - THE DEPOSITORY TRUST 
COMPANY." 

The Bonds are special, limited obligations of the Corporation, secured by and payable solely from payments, 
proceeds, charges and other income derived by or for tlie account of the Corporation constituting Pledged Receipts as 
described in APPENDIX I1 -"THE MASTER INDENTURE." Such inconle includes, without limitation, payments of 
interest on Education Loans and other investments (including federal interest subsidy payments), principal payments on 
Education Loans (wliether rcgularly scheduled, prcpnymcnts or proceeds of insurance payments for defaulted Education 
Loans) and Special Allowance Payments ("SAP") from the Sccretary, if any. See "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS." 



THE 2005 BONDS ARE SPECIAL, LIMITED OBLIGATIONS OF THE CORPORATION AND ARE 
PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE REVENUES, ASSETS AND FUNDS PLEDGED THEREFOR UNDER THE 
INDENTURE. IN ADDITION, THE 2005 BONDS DO NOT CONSTITUTE AN INDEBTEDNESS OR OTHER 
LIABILITY OFTHE STATE OF ALASKA OR OF ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONTHEREOF, EXCEPT THE 
CORPORATION, OR A PLEDGE O F  THE FAITH AND CREDIT O F  THE CORPORATION, THE STATE O F  
ALASKA O R  ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF. ISSUANCE O F  THE 2005 BONDS DOES NOT 
DIRECTLY, INDIRECTLY, OR CONTINGENTLY OBLIGATE THE STATE OR A POLITICAL 
SUBDIVISION O F  THE STATE T O  APPLY MONEY FROM, OR LEVY OR PLEDGE, ANY FORM O F  
TAXATION T O  THE PAYMENT O F  THE 2005 BONDS. THE CORPORATION HAS NO TAXING POWER. 

The dcscriptiolis of thc 2005 Bonds and of the documents authorizing and sccuring the 2005 Bonds contained 
herein do not purport to be definitive or comprehensive. All references herein to such documents are qualified in their 
cntircty by rcfcrcncc lo sucll docu~ucnls. Copics of such d o c ~ ~ ~ ~ i e n t s ,  i n  rc;~sonablc quantilv, 1113). be obuincd upon wrutcn 
requ:st dur111g tlic offering pcriod ofllw ?DU5 UonJs from RUC Dain i<auschcr IK, 2308 E Ca~uclback Road, Suitc 700. 
Phocnlh. ,\rlzun:l 85016 and unon wrltlcn rcuucsl thcrc:~flcr <rum t h ~ .  Cornoralion at 3030 Vinlac~. Uoulc\:~rd. Jun;a~~. 
Alaska 99801 or the Trustee a;1420 FiRh  venue, 7th Floor, Seattle, ~ash ing ton  98101. 

& 

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS 

General 

The 2005 Bonds are spec~al, limited obligations of the Corporation secured by and payable solely from the Trust 
Estate cstablishcd under the Indenture pursuant to which the 2005 Bonds are issued. The Tn~s t  Estate consists of: (i) any 
Education Loan held in or credited to the Education Loan Fund under the Indenturc; (ii) all alnounts received under, or 
pursuant to, or with respect to any Pledged Loan; (iii) all amounts received under or pursuant to the promissory note or 
otherdocu~nentationevidencingaPledged Loan, and(iv)amountslield in theRevenueFund and theCapitalReserve Fund. 
No other asscts of the Corporation arc pledged to the payment of the 2005 Bonds. 

Upon the issuance of the 2005 Bonds, it is anticipated that thc principal amount of the Education Loans and the 
value of the other asscts pledged under the Indenture will be equal to aiprox-icimately 135.6% of the aggregate principal 
amount ofall Class I Bonds (including the 2005 Bonds). The Indenture does not require that any level of collateralization 
be maintained but does, howevcr, require that certain tests be met prior to the removal of assets from the Indenture. 

Withdrawal of Erccss Coverage 

At any time, but no more frequently than once every month, the Corporation may dclivcr to the Trustcc a 
Ccrtificate executed by its Authorized ~ e ~ r e s k t a t i v e ,  (i) evidencing the fact that there is thcn ~ ~ c e s s ~ o v c n g c ,  as detincd 
in APPENDIX I1 to this Official Statement, on deposit under the Indenture and specifying the amount thereof, and (ii) that 
no Event of Default exists under the Indcnture. Promptly upon the Tmstee's receipt of that Certificate, and a Rating 
Confirniation, the Tmstcc will release such Excess Coveragc to the Corporation for any of its lawful purposcs. 

Capital Rcserve Fund 

As part of theTrust Estate, the 2005 Bonds arc secured (subject to priority as described in this Official Statement) 
by the Capital Reserve Fund established under the Master Indenture. At the time of issuance of the 2005 Bonds, the 
Capital Rescrve Fund is expected to have on deposit therein an amount equal to approximately $5,600,000, including 
S1,165,000 from proceeds of the 2005 Bonds. The Supplemental lndcnture providcs a rnini~nunl Capital Reserve 
Requirenlent of at least equal to 2% of the principal amount of Bonds Outstanding but in no event less than S500,OOO. 
Amounts on deposit in the Capital Reserve Fund (other than amounts in excess ofthe Capital Reserve Requirement, which 
are to be transferred to the Rcvenuc Fund) are to be used to pay the principal of or interest on the Bonds, by Class in 
descending order of priority, to the extent other moneys held and available undcr the Indcnhlre are insufficicnt arid to 
reimburse cach Credit Enhancement Agency to the extent provided in the rclatcd agrecmcnt. Under the Indenture, all or 
any portion of thc Capital Reserve Requirement may be satisfied by the dcposit with the Tn~stce of a surety bond. 



The Act provides that if the assets in any capital reserve fund created pursuant to the Act are less than the amount 
currently required in a Corporation resolution or indenture to be on deposit, the Chairperson of the Corporation shall, 
annually, by January 15, certify to the Governor and the State Legislature the amount necessary to restore the assets of 
the fund to the required amount. However, because the Capital Reserve Fund Requirement is less than maximum annual 
debt service on the Bonds, even if the State Legislature makes all appropriations contemplated by the Act, such 
appropriations may be insufficient to pay debt service on the Bonds as the same become due and payablc. 

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, such provision does not give rise to a legal obligation of the State; however, the 
Governor is legally authorized, but not legally obligated, to request such appropriation, and the Legislature is legally 
authorized, but not legally obligated, to appropriate the amount requested. The Corporation has covenanted in the 
Indenture to do and perfomi or cause to be done and performed each and every act and thing with respect to the Capital 
Reserve Fund to be done or performed by or on behalf of the Corporation or the Trustee under the ternis and provisions 
of the Indenture and of the Act. The Corporation is not required to contribute assets to maintain the Capital Reserve Fund 
at its required level. 

Certain Payment Priorities 

Thr. Indmturc prwidcs tI1;1t BonJs ~ssucd thercundx, including thc 2005 Uonds, bc dcsignntcd a priority Chss, 
with CI:lss I bcinc thc 111~hc.\t o r io r~~s .  l'hs?005 Bonds nrcdcs~~nated Class 1 Bonds 2nd ar; In mmtv w h  Cl;i\s I Bonds - - .  - . , 
previously issued under the Indenhire. See "INTRODUCTION." 

The Corporation reserves the right to issueadditional ClassesofBonds in the future and to issue additional Bonds 
within Class I in the future. 

At any time a current principal or interest payment is required to be made, it will be made first with respect to 
Bonds of the highest priority Class, and then in descending order of priority. In addition, the ability to control or pursue 
remedies is given to the registered owners of not less than twcnty-five percent (25%) in principal amount of the 
Outstanding Bonds of the highest Class as described in APPENDIX I1 to the Official Statement. 

EXERCISE OF REMEDIES BY A HIGHER PRIORITY CLASS UPON A DEFAULT, INCLUDING 
PARTICULARLY ACCELERATION OF A HIGHER PRIORITY CLASS OF BONDS, O R  EXERCISE O F  
REMEDIES BY A CREDIT ENHANCEMENT AGENCY FOLLOWING A DEFAULT UNDER A RELATED 
AGREEMENT (SEE "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS - CERTAIN PAYMENT PRIORITIES") COULD 
ADVERSELY AFFECT THE ABILITY OF LOWER PRIORITY CLASSES O F  BONDS T O  RECEIVE 
PAYMENT OF DEBT SERVICE WHEN DUE. A PAYMENT DEFAULT WITH RESPECT T O  A CLASS O F  
BONDS OTHER THAN THE HIGHEST PRIORITY CLASS THEN OUTSTANDING, IS NOT AN EVENT O F  
DEFAULT UNDER THE INDENTURE. 

Additional Bonds 

The Corporation may issue additional Series of Bonds under the Master lndenhlre from time to time, payable on 
a parity with or subordinate to any Class I Bonds, and senior to, on a parity with or subordinate to Bonds other than Class 
I Bonds. The issuance of Additional Bonds is subject to, among other things, receipt of a Rating Confirmation prior to 
issuance. 





Accelerariori. If an Evcnt of Dcfault (as defined in the Indenture) shall occur, the principal of all thc 2005 Bonds 
may be, and under certain circu~nstances shall be, declared due and payable i n  the manner and with the effect provided 
in the Indenture. 

PLAN OF FINANCE 

The 2005 Bonds 

The 2005 Bonds are being issued to (i) finance Education Loans for eligible borrowers to fund a portion of their 
postsecondary education costs whether in or out of state, (ii) make a capital reserve fund deposit, and (iii) pay costs of 
issuance of tllc 2005 Bonds. 

Assumptions Considered in Structuring the 2005 Bonds 

In structuring the 2005 Bonds, the Corporation made certain assumptions regarding the Education Loan portfolio 
to bc held under the Indenture, moneys to be deposited under the Indenture, and proceeds of the 2005 Bonds. The 
Corporation believes these assumptions to be reasonable based upon its expericncc but cannot guarantee the accuracy 
thereof. 

The Corporation expects, but does not guarantee, that the pool of Education Loans financed with a portion of the 
procecds of the 2005 Bonds will consist ofthe following categories of loans in the following proportions: 69% Alternative 
Loans and 31% Alternative Consolidation Loans. A summary of certain characteristics of the Education Loans held in 
the Trust Estate as of March 31,2005, is describcd on the following page. 



Characteristics of Education Loans 

The cliaracteristics of the Education Loans described in the following charts, pertain only to those Education 
Loans pledged as security for the Bonds as of March 31, 2005. The characteristics of Education Loans held under the 
Indenture will change over time. No assunnce can be given that such changes will not be significant or that they will not 
be adverse. 

Loan Tvpe 
Alaska Education Loans 
Teacher Education Loans 
Family Education Loans 
Federal Family Education Loans 
TOTAL 

Loan Status 
Scl100l 
Grace 
Deferment 
Forbearance 
Repayment 
TOTAL 

Variable Rate* 
TOTAL 

% of Total 
71% 

Amount % of Total 
S106,180,010 54% 

14,571,258 7 
7,291,098 4 
3,134,786 2 

65.334.151 33 
S196.511.303 100% 

% of Total 
20% 

Ilms chnngc annually. The eurrenl nnge is 2.77% lo 4.17% 
* *  Tolalr may nor add duc to rounding. 

Loan Delinquencies and Defaults 

The Alternative Loans are deemed to be in default when payments become one hundred eighty (180) days past 
due. The FFELP Loans are deemed to be in default when payments become two hundred seventy (270) days past due. 
4.1 7% of the Education Loans held under the Indenture were over 180 days past due as of Marcli 3 I, 2005. 

The following table summarizes the delinquency rates for the Education Loans that were in repayment as of the 
date indicated and that were not in default. 

Aeine Cateeory March 31.2005 
Current 97.8% 

30-59 days .7 
60-89 days .5 

90.1 19 days .6 
120-149 days .2 
150-179 days - .- 7 

Total 100% - 



Loan Program Expenses 

It has been assumed that the annual Loan Program expenses of the Corporation, which include the Corporation's 
administrative expenses, the cost of servicing the Pledged Loans, and the fees and expenses of the Trustee, that will be 
paid from Pledged Receipts ahead of Debt Service on Bonds Outstanding will be approximately one and one-quarter 
percent (1.25%) of the average principal amount of Pledged Loans outstanding during the previous fiscal year. 

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES O F  FUNDS 

The Corporation estimates that the proceeds from the sale of the 2005 Bonds will be applied approximately as 
follows: 

Sources: 

Principal Amount of 2005 Bonds 
Reoffering Premium on Series 2005 Bonds 

Total Sources 

Uses: 

Deposit to Education Loan Fund 
Deposit to Capital Reserve Fund 
Estimated Cost of Issuance (including Undenvriters' fee) 

Total Uses 

CERTAIN INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS 

The Corporation believes, based on its analyses of multiple cash flowprojcctions, using various assumptions and 
scenarios, that (i) Pledged Receipts to be received pursuant to the Indenture and the balances in the various Accounts 
should be sufficient to pay principal of and interest on the Bonds (including the 2005 Bonds) when due and to pay when 
due certain fees and expenses related to the Bonds and the Education Loans until the final maturity of the Bonds, as more 
fully described below; and (ii) the liquidity of the amounts in the Accounts should be sufficient under the circumstances 
as projected to pay principal of and interest on the Bonds (including the 2005 Bonds) when due and also pay when due 
all expenses related to the Bonds and the Education Loans. A variety of factors, including the factors discussed below, 
could lnaterially and adversely affect the sufficiency of the Pledged Receipts to meet debt service payments on the Bonds. 

Factors Affecting Sufliciency and Timing uf Receipt of Pledged Receipts 

The Corporation expects that the Pledged Receipts to be received pursuant to the Indenture should be sufficient 
to pay principal of and interest on the Bonds (including the 2005 Bonds) when due and also to pay the annual cost of all 
Tmstee fees, auction agent fees, ifany, insurance fees, credit enhancement fees, if any, servicing costs and other expenses 
related thereto and to the Education Loans until the final maturity or earlier redemption of such Bonds. This expectation 
is based upon an analysis of cash flow projections using assumptions, which the Corporation believes are reasonable, 
regarding the timing of the financing of such Education Loans to be held pursuant to the Indenture, the future composition 
of and yield on the Education Loan portfolio, the rate of return on moneys to be invested in various Accounts under the 
Indenture, and the occurrence of future events and conditions. These assumptions are derived from the Corporation's 
experience in the adnlinistration of its Loan Program. There can be no assurance, however, that the Education Loans will 
be acquired as anticipated, that interest and principal payments from the Education Loans will be received as anticipated, 
that the reinvestment rates assumed on the amounts in various Accounts will be realized, or that SAP and other payments 
will be received in the amounts and at the times anticipated. In addition, there can be no assurance that certain costs 
related to maintaining the Education Loan portfolio, including servicing costs, will not increase. Furthermore, other future 
events overwhich the Corporationliasno control may adversely affect the Corporation's actual receipt ofPlcdgedReccipts 
pursuant to the Indenture. 



Receipt of principal of and interest on Education Loans may be accelerated due to various factors, including, 
without limitation: (i) default claims or claims due to the disability, death orbankruptcy ofthe borrowers greater than those 
assumed; (ii) actual principal amortization periods which arc shorter than those assumed based upon the current analysis 
of the Corporation's loan portfolio; (iii) the commencement of principal repayment by borrowers on earlier dates than are 
assunied based upon the current analysis of the Corporation's loan portfolio; (iv) economic conditions that induce 
borrowers to refinance or repay their loans prior to maturity; and (v) changes in fcdenl or state law which may affect the 
timing of the receipt of funds by the Corporation. The Corporation or other lenders may make consolidation loans to 
borrowers for the purpose of retiring certain borrowers' existing loans under various fedenl or state higher education loan 
programs. To the extent that Education Loans arc repaid with consolidation loans, the Corporation would realize 
repayment of such Education Loans earlier than projected. 

Delay in the receipt ofprincipal of and interest on Education Loans may adversely affect payment of the principal 
of and interest on the Bonds when due. Principal of and interest on Education Loans may be delayed due to numerous 
factors, including, without limitation: (i) borrowers entering deferment periods due to a return to school or other eligible 
purposes; (ii) forbearance being granted to borrowers; (iii) Education Loans becoming delinquent for periods longer than 
assumed; (iv) actual loan principal amortization periods which are longer than those assumed based upon the current 
analysis of the Corpomtion's loan portfolio; and (v) the conimencement ofprincipal repayment by borrowers at dates later 
than those assunied based upon the current analysis of the loan portfolio. 

If actual receipt of Pledged Receipts under the Indenture or actual expenditures by the Corporation under its loan 
origination and acquisition programs vary greatly from thoseprojected, the Corporation may beunable to pay the principal 
of and interest on the 2005 Bonds and amounts owing on other obligations when due. In the event that Pledged Receipts 
to be received under the Indenture are insufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds and amounts owing 
on certain other obligations when due, the Indenture authorizes, and under certain circu~nstances requires, the Trustee to 
declare an Event of Default, accelerate the payment of the Bonds, and sell the Education Loans. In such circumstances, 
it is possible, however, that the Tmstee would not be able to sell the Education Loans and other assets lield under the 
Indenture at prices sufficient to pay the Bonds. The Indenture provides that Bonds issued thereunder, including the 2005 
Bonds, be designated a priority Class, with Class I being the highest priority. At any time a current principal or interest 
paynient is required to be made, it will be made first with respect to Bonds of the highest priority Class, and then in 
descending order of priority. In addition, the ability to control or pursue remedies is given "By Class in Descending 
Priority" as described in APPENDIX I1 to this Official Statement. Exercise of remedies by a higher priority Class upon 
a default, including particularly acceleration of a higher priority Class of Bonds, or exercise of re~nedics by a Credit 
Enhancement Agency following a default under a related agreement (see "SECURITY FOR THE BONDS - Certain 
Pay~iientPriorities")couldadversely affect theability oflower priority Classes ofBonds to receive payment ofdebt service 
when due. 

FFELP Loan Program 

In FY 2002-03, the Corporation began offering FFELP Loans under its Loan Program. As of March 3 I, 2005, 
there were 542,182,556 of FFELP Loans held in the Trust Estate. See "THE ALASKADVANTAGEO LOAN 
PROGRAM -The Federal Loan Program." The Co~nniission docs not anticipate that proceeds of the 2005 Bonds will be 
used to finance FFELP Loans. 

Nortliwest Education Loan Association ("NELA")' currently serves as the "eligible guarantor" of the FFELP 
Loans. In the event the financial status of NELA and its ability to honor guarantee claims were to deteriorate over time, 
such event could result in a delay or a failure to make garantee payments to holders of FFELP Loans, including the 
Corporation. The percentage of federal reimbursement to a guarantor is based upon the amount of federal reimbursement 
payments made to such guarantor as a percentage of the principal amount of the guarantor's guaranteed loans in repayment 
at the end of the preceding federal fiscal year. Higher than expected default clainis against aguamntorof guaranteed loans 
could reduce the amount of federal reimbursement to such guarantor, thus possibly causing such guarantor to reduce its 
reserve fund below desired levels in order to pay guarantee claims. Guarantor operations and activities are subject to 
statutory and regulatory change. Sce "INSURANCE AND GUARANTEES - Federal Insurance and - Guarantees." 

t See "GUARANTOR." 



Alternative Loans are guaranteed by Northwest Education Loan Association or any other guarantor. 

Changes to Federal Family Education Loan Program 

The Higher Education Act and the Federal Family Education Loan Program (the "FFEL Program") have been 
subject tonumerous amendments and changes overthe years which have changed the teniisofandeligibility requirenients 
for tlie FFELP Loans. These changes have included, among other things, changes in the calculation of interest rates and 
SAP on federal student loans, changes in the requirements to offer alternate payment plans to borrowers, additional loan 
forgiveness provisions, and additional restrictions on guaranty agencies' use of funds. As a result of changes to the FFEL 
Prograni, the net revenues resulting to holders of student loans have in some cases been reduced and may be further 
reduced in the future. The Higher Education Act was scheduled to be reauthorized in calendar year 2004, but was 
temporarily extended until September 2005. 

Federal Budgetary Legislation 

The availability ofvarious federal payments in connection with the FFEL Program is subject to federal budgetary 
appropriation. In recent years, federal budgetary legislation has been enacted which has provided, subject to certain 
conditions, forthe mandatory curtailment ofcertain federal budget expenditures, includingexpenditures in connection with 
the FFEL Program and the recovery of certain advances previously made by the federal government to state guarantee 
agencies in order to achieve certain deficit reduction guidelines. No representation is made as to the effect, if any, of future 
federal budgetary appropriation or legislation upon expenditures by the Department of Education, or the effect, if any, of 
any future legislation or regulations upon the Corporation's student loan program or other factors that could potentially 
affect timely payment of the 2005 Bonds. 

Noneompliancc with the Higher Education Act 

Noncompliance with tlie Higher Education Act, with respect to Loans which are Higher Education Act loans, by 
lenders, any guarantor, any servicer or the Corporation may adversely affect, when due, payment of principal of and 
interest on the Bonds, the proceeds of which were used to finance FFELP Loans. The Higher Education Act and the 
applicableregulations tliereunderrequiretlle IenderstnakingFFELP Loans, guarantors guaranteeingsucli loans and lenders 
or servicers servicing such loans to follow certain due diligence procedures in an effort to ensure that FFELP Loans are 
properly made and disbursed to, and timely repaid by, thc borrowers. Such due diligence proccdures include ccrtain loan 
application procedures, certain loan origination proecdures and, when a FFELP Loan is in default, certain loan collection 
procedures. The procedures to make, guarantee and service Higher Education Act loans are set forth in the Code of 
Federal Regulations and other docunients of the Department of Education, and no attempt has been made in this Official 
Statement to describe those procedures in their entirety. Failure to follow such procedures may result in the Secretary's 
refusal to make reinsurance payments to a guarantor on such loans or may result in the guarantor's refusal to honor its 
guarantee on such loans to holders of guaranteed loans, including the Corporation. Such action by the Secretary could 
adversely affect a guarantor's ability to honor guarantee claims, and loss of guarantee payments to the Corporation by an 
eligible guarantor could adversely affect the ability of the Corporation to make payment of principal of and interest on the 
Bonds, the proceeds of which were used to finance FFELP Loans. 

Special Allowance Payments 

The Ofiice of the Inspector Gencral ("OIG") has recently begun examinations of certain nonprofit student loan 
organizations and their ability to extend 9.5% floor loan return treatment on pre-1993 bonds refunded by the issuance of 
tax-exempt refunding bonds issued on or before September 30,2004, despite the fact that Department of Education policy 
statements have clearly supported this practice since October of 1993. Although the 01G has no separate enforcement 
ability and can only recommend certain actions to the Secretary of Education, the Corporation can make no assurances 
as to what future actions tlie Department of Education may pursue relating to such OIG examinations and 
recommendations based thereon. Seealso "DESCRIPTION OF FEDERAL FAMILY EDUCATION LOAN PROGRAM 
-Special Allowance Payments." 

The Tn~st  Estate includes Education Loans which the Corporation considers eligible for 9.5% floor loan return 
treatment, including loans refunded by the issuance of tax-exempt refunding bonds issued on or before September 30, 
2004. The Corporation believes its treatment of such Education Loans as 9.5% floor loans complies with the Higher 
Education Act (including the Taxpayer-Teacher Protectio~i Act of 2004) and Department of Education guidance since 



November 1993, and is consistent with industry practice. The Corporation believes that a contrary position taken solely 
by the OIG would not result in any material liability for the Corporation which would materially adversely affect its ability 
to pay its obligations with respect to the 2005 Bonds. 

Uncertainty as to Available Remedies 

The renicdies available to owners of the 2005 Bonds upon an Event of Default under the Indenture or other 
documents described herein are in many respects dependent upon regulatory and judicial actions which often are subject 
to discretion and delay. Under existing constitutional and statutory law and judicial decisions, including specifically Title 
1 I of the United States Code, the reniedies specified by the Indenture and such other docu~nents may not be readily 
available or niay be limited. The various legal opinions to be delivcrcd concurrently with the issuance ofthe2005 Bonds 
will be qualified, as to the enforceability of the various legal instruments, by limitations imposed by bankruptcy, 
reorganization, insolvency or other similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally. 

THE ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATIONIALASKA COMMISSION 
ON POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION 

Commission - Gcncral Information 

State law established the Alaska Commission on Postsecondary Education (the "Commission") in 1974. The 
Commission's primary purpose is to enable residents of the State to evaluate their postsecondary educational needs and 
available resources, to enable State residents to make infonned decisions regarding the disposition ofthose resources, and 
to assure State residents of the opportunity to satisfy those postsecondary needs and goals. The Cormnission consists of 
fourteen niembers representing public and private postsecondary education institutions in the State, advisory groups, and 
members of the legislature. The Commission appoints an Executive Director. The Executive Director then appoints 
persons to staff positions authorized by the Commission. 

The Connnission has offices in Juneau and Anchorage, Alaska. The principal office for the Commission is 
located at 3030 Vintage Boulevard, Juneau, Alaska 99801-7109. The telephone number for the Conlmission is (907)465- 
6740. The Attorney General of the State serves as counsel to the Commission. 

Stafling of the Comn~ission 

The Comniission includes four divisions which are managed by a six-member professional team. These 
individuals direct the affairs of the staff and report to the Executive Director. The four divisions are Finance, Loan 
Operations andoutreach, Information Support Services,and the Executiveoffice. Ms. Sheila King supervises theFinance 
Division, which is composed of accounting and procurement. She is assisted by Ms. Elizabeth McDonough. The Loan 
Operations and Outreach Division is directed by Ms. Stcplianie Butler. This Division is responsible for citizen outreach 
and program marketing initiatives, strategic analysis, loan origination, customer service, defenuent and forgiveness 
processing, skip tracing, due diligence activity on delinquent loans, records, and other specialized student aid programs. 
The lnformation Support Services Division is directed by Mr. Kenneth Dodson. All development and support functions 
related to thenianagement ofthcauto~nated loanservicingsystemso~vare, hardware, ~iiainframeandinternetconncctivity 
reside within this Division. The fourth division is the Executive Office, which in addition to the Executive Director, is 
managed by the two other members of the professional team, Administrative Officer Frank Love, and the Internal Auditor 
(the Internal Auditor position is currently vacant). This division is responsible for overall agency management and 
specifically for internal audit, human resource management, institutional authorization, and procedural compliance with 
all relevant State and federal statutes, regulation and subregulatory policies. 

As of April 1,2005, the Commission had one hundred and four staff positions. These positions are assigned as 
follows: six to the Executive Office, twelve to Finance, sevcnty to Loan Operations and Outreach, and sixteen to 
Inforniation Support Services. 



Executive and Senior Staf fof t l~e  Commission 

M.s. Dime Borro~~s,  E.xecrrlil,e Direclor o f lhe  Commis.sion. Ms. Barrans assumed the duties of Executive 
Director of the Conuiiission and Executive Officer of the Corporation on July 10, 3995. Ms. Barrans joined the staff in 
January 1983 and held several positions with the agency, most recently serving as Program Coordinator from 1989 to 1993 
and Director of Student Financial Aid Programs in 1994195. Originally appointed in 1996, in 2003 Ms. Bamns was re- 
appointed by Govenior Frank Murkowski to serve on the Western Interstate Commission on Higher Education. Ms. 
Barrans currcntly scrvcs as Chair of the Western Interstate Commission for the 2004-2005 tcrnl. Ms. Barrans also jointly 
serves with the President of the University of Alaska as the Statc Higher Education Executive Officers for the State. Ms. 
Barrans currcntly serves as Prcsidcnt-Elect of the Statc Highcr Education Officers Organization. Ms. Barrans received 
a baclielor of arts degree from Bamard College of Columbia University in 1982. 

Ms. SI~eilu King. CPA. Cl~iefFir~at~ciol Oflcer. Ms. King joined the Coninlission in May 1998. Prior to joining 
the Commission, Ms. King was the Accountant IVIController for the Alaska Industrial Development and Export Authority 
froni May 1994 to April 1998 and worked as a Supervising Senior Auditor for KPMG LLP (formerly known as KPMG 
Peat Manvick LLP) from February I990 to May 1994. From 1983 to 1990, Ms. King worked in the accounting field in 
a variety of capacities. Ms. King reccivcd a bachelor of science degree in business administration froni University of 
Texas at Dallas in 1989. 

Ms. E/;zube/lr McDono11g11, SeniorAccoutrlarl/. Ms. McDonough originally joined the Commission in 1988 and 
served in the financeunit in avariety ofcapacities through 1993. From 1988 to 1991 she worked as an Accountant, from 
1991 to 1992 she was the Finance Manager, and from 1992 to 1993 she was the Principal Analyst in charge of system 
projects. Ms. McDonough again joined the Commission in 1994 and since that time has becn the Senior Accountant in 
the Finance Division. Ms. McDonough received a bachelor of science degree in business administration with an 
accounting emphasis froni California State University, Long Beach in 1983. 

Ms. StephanieBufler, Direcror o f L o m  Operufiorls oridOlzr,~ach. Ms. Butlerjoined tlie Commission in August 
I997 as Institutional Authorization Program Coordinator. She was promoted to Director of Institutional Relations in June 
1998. In October 2001 she accepted her current position. Prior to coming to the Coniniission, she worked for the 
University of Alaska Anchorage as Administrative Manager from November 1992 to 1997 and Infomiation/Support 
Services Manager from 1990 to 1992. Ms. Butlcr is a Certified Internal Auditor through the International Institute for 
Intemal Auditing and a Certitied Government Professional. Ms. Butlcr received a master of science in business 
ad~ninistntionlma~iage~iient from Boston University in 1987 and a bachelor of arts in English from Bany Univcrsity in 
Miami, Florida, in 1983. 

Mr. Ketrtrell~ Dodson, D;reclor of lr7/urn1a/iorr Slrpporl Services. Mr. Dodson joined the Commission in 
September 1994 as Director of Infonilation Support Services. Prior to coming to the Conmission he was employed from 
1988 until 1994 by UNIPAC Service Corporation in Denver, Colorado, first as a Programmer in 1988 advancing to 
Infomiation Services Supervisor in 1990. In Septcniber of 1991 Mr. Dodson assumed the role as lnformation Services 
Supervisor of Regulation and Con~pliancc Support wlme his team successfully iniplementcd thc changes required by the 
1992 Reauthorization Act as well as the Rebate Eligible Loans provisions. Mr. Dodson served on thcstecringcon~niittce 
for the Rocky Mountain Chapter of the Project Management Workbench Users Group and was on the planning committee 
for the Guaranteed Student Loan Users Group. The Commission services the Corporation's loan portfoliousing theHigher 
Education Loan Management System ("HELMS"). Mr. Dodson is past President and a current member of the HELMS 
User Group. (The HELMS User Group is comprised of soflware provider representatives and student loan scrvicers 
currently using HELMS.) Mr. Dodson reccivcd a certificate in Computer lnformation Systems from Tucunicari Area 
Vocational School in Tucumcari, New Mexico, in 1988. 

Mr. Fm11k Love. Adinir~isrroli~~e Oflcer. Mr. Love joined the Commission in July 1997. Prior to joining the 
Comniission, Mr. Love's professional life was substantially spent as a 32-year career member of the United States Coast 
Guard. For the latter eighteen years of his service, Mr. Love served i n  various capacities as a hunian resources manager, 
engaged in persoonel management, employee relations, career development, and staff training initiatives. Mr. Love has 
received certificates in Human Relations from the Defense Equal Opportunity Management Institute and Chief Petty 
Officer Training from tlie US. Coast Guard Tmining Center in addition toreceivingongoing training in Human Resources 
issues. 



Corporation - General Information 

In 1987, State law created the Corporation. The statute creating tlie Corporation is codified at Alaska Statutes 
14.42.100 through 14.42.990, as amended (the "Act"). Pursuant to the Act, the Corporation is a "public corporation and 
government instrutnentality within the Department of Education and Early Development but having a legal existence 
independent of and separate from the state." Its primaly purpose is to financeeducation loans. A combination of revenues 
generated from the issuance of bonds and loan repaynients fund the Program. 

The Corporation is governed by a board of directors (tlie "Board"). The supervision of the administration of the 
Corporation is delegated to the Executive Officer of the Corporation (the "Executive Officer"), who is also the Executive 
Director of the Commission. 

The principal office of the Corporation is located at 3030 Vintage Boulevard, Juneau, Alaska 99801-7 109. The 
telephone ouniber for the Corporation is (907) 465-6740. The Attorney General of the State serves as counsel to the 
Corporation. 

The Corporation has previously issued the following bonds: (i) S673,770,000 principal amount of Student Loan 
Revenue Bonds under a trust indenture dated as of May 1, 1988, as amended and supplemented, of which S276,550,000 
amount is currently outstanding, (ii) $75,140,000 principal amount of Capital Project Revenue Bonds under an indenture 
dated as of February I ,  2004, of which S66,310,000 is currently outstanding, and (iii) S88,305,000 principal amount of 
State Project Revenue Bonds under an indenture dated as of March I ,  2005 ofwhich S88,305,000 is currently outstanding. 
These bonds are not issued under the Indentureand llavenoriglit, title or claim to the Trust Estate securing the 2005 Bonds 
or Prior Bonds. 

Corporation Membership 

The Board consists of two nienibers of the Commission, the Conunissioner of Revenue, the Commissioner of 
Administration, and the Commissioner of Commerce, Community and Econonlic Development. The members of the 
Board who represent the Commission serve on the Board at tlie pleasure of tlie Governor, subject to their incumbency on 
the Comniission. 



The table below identifies the cumnt  members of the Corporation's Board (and, where applicable, their first 
delegates to the Board). 

Name and Location 

Randy Simmons, Chair 
Anchorage, Alaska 

Bobettc Bush, Vice Chair 
Aniak, Alaska 

William A. Corbus 
Juneau, Alaska 

Tom Boutin, First Delegate 
Juneau, Alaska 

Ray Matiashowski 
Juneau, Alaska 

Kcvin Brooks, First Delegate 
Juneau, Alaska 

Edgar Blatchford 
Juneau, Alaska 

Grcg Winegar, First Dclcgate 
Juneau, Alaska 

Principal Occupation 

Retired 
Connnission Member 

School District Superintendent, Retired 
Commission Member 

Cornmissioner 
Alaska Department of Revenue 

Deputy Con~missioner 
Alaska Department of Revenue 

Commissioner 
Alaska Dcpartment of Administration 

Deputy Comniissioner 
Alaska Department of Administration 

Comniissioner 
Alaska Department of Commerce, Community 
and Economic Dcvclopmcnt 

Director of the 
Alaska Division of Invcstnients 

MK Randy S i ~ n ~ n o ~ a ,  Chair. of r /~e  Corporation a~idiMniiber ofthe Co~n~nission Mr. Simmons was appointed 
to the Commission in 2001 by the Governor and to the Board of the Corporation that same year. In 2005, Mr. Simmons 
retired from his position as the Vice President of operations at JL Properties, Inc. in Anchorage, where he oversaw the 
managenlent of conimercial and residential properties and promoted the development of new projects. He previously 
served as Development and Finance Managcr of the Alaska Industrial Development and Export Authority, coordinating 
economic development projects and the development of policy, and was promoted to Chief Executive Officer with the 
responsibility for enco~~ragingeconomicdevelop~nent and diversification in the State. As CEO, he also served as the CEO 
ofthe AlaskaEncrgy Authority, a billion-dollarStatecorporationresponsiblc for State-ownedcnergy projects, State energy 
policy, and rural energy programs. He has servcd as comptroller for the Alaska Dcpartment of Transportation and Public 
Facilities where he was promoted to Deputy Comniissionerof FinanceandManagement,rcsponsible for the administrative 
and financial functions of the department, as well as oversight of the Alaska Marine Highway System and International 
Airport System. Prior to his public sector service, Mr. Simmons was a tax manager and supervisor at Coopers 6: Lybmnd, 
CPA's, in Anchorage. Mr. Simmons earned his juris doctoratc in I979 from the University of Orcgon, School of Law, 
and his bachelor of science in business administration in 1974. He is a certified public accountant and a member of the 
Alaska State Bar. 

Ms. Boberre D. Buslr. Vice Chair ofr l~e Corporalion atid hlembo. of rile Co~w~i s s io~ i .  Ms. Bush was appointed 
to the Commission in 1993 and was reappointed in 1997. Ms. Bush is retired, previously serving as the superintendent 
of the Kuspuk School District in Aniak, Alaska. She reccived her bachelor of arts degree in 1969 from Whitman College 
in Walla Walla, Washington, and a master of cducation degree in 1988 from the University of Alaska-Fairbanks. Her 
professional experience includes 1 I years ofteaching, serving as cur~iculum coordinator and cumculum staffdevelopment 
director in the Kuspuk School District, principal of Aunti Mary Nicoli Elementary, and interim superintendent in the 
Kospuk School District prior to being named supcriotendent. Ms. Bush currently serves as a member of the Collegc of 
Rural Alaska Council, Betl~cl Broadcasting, Incorporated, and thc Kuskokwim College Council. 



Mr. Ray Malioslroiwki, Comrriissiorrer, Departn~erd qf Adnrirristra~~orr. Mr. Matiashowski was appointed 
Commissioner in 2004. Previously in his role as Deputy Commission of the Department, Mr. Matiashowski oversaw the 
divisions of Administrative Services, Alaska Longevity Programs, Finance, General Services, Infomiation Technology 
Group, Retirement and Benefits, Senior Services, and the Oil and Gas Conservation Coniniission. Prior to Mr. 
Matiashowski's appointment as Deputy Commissioner, heowned and operated areal estatecompany inKetchikan, Alaska. 
Mr. Matiashowski has considerable experience in sales, having worked for a number of sales-oriented organizations. He 
also served as legislative aide and ChiefofStaffto Senator Lloyd Jones. Mr. Matiashowski is a meniberofOniicron Delta 
Epsilon and the International Honor Society in economics. He earned his Bachelor of Arts in economics from the 
University of Washington, and is a 1983 graduate of the institute on comparative political and economic systems, 
Georgetown University. 

Kevin A. Brook, Deprrty Cornrnissiorrer, Departnrerrt ofil1dnirristra1io~. (Mr. Brooks serves on the Board as a 
Delegate of Ray Matiashowski) Mr. Brooks was appointedDeputy Conunissioner in June2004. Heoversees the divisions 
of Administrative Services, Finance, General Services, Enterprise Technology Services, Retirement andBenefits, and the 
Oil and Gas Conservation Commission. Mr. Brooks began his career with the State of Alaska in 1983 working as an 
accounting clerkand went on to serve as the finance officer of the Department of Military and Veterans Affairs in January 
of 1986. He later served as an accounting supervisor, budget analyst, and director of administrative services for the 
Depart~nent of Administration. In 1992-93 he worked in the private sector as a business manager for a publishing 
company, providing budget, accounting, and payroll services. FromOctober 1993 to Juneof2004 hescrved as the director 
ofad~iiinistrativeservices for the Department of Fish and Game in Juneau. He eamedhis bachelor's degree in international 
studies from the University of Michigan, and an MBA from the University of Alaska. 

Mr. IVilliarn A. Corbrrs, Corrrnri.ssiom?,: Departmerrt ofReverrue. Mr. Corbus was appointed Comniissioner on 
December 9,2002. Mr. Corbus recently retired as president of Alaska Electric Light and Power Company, the electrical 
utility for Juneau, where he had worked since 1970. Mr. Corbus scrvcd on the Alaska State Pension Investment Board 
from 1993 to 1999, and on several bank boards in Alaska. He holds a bachelor's degree in industrial engineering from 
Stanford University and a master's degree in business administration from the Amos Tuck Graduate School at Dartmouth 
College. Mr. Corbus is a Navy veteran, and worked in financial planning and accounting at a New York City firm aAer 
leaving the Navy in the 1960s. As Revenue Coni~nissioner, Mr. Corbus serves on the Board of Trustees of the Alaska 
Pcrnianent Fund Corporation, in addition to overseeing the tax, investment and public service functions of the 900- 
employee Department of Revenuc. 

MK Tonr Boirtirr, Deprrty Corr~rnissione,: Departrnerrt ofRevenrre, Treasrrry and Tar Dhisiorr (Mr. Boutin serves 
on the Board as the First Delegatc of William Corbus). Mr. Boutin was appointed Deputy Cornmissioner in February 
2003. Mr. Boutin spent his first 22 years in New Hampshire, logging and working for dairies. He then moved to Alaska, 
working as a logging engineer for Ketchikan Pulp Co. and as a tiniber faller, rigging slinger and equipment operator for 
various logging and road building finns. He bought and sold logs, lumber, vcneer and plywood for North Pacific Lumber 
Company, and was Chief Financial Officer and then President and Chief Financial Officer for Kluhvan, Inc., an Alaska 
Native Clai~ns Settlement Act corporation involved in forest products and money management. His governlnent service 
experience consists of Statc Debt Manager for the Alaska Department of Revenue, Alaska Statc Forester, and currently, 
Deputy Commissioner for the Alaska Department of Revenuc. Mr. Boutin has a Bachelor of Science from the University 
ofNew Hampshire, and an MBA in Finance from the University of Oregon. He has lived in Juneau for the past 2 1 years. 

Mr. Edgar Blatcl~Jord, Conrntis.sione,: Depormrerrr of Con~rnerce, Conrnrrrrrity arrdEco~rontic Developmerit. Mr. 
Blatchford was appointed Commissioner of the Department of Commerce, Coniniunity and Economic Development in 
January 2003. At the time of his appointment, he was an Associate Professor of Journalism and Public Conimunications 
at the University of Alaska-Anchorage. Previously, under Governor Walter J. Hickcl, he served as Coni~nissioner of 
Community and Regional Affairs from 1990-1994. Mr. Blatchford earned a Bachelor of Arts degree from Alaska 
Methodist University in 1973, a Juris Doctor degree from the University of Washington School of Law in I976 and a 
Masters of Arts degree injournalism from Columbia University i n  1988. He is a fornicr Mayor of Seward, and has served 
on the Board of Directors of Chugach Alaska Corporation, including nunierol~s ternls as chainnan. As Commissioner of 
the Department of Commerce, Community and Economic Development, Mr. Blatchford oversees 14 divisions whose 
mutual mission is to encourage and contribute to the state's economic growth through business development and 
investuients in Alaska, the Lower 48, and international opportunities. 



Greg Wi'i,lego,; Director of the Division of I~~vesments.  (Mr. Winegar serves as the First Delegate of Edxar 
Blatchford.) MI. Winegar was appointed Dircctor ofthc Division of lnvestmcn~s in May 2000. This Division administers 
various direct lending programs for the State and scrviccs loans for other State agencies, representing approximately 3,500 
:~icuulils 101:1111i~ S?jO m111101i. Prior I U  his i1pp311111n~1il ;I, L)IIC:IOI, Mr. \\'incgnr ssrvcd as rhc D~vision of ln\~cstmmt's 
I.cnd~na Rr:~nch ?.1mawr for ? I wars. 111. \\'IIICC:I~ r cxncd  111s bnchdors d i m i  irum IRC Evcr~rcc~i  SIXC Collil't 111 - - - - - ~-~ ~~~ 

1973. In addition to his work as Lcnding Branch Manager, he also sewed as a Loan Officer for the Department for five 
years where his responsibilities included credit analysis and recomniendations for commercial, multi-family, residential 
and consumer loan requests. 

Stafling of the Corporation 

Thestaff ofthe Commission also serves as staffofthe Corporation in accordance with the Act. Thecorporation 
does not have the autliority to hire staff independently. Scc "Staffing of the Conimission" above. 

Authority of the Corporation 

The Act grants the Corporation various corporate powers, including, among others, the authority to: (i) make and 
execute agreements, contracts, and other instruments necessary or convenient in the exercise of the powers and functions 
of the Corporation, including contracts with a person or governmental entity; (ii) borrow money to carry out its corporate 
purposcs and issue its obligations as evidence of the borrowing; (iii) collect from a borrowcr amounts owed with respect 
to an education loan the Corporation has purchased; (iv) service education loans held by the Corporation; (v) purchase, 
or participate in the purchasc, of education loans; (vi) contract in advance for the purchase or sale of cducation loans; 
(vii) sell, or participate in the sale, either public or private and on ternis authorized by the Board, of cducation loans to 
other purchasers; (viii) collect and pay reasonable fees and charges in connection with the purchase, sale and servicing 
of education loans; (ix) enter into agreements with the Commission relating to education loans, the administration of the 
education loan fund crcatcd under the Act, and the payment of and security for bonds of the Corporation; and (x) perform 
acts that may be necessary or appropriate to carry out effectively the general objectivcs and purposes of the Corporation 
under the Act. 

Dividcnd Plan of the Corporation 

In 2000, an amendment to the Act became effective which pcrniits the Corporation, as approved by the Board, 
to pay the State a return of capital payment or a dividend for each base fiscal year that the Corporation's nct income equals 
or exceeds 52,000,000. The payment amount may not bc less than ten percent (10%) nor more than thirty-five percent 
(35%), as approved by the Board, of the Corporation's nct income for the base fiscal year, and is subject to the provisions 
ofany applicable bond indentures of thc Corporation. The base fiscal year is the fiscal year ending two years before the 
fiscal year in which payment is made available. 

The Board of the Corporation has approved and paid return ofcapital payments to the StatcofS5 million and S5.6 
million for payment in fiscal years 2004 and2005, rcspcctively. The Corporation has approved areturn of capitalpaynient 
to the State of 53.1 million for paynicnt in fiscal year 2006. 



THE ALASKADVANTAGEO LOAN PROGRAM 

General 

The information set forth under this hcading, "THE ALASKADVANTAGEO LOAN PROGRAM," refers to the 
Loan Programgenerally and to Education Loans within the Loan Programgenerally and is not specific to Education Loans 
within the Loan Program that are pledged as security for the Bonds. With respect to Education Loans within the Loan 
Program that are plcdged as security for the Bonds, see "PLAN OF FINANCE." 

The purpose of the Loan Progmln is to provide low-interest loans to Alaskans pursuing education and training 
at a postsecondary level and to other qualified individuals attending postsccondary institutions in the State. The Loan 
Prognm has grown from annually serving just ovcr 1,000 Alaskans in the 1971-72 academic year, to serving more than 
57,000 borrowers in 2004. In its thirty years of operation, over 320,000 education loans have been awarded to Alaskan 
residents, in an amount in excess of Sl.16 billion. 

Education loans are provided to eligiblc Alaskans and may be used only to offset allowable educational costs as 
defined by statute. The loans may be used for attcndance at any accredited or approved college, university, or 
vocational-technical program. 

The following chart provides a fivc-year summary of the number of loans awarded by the Commission: 

School I.aans 
Year - 

1999-00 10.620 
2000-01 9.939 
2001-02 9.369 
2002-03 10,356 

Borrower Benefit Program 

The Corporation has approved various programs to provide incentives and rewards for borrowers. Under the 
Borrower Benefit Program, effective July 1, 2005 through June 30, 2006, borrowers with qualified loans held by the 
Corporation are eligible for certain reductions in interest rate or interest rate rebates on any such loan. Certain Education 
Loans will be eligible undcr the Corporation's Borrower Benefit Program. The Borrower Bcnefit Prograni is subject to 
the availability of funds and annual modification or termination by the Corporation in its discretion; provided, however, 
any change in theBorrower Benefit Progmrnwhich impacts any Education Loan held undcr the IndenturercquiresaRating 
Confinnation. 

The Altcrsative Loan Program 

There are four types of alternative education loans available through the Loan Program: (i) Supplemental 
Education Loans, which include Education Loans for students enrolled in half-time orgreaterstatus; (ii) Family Education 
Loans; (iii) Teacher Education Loans; and (iv) Alternative Consolidation Loans (collectively, the "Alternative Loans"). 
Substantially all loans financed by the Corporation prior to July 2002 have been Supplenlental Education Loans. 



Following is a table which briefly shows certain characteristics ofthe Alternative Loans. These cl~aracteristics 
are set by the Act. 

Supplcniental 
Education Loan: 

Graduate 
Undergraduate 
Vocational 

Family Education 
Loan: 

Graduate 
Undergraduate 

Teacher Education 
Loan: 

Graduate 
Undergraduate 

Alternative 
Consolidation Loan: 

~S30,OOO 
$30,000 or 
1norc 

Academic 
Year 

Loan Limit 

Aggregate 
Loan Limit'" 

Max of Loans 
to Consolidate 

Repayment 
Period 

10 ycars 
I0 ycars 
10 years 

10 years 
10 ycars 

15 years 
1 5 years 

10 years 
15 ycars 

Grace 
Period 

6 months 
6 months 
6 nionths 

NIA 
NIA 

6 months 
6 montlls 

NIA 
NIA 

(*) A borrower's ovemll limit under thc Ailernalive Loans (combining undcrgmduatc and gnduntc education loans) cannot ereecd S60,OOO. 

The Federal Loan Program 

After extensive analysis, thcCorporation expanded its progra~noffcrings beginning with the2002-2003 acadcmic 
year to include loans governcd by thc Higher Education Act (collectively, the "Federal Family Education Loans" or 
"FFELP Loans" and, the program with rcspcct thereto, the "Federal Family Education Loan Program" or "FFELP Loan 
Program"). To acco~nmodatc the FFELP Loan Program, the Conimission secured the stahls of "eligible lender" undcr the 
Higher Education Act and entered into various agreements with NELA, which serves as the Conimission's "eligible 
guarantor" under the Higher Education Act. Sce "DESCRIPTION OF FEDERAL FAMILY EDUCATION LOAN 
PROGRAM." 

DESCRIPTION OF ALTERNATIVE LOANS 

Supplemcntal Education Loan 

A person is eligible for a supplemental education loan if certain statutory requirements are satisfied, including 
(i) admission as at least a lialf-time student into a career education, associate, baccalaureate, or graduate degree program, 
(ii) resident ofthe State andattendance at an approved college, university orvocational teclmical program, (iii) nonresident 
of the State and attendance at an approved college, university or vocational teclmical program in the State, and (iv) 
dctemiination by the Conniiission that the person is credit worthy. 

Currently, the loan limit for any one academic year is S9,500 for qualified graduate students, S8,500 for qualified 
undergraduate students, and S6,500 for qualified vocational students. Under the Loan Program, bol~owing limits amount 
to $42,500 per student for undergraduate loans, S47,500 per student for graduate loans, and S60,000 overall. To maintain 
a loan the student must continuc to bc enrolled, in academic good standing, in a career education program, college or 
university at least half-time. 

Repayment ofthe principal ofand interest on a loan begins no later than six months aftcrthe borrowersgraduation 
or a changc in enrollment status to less than half-time. Repayment of the total amount owed is made in pcriodic 
i~~stallmerlts over ten ycars from the conunencement of repayment, except with rcspcct to certain periods of forbearance 



or defenncnt. If the Commission and the borrower agree to a different repayment schedule, the borrower is required to 
repay the loan in accordance with such agreement. A borrower may make payments earlier than required. 

Pursuant to the Supplemental Education Loan tenns, the borrowers pay a variable rate of interest which is 
adjusted annually on or after June 1 of each loan year and effective for the next twelve months beginning July I. The 
variable interest rates are based on the bond equivalent rate of 91-day United States Treasury bills auctioned at the final 
auction held before June I of the loan year plus up to 2.8% and are capped at 8.25%. 

Teacher Education Loan 

The Teacher Education Loan Program is designed to support the growth of teaching staffs in ~ r a l  areas of tlie 
State. Historically, the annual loan volunie under this program has been less than $1,500,000. These loans do not bear 
interest whilea student borrower is enrolled in aqualified educational prognm. Interest mtes for Teacher Education Loans 
are fixed rates set bv the Conmiission and are based on the cost of funds ~ l u s  uo to 3% for nroeram administration. The . - 
Co~mnission limits the number of new applicants to 90 each year. 

For substantially all ofthe Teacher Education Loans, repayment of the principal and interest begins six months 
after the borrower's graduation or change in enrollment status to less than full-time. A borrower may make payments 
earlier than required. 

Borrowers of Teacher Education Loans can obtain up to 100% forgiveness on loans awarded if the borrower 
teaches in rural Alaska for periods specified by the prognm. As of March 3 1,2005, there were approximately S4,800,000 
of outstanding loans eligible for forgiveness; the Corporation anticipates that only 40% of these loans will actually be 
forgiven. 

Family Education Loan 

The Alaska Family Education Loan Program is designed to provide financial assistance to families for the 
postsecondary education of family members. The interest rate for these loans is currently fixed by State law at 5%. 

Interest accrues on the loan from the time of the initial disbursement until the loan is paid in full. Repayment 
begins the month following the date of last disbursement for the loan year. A borrower may make payments earlier than 
required. 

Alternative Loan Fees 

The Commission charges a 3% origination fee on all Alternative Loans issued except the Alternative 
Consolidation Loans. The purpose of the origination fee is to offset loan losses due to death, disability, bankruptcy or 
default. These amounts are not pledged under the Indenture and there is no assurance that the amounts will be used to pay 
for any losscs incurred in connection with Education Loans held under tlie indenture. 

Alternative Consolidation Loans 

Beginning July 1,2004, borrowers with two or more supplemental loans, which total in the aggregate ofat least 
$3,500 may consolidate those loans under the Altcmativc Consolidation Loan Program. 

Alternative Consolidation Loan applicants are subject to minimum FICO credit score standards or, alternatively, 
 nus st liave made full and timely payments on all loans held by the Commission for the hvelve-month period immediately 
prior to the application 

Intercst rates on the AlternativeConsolidation Loans are fixed ratesset annually by the Corporation andare based 
on the 10-year United States Treasury note auctioned at the final auction held before March I plus up to 2%. 

Repayment ofprincipal and interest begins no later than 60days from the date the Alternative Consolidation Loan 
is originated. The repayment tern1 for the Alternative Consolidation Loans is 10 ycars for loans with a principal balance 
of less than S30,000 and 15 years for loans with a principal balance of S30,000 or more. 



DESCRIPTION O F  FEDERAL FAMILY EDUCATION LOAN PROGRAM 

General 

The inforn~ation under this heading, "DESCRIPTION OF FEDERAL FAMILY EDUCATION LOAN 
PROGRAM," refers to the FFELP Loan Program generally and to FFELP Loans within the FFELP Loan Program 
generally and is not specific to FFELP Loans that are pledged as security for the Bonds. With respect to FFELP Loans 
that are pledged as security for the Bonds, scc "PLAN OF FINANCE." 

The FFELP Loan Program includes several different educational loan programs. Under these programs, state 
agencies or private nonprofit corporations administering FFELP Loan insurance programs ("Guarantee Agencies" or 
"Guarantors") are reinibursed for losses sustained in the operation of their programs, and holders of certain loans made 
under such programs are paid subsidies for owning such loans. Certain provisions of the Federal Family Education Loan 
Program are suniniarized below and are qualified in their entirety by reference to the Higher Education Act and the 
regulations promulgated thereunder. The Comnlission is an "eligible lender" under the Higher Education Act. 

The Higher Education Act has been subject to Frequent amendments, including several ainendnlents that have 
changed the terms of and eligibility requirelnents for the FFELP Loans. There can be no assurance that the Higher 
Education Act, or other relevant federal or State laws, rules and regulations will not be changed in the future in a manner 
that will adversely impact the programs described below and the student loans made thereunder. Generally, this Official 
Statement describes only the provisions of the Federal Family Education Loan Program that currently apply to loans made 
on or after July I, 1998. The following summary of the Federal Family Education Loan Progmm as established by the 
Higher Education Act does not purport to be comprehensive or definitive and is qualified in its entirety by reference to 
the text of the Higher Education Act and the regulations thereunder. 

Federal Family Education Loans 

Several types of loansare currently authorized as Federal Family Education Loans pursuant to the Federal Family 
Education Loan Program. These include: (i) loans to students meeting certain financial needs tests with respect to which 
the federal government makes interest payments available to reduce student interest cost during periods of enrollment 
("Subsidized Stafford Loans"); (ii) loans to students made without regard to financial need with respect to which the 
federal government does not make such interest payments ("Unsubsidized Stafford Loans" and, collectively with 
Subsidized Stafford Loans, "Stafford Loans"); (iii) loans to parents ofdependent students ("PLUS Loans"); and (iv) loans 
available to borrowers with certain existing federal educational loans to consolidate repayment of such loans 
("Consolidation Loans"). 

Subsidized Stafford Loans 

The Higher Education Act provides for federal (i) insurance or reinsurance ofeligible Subsidized Stafford Loans, 
(ii) interest subsidy payments to eligible lenders with respect to certain eligible Subsidized Stafford Loans, and (iii) SAP 
representing an additional subsidy paid by the Secretary of the U S .  Department of Education (the "Secretary") to such 
holders of eligible Subsidized Stafford Loans. 

Subsidized Stafford Loans are eligiblc for reinsurance under the Higher Education Act if the eligible student to 
whom the loan is made has been accepted or is enrolled in good standing on at least a half-time basis at an eligible 
institution ofhigher education or vocational school. In connection with eligible Subsidized Stafford Loans there are limits 
as to the niaximuni amount which may be borrowed for an academic year and in the aggregate for both undergraduate and 
gmduate/professioiiaI study. The Secretary has discretion to raise these limits to accommodate students undertaking 
specialized training requiring exceptionally high costs of education. 

Subject to these limits, Subsidized Stafford Loans are available to borrowers in amounts not exceeding their 
unmct need for financing as provided in the Higher Education Act. Provisions addrcssing the implementation of need 
analysis and the relationship between unmet need for financing and the availability of Subsidized Stafford Loan Proyam 
funding have been the subject of frequent andextensive amcndmcnt in recent years. Therc can be no assurance that further 
amendment to such provisions will not materially affect the availability ofsubsidized Stafford Loan funding to borrowers 
or the availability of Subsidized Stafford Loans for secondary market acquisition. 
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Q I I ~ I I ~ ~ ~ S I I I ~ ~ I ~ I S  o1~dI17s1ir~rrior7s. Generally, a loan may be made only to a Unitcd States citizen or national 
or otherwise eligible individual under federal regulations who (i) has been acceptcd for enrollment or is cnrollcd arid is 
maintaining satisfactoryprogress at an eligible institution, (ii) iscanying at least one-halfofthe nomial full-time acadeinic 
workload for the coursc of study the student is pursuing, as determined by such institution, (iii) has agreed to notify 
promptly the holders of the loan of any address change, and (iv) mcets the applicable "need" requirements. Eligible 
institutions include higher educational institutions and vocational schools that comply with certain federal regulations. 
With certain exceptions, an institution with a cohort (composite) default rate that is higherthan certain thresholds specified 
in the Highcr Education Act is not an cligible institution. 

Unsuhsidizcd Stafford Loans 

Unsubsidized Stafford Loans are available for students who do not qualify for Subsidized Stafford Loans after 
the need analysis methodology due to parental andlor student income or assets in excess of permitted amounts. Such 
students are entitled to borrow the difference behvecn the Stafford Loan maximum amount and their Subsidized Stafford 
eligibility. In othcr respects, the general requirements for Unsubsidized Stafford Loans are essentially the same as those 
for Subsidized Stafford Loans. The interest rate, the annual loan limits, the loan fee rcquirenicnts and the special 
allowance payment provisions of the Unsubsidized Stafford Loans are the same as the Subsidized Stafford Loans. 
However, the tcrms of the Unsubsidized Stafford Loans differ materially from Subsidizcd Stafford Loans in that the 
Secretary docs not make interest subsidy paynicnts and the loan limitations are detennincd without respect to the expected 
family contribution. The borrower is required to pay interest from the time such loan is disbursed or capitalize the interest 
until repayment begins. 

PLUS Loan Program 

The Higher Education Act authorizes PLUS Loans to be made to parents of eligible dependent undergraduate 
students. Only parents who do not have an adverse credit history or, ifpermitted by the lender, have an endorser who does 
not have an adverse credit history, are eligible for PLUS Loans. The basic provisions applicable to PLUS Loans are 
similar to those of Stafford Loans with respect to the involvement of Guarantee Agencies and the Secrctary in providing . . 
federal reinsurance on thc loans. However, PLUS Loans differ significantly from Subsidized Stafford ~ o a n s ,  particularl; 
because fedcral interest subsidy payments are not available under the PLUS Program and SAP are more restricted. 

Thc FFELP Consolidation Loan Program 

Thc Highcr Education Act authorizes a program under which certain borrowers may consolidate their various 
FFELP Loans into a single loan insurcd and reinsured on a basis similar to Subsidized Stafford Loans. Consolidation 
Loans may be made in an amount sufficient to pay outstanding principal, unpaid interest and late charges on certain 
federally insured or reinsured FFELP Loans (other than PLUS Loans made to "parent borrowers") selected by the 
borrower, as well as loans made pursuant to the Perkins Loan Program (fornierly "National Direct Student Loan"), loans 
made pursuant to thc Hcalth Professional Student Loan Program, Health Education Assistance Loans, Nursing Student 
Loans, and loans made pursuant to the William D. Ford Fcderal Direct Loan Program (the "Direct Loan Program"). The 
borrowers may be either in repayment status or in a grace period preceding repayment. Delinquent or defaulted borrowers 
are eligible to obtain Consolidation Loans if thcy have made satisfactory repayment arnngenients with the holders of the 
dcfwl td  lo:m or ;~prcdJ to rcp:~y lhc Co~isnlidaion Lom ~mdcr a11 ~ ~ C O I ~ I + S C I ~ S I I I \ ~ ~  rqxiynimt schcdulc. Rorrowcrs 11i;i)' 

add additional lorn; to :I Conru l~d~ t~on  Loan durinp thc 160-dny pxiod follow~ng urign;~r~un oithc Cuniul~d:~l~un Loan. 
Further, a married couple who agree to be jointly and severally llable are treated as one borrower for purposes of loan 
consolidation eligibility. A Consolidation Loan will be fcderally insured or reinsured only if such loan is made in 
compliance with requirements of tlic Higher Education Act. 

If a borrower is unable to obtain a Consolidation Loan with income sensitive repayment tenns acceptable to the 
borrower from the holders of the borrower's outstanding loans (that are selected for consolidation), or from any other 
eligible Icnder, the Higher Education Act authorizes tlic Secrctary to offcr the borrower a Dircct Consolidation Loan with 
income contingent terms under the Direct Loan Program. Such Direct Consolidation Loans shall be repaid either pursuant 
to income contingcnt repayment or any other repayment provision under the authorizing section of the Higher Education 
Act. 



Interest Rates 

Subsidized Stafford Loans and Unsubsidized Stafford Loans disbursed on or after October 1 ,  I998 and prior to 
July I, 2006 which are in-school, grace and defennent periods bear interest at a rate equivalent to the 91-day T-Bill rate 
plus 1.7 perccnt, with a maximum rate of 8.25 percent. Subsidized Stafford Loans and Unsubsidized Stafford Loans in 
all other periods bear interest at a rate equivalent to the 91-day T-Bill rate plus 2.3 perccnt, with a maximum rate of 8.25 
percent. The rate is adjusted annually on July I .  PLUS Loans bear interest at a rate equivalent to the 91-day T-Bill rate 
plus 3.1 percent, with a maximum rate of 9 percent. Consolidation Loans for which the application was received by an 
eligible lender on or after October 1, 1998 and prior to July 1, 2006, bear interest at a rate equal to the weighted average 
ofthe loans consolidated, rounded to the nearest higher one-eighth of one percent, with a maximum rate of 8.25 percent. 

All Subsidized Stafford Loans and Unsubsidized Stafford Loans first disbursed on or after July 1,2006 will bear 
interest at the fixed rate of 6.8%. Similarly, PLUS loans first disbursed on or after July 1, 2006 will bear interest at the 
fixed rate of 7.9%. Finally, Consolidation Loans made as a result of applications received on or after July 1,2006 will 
bear interest at a rate equal to the lesser of (i) the weighted average of the interest rates on the loans consolidated, rounded 
to the nearest higher onc-eighth of I%, or (ii) 8.25%. 

Loan Limits 

A Stafford Loan borrower may receive a subsidized loan, an unsubsidized loan, or a combination of both for an 
academic period. Generally, the maximum amount ofa Stafford Loan for an academic year cannot exceed 52,625 for the 
first year of undergraduate study, S3,500 for the second year of undergraduate study and $5,500 per year for the third, 
fourth and fifth years of undergraduate study. The aggregate limit of Stafford Loans for undergraduate study is $23,000; 
however, if the student's parent is unable to obtain a PLUS Loan, the student's aggregate amount may not exceed 546,000 
for undergraduatc study, with Subsidized Stafford Loans comprising no more than S23,000 of the total limit. Independent 
undersraduate students may receive an additional Unsubsidized Stafford Loan of UD to S4.000 for the first and second 
years of study, and up to S~,.OOO for the third, fourth and fifth years of study, with an aggregate maximum of 546,000, with 
Subsidized Stafford Loans comprising no morc than S23,000 of the total limit. The maximum amount of the loans for an 
academic year for graduate students is~8,500, and independent students may borrow an additional Unsubsidized Stafford 
Loan up to S10,OOO per academic year. The aggregate unpaid principal amount of such loans of the borrowers may not 
exceed S138,jOO with Subsidized Stafford Loans comprising no more than S65,000 of the total limit. The Secretary has 
discretion to raise these limits by regulation to accommodate highly specialized or exceptionally expensive courses of 
study. 

The total amount of all PLUS Loans that parents may borrow on behalf of each dependent student for any 
acadennc year may not exceed the student's cost of attendance minus other estimated financial assistance for that student. 

Repayment 

Repayment ofprincipal on a Stafford Loan doesnot commence while a borrowerremains aqualified student, but 
generally begins not more than six months after the borrower ceases to pursue at least a half-time course of study (the six 
month period is the "Grace Period"). Grace Periods may be waived by borrowers and borrowers requesting FFELP 
consolidation prior to the end of the grace period forfeit any time remaining in their grace period. Except for certain 
borrowers described below in general, each such loan must be scheduled for repayment over a period of not less than five 
or more than 10 years (excluding any "deferment period" or "forbearaoce period" as defined by the Higher Education Act) 
afier theconunencement ofrepayment. Repayment of interest on anunsubsidized Stafford Loan begins immediately upon 
disbursenicnt ofthe loan, however the lender may capitalize the interest until repayment of principal is scheduled to begin. 
An extended repayment plan, not to exceed 25 years, is also available to new borrowers of loans disbursed on or after July 
1, 1998 with loans totaling more than $30,000. Once a repayment plan is established, the borrower may annually change 
the selection of the plan. Student borrowers arc entitled to accelerate, without penalty, the repayment ofall or any part of 
a guaranteed student loan. 

The Higher Education Act currently requires minimumannual payments ofS600, including principal and interest 
(but in no event less than the accrued interest), unless the borrowcr and tlle lender agree to lesser payments; in instances 
in which a borrowcr and spouse both have such loans outstanding, the total combined payments for such a couple may not 
be lcss than $600 per ycar. Regulations of the Secretary require lenders to offer standard, graduated or income-sensitive 



repayment schedules to borrowers. Use of income scnsitivc repayment plans may extend the ten-year maximum tern1 for 
up to five years. 

PLUS Loans enter rcpayrnent on the date the last disbursement is made on the loan. Interest accrues and is due 
and payable from the date of the first disbursement of the loan. The first payment is due within 60 days after the loan is 
fully disbursed. Rcpaynient plans are the same as in the Subsidized and Unsubsidized Stafford Loan Program. 

Consolidation Loans enter rcpayment on the date the loan is disbursed. The first payment is due within 60 days 
after that date. Consolidation Loans must be repaid during a period agreed to by the borrower and lender, subject to 
maximum repayment periods which vary dependingupon the principal amount ofthe borrower'soutstanding FFELP Loans 
(but no longer than 30 years). 

Deferment nnd Forbearance Periods 

During certain periods and subject to certain conditions prescribed by the Higher Education Act, no principal 
repayments need to be made during certain periods prescribed by the Higher Education Act ("Deferment Periods") but 
interest accrues and must be paid. Generally, Deferment Periods include periods (a) when the borrower has returned to 
an eligiblc educational institution on at least half-time basis or is pursuing studies pursuant to an approved graduate 
fellowship or rehabilitation training program, (b) not exceeding three years while the borrower is seeking and unable to 
find full-time employment, and (c) not in excess of three years for any reason which the lender determines, in accordance 
with regulations, has caused or will cause the borrower economic hardship. Defennent Periods extend the maximum 
repayment periods. Under certain circumstances, a lender may also allow periods of forbearance ("Forbearance") during 
which the borrower may defer payments because of temporary financial hardships. The Higher Education Act specifies 
certain periods during which forbearance is mandatory. Mandatory forbearance periods exist when the borrower is 
impacted by a national cniergency or by military mobilization orwhen the geographical area in which the borrower resides 
or works is declared a disaster area by certain officials. Other mandatory periods include periods during which the 
borrower is (a) participating in a medical or dental residency and is not eligible for defernient; (b) serving in a qualitied 
medical or dental internship program or certain national service programs; or (c) detcmiined to have a debt burden of 
certain federal loans equal to or exceeding 20% of tlie borrower's gross income. In other circumstances, forbearance may 
be granted at the lender's option. Forbearance also extends the maximum repayment periods. 

Interest Subsidy Payments 

The Secretary is to pay interest on Subsidized Stafford Loans while the borrower is a qualified student, during 
a Grace Period or during certain Dcferment Periods. In addition, those portions of Consolidation Loans that reuav . . 
Subsidized Stafford ~ o a n i o r  s~milarsubsidized loansmadeunderthe Direct ~oan~rogramareeligible for interest subsidy 
payments. The Secretary is required to make interest subsidy payments to the holders of Subsidized Stafford Loans in the 
amount of Interest accruing on the unpaid balance thereof prior to the conimencement of repayment or during any 
Defernient Period. The Higher Education Act provides that the holder of an eligible Subsidized Stafford Loan, or the 
eligible portions of Consolidation Loans, shall be deemed to have a contractual right against the United States to receive 
interestsubsidy payments from the Secretary (including the right to receive interest or interest subsidy payments not timely 
paid)in accordance with its provisions. 



Special Allowance Payn~ents 

The Higher Education Act provides for Special Allowance Payments ("SAP") to be made by the Secretary to 
eligible lenders. The rates for SAP are bascd on forniulae that differ according to the type of loan, tlie date the loan was 
first disbursed, the interest rate and the type of funds used to finance such loan (tax-exempt or taxable). Loatis made or 
purchased witli funds obtained by the holder froni the issuance of tax-exempt obligations issued prior to Octobcr I, I993 
have an effective minimum rate ofreturn of 9.5%. The SAP payable with respect to FFELP Loans acquired or funded with 
the proceeds of tax-exempt obligations issued aRer September 30, 1993 are equal to those paid to other lenders. (The 
Higher Education Act has becn subject to frequent amendments which could impact SAP.) See also "CERTAIN 
INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS -- Special Allowance Payments." 

Subject to the foregoing, the forniulae for SAP rates for Subsidized Stafford Loans and Unsubsidized Stafford 
Loans are summarized in the following chart. The term "T-Bill" as used in this table and the following table, means the 
avenge 91-day Treasury bill rate calculated as a "bond equivalent nte" in the manner applied by the Secretary as referred 
to in Section438 oftlie Higher Education Act. The term "3-Month Commercial PaperRateU means the 90-day commercial 
paper index calculated quarterly and based on an average of the daily 90-day commercial paper rates reported in the 
Federal Reserve's Statistical Release H-15. As a general matter, the amount of the SAP with respect to any loan is the 
difference behveen interest on such loan at its stated rate of interest and the SAP Rate applicable to such loan (assuming 
that the former is greater than the latter). 

Date of Loans Annualized Special Allowance Pavments Rate 

On or after October 1, 1992 to T-Bill Rate less Applicable Interest Rate + 3.1% 
June 30, 1995 

On or after July I ,  1995 to 
June 30, 1998 

On or after July 1, 1998 to 
December 31, 1999 

T-Bill Rate less Applicable Interest Rate + 3.1%") 

T-Bill Rate less Applicable Interest Rate +2.8%"' 

On or after January I ,  2000 to 3-Month Commercial Paper Rate less Applicable interest Rate + 2.34%"' 
June 30, 2006 

( I )  Substitute 2.5% in this formula while such loans are in the in-scltoal or gnce period. 
(2) Substitute 2.2% in thir forn~ula while such loans arc in thc in-school or gnce period. 
(3) Substitute 1.74% in his fornwln while such loans are ill lhc in-school or gnee period. 

The fonnulae for SAP rates for PLUS and Consolidation Loans are as follows: 

Date of Loans Annualized S~cc ia l  Allowance Pavments Rate 

On or after October 1, 1992 to 
December 3 1, 1999 

T-Bill Rate less Applicable Ititerest Rate + 3.1% 

On or afler January I, 2000 to 3-Month Commercial Paper Rate less Applicable Interest Rate + 2.64% 
June 30,2006 

SAP are generally payable, witli respcct to variable mte FFELP Loans to which a maximuni borrower interest 
rate applies, only when the maximum borrower interest rate is in effect. The Secretary offsets Interest Subsidy Payments 
and SAP by the amoont of Origination Fees and Lender Loan Fees described below in "- FFELP Loan Fees." 

The Higher Education Act providcs that a holder of a qualifying loan who is entitled to rcceivc SAP has a 
contractual right against tlie United States to receive those payments during the lifc of the loan. Receipt of SAP, however, 
is conditioned on the eligibility of the loan for federal insurance or reinsurance benefits. Such eligibility may be lost due 
to violations of federal regulations or Guarantee Agency requirements. Under rccent amendments, tlie curretit Special 



Allowalice Payment fonnula for PLUS Loans extends through June 30,2006. For PLUS Loans first disbursed on or after 
July I, 2006, SAP will only be made when the 3-month Commercial Paper Rate plus 2.64% exceeds 9.00%. 

FFELP Loan Fees 

Insttroilce Prenriunl. A Guarantee Agency is authorized to charge a premium, or guarantee fee, of up to 1% of 
the principiil i~moun~ of the loan, whicli m y  be dcdusl~.d propur!ionnl:l!, from cach installn~cnt of the loan. (icncrdly, 
Gunmntcc AscnScs. including NkLA,  hnvc \vni\,cd tlm f:c sncc  1999. 

Origiimion Fee. The lender is required to pay to the secretary an origination fee equal to 3% of tlie principal 
amount ofeach Subsidized and Unsubsidized Stafford and PLUS Loan. The lender may charge these fees to the borrower 
by deducting them proportionately from each disburscnient of the loan proceeds. 

Lerrder Loon Fee. The lender of a FFELP Loan is required to pay to the Secretary an additional origination fee 
equal to 0.5% of the principal amount of the loan. The Secretary collects from the lender or subseque~it l~oldcr the 
maximum origination fee authorized (regardless of whether the lender actually charges the borrower) and the lender loan 
fee, either through reductions in Interest Subsidy or SAP or directly from the lender or holder. 

Rebole Fee 017 Co~lsolida~io~r Loans. The holder of any Consolidation Loan is required to pay to the Sccretary 
a monthly fee equal to .0875% (1.05% per annum) of the principal amount of, plus accrued interest on, the loan. 

INSURANCE AND GUARANTEES 

A Federal Family Education Loan is considered to be in default for purposes of the Higher Education Act when . . - 
the borrower fails to make an installment payment when due, or to comply with other ternls of tlie loan, and if the failure 
persists for 270 days in the case of a loan repayable in monthly installments or for 330 days in the case of a loan repayable 
in less frequent installments 

If the loan in default is covered by federal loan insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Higher 
Education Act, the Secretary is to pay the holder the amount ofthc loss sustained thereby, upon notice and detemination 
of such amount, within 90 days of such notification. If the loan is guaranteed by a guarantor in accordalice with the 
provisions of the Higher Education Act, the guarantor is to pay the holder a percentage of such amount of the loss subject 
to reduction as describcd in the following paragraphs within 90 days of such notification. 

Federal Insurance 

The Higher Education Act provides that, subject to compliance with such Act, the full faith and credit of the 
United States is pledged to the payment of insurance claims and ensures that such reimbursen~cnts are not subject to 
reduction. In addition, the Higher Education Act provides that if a guarantor is unable to meet its insurance obligations, 
liolders of loans may submit insurance claims directly to the Secrctary until such time as the obligations are transferred 
ton new guarantor capable of meeting such obligations or until a successor guarantor assumes such obligations. Federal 
reimbursement and insurance payments for defaulted loans are paid from the Student Loan Insurance Fund established 
under the Higher Education Act. The Secrctary is authorized, to the extent provided in advance by appropriations acts, 
to issue obligations to the Sccretary of the Treasury to provide funds to make such federal payments. 

Guarantees 

If the loan is guaranteed by a guarantor in accordance with the provisions of the Higher Education Act, the 
eligible lender is reimbursed by the guarantor for a stahltorily-set percentage of the unpaid principal balance of the loan 
plus accrued unpaid interest on any loan defaulted so long as the eligible lender has properly serviced such loan. Under 
the Higher Education Act, the Secretary enters into a yarantee agreement and an annually renewable supplemental 
guarantee agreement (the "Guarantee Agreements") with each guarantor which provide for federal reimbursement for 
amou~its paid to eligible lenders by the yarantor with respect to defaulted loans. 

Gtioror,~tee Agrees~e~i/s. Pursuant to the Guarantee Agreenicnts, the Sccretary is to rcimbursc a guarantor for 
a statutorily-set percentage of the amounts expended in connection with a claim resulting from the death, bankn~ptcy or 
total and pcnnancnt disability ofa borrower, the death ofastudcnt whose parent is the borrower of a PLUS Loan, orclaims 
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by borrowers who are unable to complete the programs in which they are enrolled due to school closure or borrowers 
whose borrowing eligibility was falsely certified by the eligible institution. Such claims are not included in calculating 
a guamntohclairns rateexperience for federal reimbursement purposes. Generally, education loansarenon-dischargeable 
in bankruptcy unless the bankruptcy court detennines that the debt will impose an undue hardship on the borrower and 
the borrower's dependents. Further, the Secretary is to reimburse a guarantor for any amounts paid to satisfy claims not 
resulting from death, bankruptcy, or disability subject to reduction as described below. 

The Secretary may terminate Guarantee Agreernenls if the Secrclary determines that tennination is necessary to 
protect the federal financial interest or to ensure the continued availability of loans to student or parent borrowers. Upon 
termination of such agreements, the Secretary is authorized to provide the guarantor with additional advance funds with 
such restrictions on the use of such funds as is deterniined appropriate by the Secretary, in order to meet the immediate 
cash needs of the guarantor, ensure the unintempted payment of clainis, or ensure that the guarantor will make loans as 
the lender-of-last-resort. 

If the Secretary has tenninated or is seeking to terminate Guarantee Agreements, or has assumed a guarantor's 
functions, notwithstanding any otherprovision of law: (i)no state court may issuean orderaffecting the Secretary's actions 
with respect to that guarantor; (ii) any contract entered into by the guarantor with respect to the administration of the 
guarantor's reserve funds orassets acquired with reserve funds shall provide that the contract is terminable by the Secretary 
upon 30 days notice to the contracting parties if the Secretary determines that such contract includes an i~n~ennissible 
transfer of funds or assets or is inconsistent with the terns or Dumoses of the Hiehcr Education Act: and liii) no orovision . . - , ~ , . ~ ~-~~~~ 

of state law shall apply to the actions of the Secretary in terminating the operations of the guarantor. Finally, 
notwithstanding any other provision of law, the Secretary's liability for any outstanding liabilities of a guarantor (other 
than outstanding student loan guarantees under the Higher Education Act), the functions of which the Secretary has 
assumed, shall not exceed the fair market value of the reserves of the yanntor ,  minus any necessary liquidation or other 
administrative costs. 

Re ia~b~r r so~~e~ l r .  The amount of a reimbursement payment made by the Secretary to a guarantor is subject to 
reduction based upon the annual claims rate of the guarantor. The annual claims rate of a guarantor is equal to the amount 
of reinlbursement payments made by the Secretary to the guarantor during the previous fiscal year expressed as a 
percentage ofall FFELP Loans guaranteed by that guarantor and in repayment as of the last day of such preceding fiscal 
year. The clairns experience is not accumulated from year to year, but is detemiined solely on the basis of claims in any 
one federal fiscal year conipared with the original principal amount of loans in repayment at the beginning of that year. 
The fonnula for reimbursement amounts is summarized in the table below: 

GUARANTOR GUARANTOR 
CL.:\I>IS R E I \ l B U R S C I E N T  GL':\R:\ti I'OR l < ~ l \ 1 U L l 1 S ~ \ l E N ' l '  RFl\113URSE\IEST 

~ A T I  RATE FOK LOANS IL.YI'L FOR I.OASS \ IAI ) I :  RATE FOR LOAXS M A U E  

5% up lo 9% 100% of claims up to 98% of claims up to 5%; and 88% 95% of claims up to 5% and 
5%; and 90% of clainls of claims 5% and over 85% of claims 5% and over 

5% and over 

9% and over 100% of claims up to 98% of clairns up to 5%; 88% of 95% of claims up to 5%, 
5%; 90% of claims 5% claims 5% up to 9%; 78% of 85% of claims 5% up to 9%; 

up to 9%; 80% of clainis claims 9% and over 75% of claims 9% and over 
9% and over 

* Other lhm rt~ldent 103115 imndc ptrstui~t 10 the leodei-of-lost reson prognm or student loans tmnsfmcd by an insolvent guvat~tor :s lo whic11 tlm 
amount of rcinsunnce is cqod to 100%. 

The original principal aniount of loans guaranteed by a guarantor which are in repayment for purposes of 
computing reimbursement payments to a guarantor means the original principal amount of all loans guaranteed by a 



guarantor less: (i) guarantee payments on such loans, (ii) the original principal amount of such loans that have been ftllly 
repaid, and (iii) the original aliiount of such loans for which the first principal install~nent payment has not beconic due. 

In addition, the Secretary may withhold rcimbursement payments if a guarantor makes a material 
misrepresentation or fails to comply with the tenns of its agreemeots with the Secretary or applicable federal law. A 
supplen~ental guarantee agreement is subject to annual renegotiation and to tennination for cause by the Secretary. 

Under the Guarantee Agreements, if a payment on a Federal Fanlily Education Loan guaranteed by a guarantor 
is received after reimbursement by the Secretary, the Secretary is entitled to receive an equitable share of the payment. 
Guarantor retentions aRer paylnent of the Secretary's equitable share on such collections on consolidations of defaulted 
loans were reduced to 18.5% from 27% effective July I, 1997 and for other loans were reduced from 27% to 24% (23% 
effective October I ,  2003). 

Lender Agreernmrs. Pursuant to most typical agreements for guarantee between a guarantor and the originator 
of the loan, any eligible holder of a loan insured by such a guarantor is entitled to reimbursement from such guarantor of 
any proven loss incurred by the holder of the loan resulting froni default, death, pernianent and total disability or 
bankruptcy of thc student borrower at the rate of 98% of such loss subject to certain liiiiitations (1 00% for loans in default 
made on or afler October 1, 1993). Guarantors generally deem default to mean a student borrower's failure to make an 
installment payment when due or to comply with other teniis of a note or agreement under circumstances in which the 
holder of the loan may reasonably conclude that the student borrower no longer intends to honor the repayment obligation 
and for which the failure persists for 270 days in the case of a loan payable in monthly installments or for 330 days in the 
case of a loan payable in less frequent installments. When a loan becomes from 60 days past due, the holder is required 
to request default aversion assistance from the applicable guarantor in order to atten1pt to cure the delinquency. When a 
loan bcco~nes 240 days past due, the holder is required to make a final demand for payment of the loan by the borrower. 
The holder is required to continue collection efforts until the loan is 270 days past due. At the time of payment of 
insurance benefits, the holder must assign to the applicable guarantor all rights accruing to the holder under the note 
evidencing the loan. 

Any holder of a loan is required to exercise due care and diligence in the servicing of the loan and to utilize 
practices which are at least as extensive and forceful as those utilized by financial institutions in the collection of other 
consumer loans. If a guarantor has probable cause to believe that the holder has made misrepresentations or failed to 
coinply with the teniis of its agreement for guarantee, the guarantor may take reasonable action including withholding 
payments or requiring reimbursement of funds. The guarantor may also tenilinate the agreement for cause upon notice 
and hearing. 

G~ror.an/orReseive,~. Each guarantor is required to establish a Federal Student Loan Reserve Fund (the "Federal 
Fund") which, together with any earnings thereon, are deemed to be property of the United States. Each guarantor is 
required to deposit into the Federal Fund any reserve funds plus reinsurance payments received from the Secretary, the 
Secretary's share of default collections, insurance premiums, 70% of payments received as administrative cost allowance 
and other receipts as specified in regulations. A guarantor is authorized to transfer up to 180 days of cash expenses for 
normal operating expenses (other than claim payments) from the Federal Fund to the Operating Fund (described below) 
at any time during the first three years after establishment of the fund. The Federal Fund m y  be used to pay lender claims 
and to pay default aversion fees into the Operating Fund. A guarantor is also required to establish an operating fund (the 
"Operating Fund") which, except for funds transferred froni the Federal Fund, is the property ofthe guarantor. A guarantor 
nlay dcpusit into the Opcrdtin~ Fund loo11 processing and issu.inc~. fccs quai to 06Yli of'lhc total pr~nu~pal alnomt of 
lu:ms ~ncurcd J u r ~ n ~  lhc ri.;<al \.car. 3U1' J ornavnlc~ils rcicivcd i~fler Octob-I 7. 199h forth? ad~ i i i~~ i s t r a~~ve  COSI 3110~ 311.Y - , . . . ~ ~~ ~~~~- ~ ~ ~ ~ - -  

for loans insured prior to that date and the 24% retention of collectio~ls on defaulted loans and other receipts as specified 
in regulations (23% retention dateeffectiveOctober 1,2003). An Operating Fund must be used for application processing, 
loan disbursement, enrollment and repayment status management, default aversion, collection activities, compliance 
monitoring, and other student financial aid related activities. 

The Higher Education Act required the Secretary to recall S1 billion in federal reserve funds froni guarantors on 
Septeniber 1, 2002. Each guarantor was required to transfer its equitable share of the SI billion to a restricted account. 
Each guarantor was to transfer its required share to the restricted account in equal annual installments for each of the five 
federal fiscal years 1998 through 2002. However, a guarantor with a reserve ratio equal to or less than 1.1% as of 
Septeniber 30, 1996 may transfer its required s l i m  to the restricted account in four equal annual installments beginning 
in federal fiscal year 1999. The guarantor's required reserve ratio has been reduced froiii 1.1% to 2 5 % .  



The Higher Education Act provides for an additional recall of reserves fromeach Federal Fund, but also provides 
for certain minimum reserve levels which are protected from recall. The Secretary is authorized to enter into voluntary, 
flexible agreements with guarantors under which various statutory and regulatory provisions can be waived. In addition, 
under the Higher Education Act, the Secretary is prohibited from rcquiring the return of all of a guarantor's reserve fimds 
unless the Secrctary determines that the return of these funds is in the best interest of the operation of the FFELP Loan 
Program, or to ensure the proper maintenance of such guarantor's funds or assets or the orderly termination of the 
guarantor's operations and the liquidation of its assets. The Higher Education Act also authorizes the Secretary to direct 
a guarantor to: (i) return to the Secretaw all or a  ort ti on of its reserve fund that the Secretaw determines is not needcd to - . . 
pay for the guarantor's program expenscs and contingent liabil~ties; and (ii) ccasc any activities involving the expenditure, 
use or transfer of the guarantor's reserve funds or assets which the Secretary deterniines is a misapplication, misuse or 
improper expenditure. 

GUARANTOR 

Lack of Liability of Eligible Guarantors 

Ncitherthc guarantee fundsnor any otherassetsorrevenues oftheeligible guarantors, includingamounts payable 
to the eligible guarantor by the Secretary, as described abovc, are pledged as security for the 2005 Bonds or are available 
for payment of the 2005 Bonds. However, amounts paid from such assets and revenues by the eligible guarantors to the 
Corporation in fi~lfillment of the eligible guarantor insurance obligations with respect to FFELP Loans arc so pledged. 

The Guarantor 

Northwest Education Loan Association. NELA was organized as a private, non-profit corporation in November 
1978 under the General Corporation Law of the State of Washington. In accordance with its Articles of Incorporation, 
NELA (i) maintains facilities for the provision of guarantee services with respect to approved education loans made to or 
for the benefit of eligible students who are enrolled at or plan to attend approved educational institutions, (ii) guarantees 
education loans made pursuant to the Higher Education Act loan programs and (iii) serves pursuant to designation as the 
guaranty agcncy for the Fedcral Family Education Loan Programs in Washington and Idaho. Effective December 13, 
2004, United Student Aid Funds, Inc. ("USA Funds") became the sole corporate member of NELA. 

NELA contracts with Student Assistance Corporation, a wholly owned subsidiary of SLM Corporation, to 
perform default aversion services. SLM Corporation and its subsidiaries are not sponsored by nor are they agencies of 
the Unitcd Statcs of America. 

For the purpose of providing loan guarantees under the Higher Education Act, NELA has cntered into various 
agreements with the Sccretary of Education (collectively, the "Federal Reinsurance Agreements"). Pursuant to the Federal 
Reinsurance Agreements,NELA serves as a "Guaranty Agency" as defined in Section435(j) of the Higher Education Act. 
Under the terms of the Federal Reinsurance Agreements, reinsurancc is paid to NELA by the Secretary in accordance with 
a fonnula based on the annual default rate of loans guaranteed by NELA under the Higher Education Act. Under the 
Higher Education Act, certain reserve funds of a guarantee agency are considered the property of the United States and 
recalls of reserves may occur. 

At September 30, 2004, NELA had total assets in excess of $28 nlillion, including restricted assets of 
approximately $13 million. At September 30, 2004, the amount of loans guaranteed by NELA for fiscal year 2004 was 
approximately $847 million (including consolidations). 



NELA's "claims rate" (see, "INSURANCE AND GUAMNTEES-Guarantees-Rei~iibursc~nent") represents the 
percentage of default clainis (based on dollar value) submitted as reinsurance claims to the Department of Education 
relative to its existing portfolio of loans in repayment at the start of tlie federal fiscal year. Past "claims rates" were as 
follo\vs: 

Past "Claim Rates" 
3.00% 

NELA will provide a copy of its most recent annual report upon receipt of a written request directed to its 
headquarters at 190 Queen Anne Ave. N., Suite 300, Seattle, WA 98109, Attention: Executive Director. 

Reimbursement 

The original principal amount of loans guaranteed by a guaranty agency which are in repayment for purposes of 
computing reimbursement payments to a guaranty agency means the original principal amount of all loans yannteed by 
a guaranty agency less: (1) guarantee payments on such loans, (2) thc original principal amount of such loans that have 
been fully repaid, and (3) tlie original amount of such loans for wliicli the first principal installment payment has not 
become due. 

In addition, the Secretary may withhold reimbursement payments if a guaranty agency makes a material 
misrepresentation or fails to comply with the temis of its agreements with the Secretary or applicable federal law. A 
supplemental Guaranty Agreement is subject to annual renegotiation and to termination for cause by the Secretary. The 
Corporation has no knowledge as to whether any aforementioned supple~nental Guaranty Agreement will be renegotiated 
or, if renegotiated, whether it will be renegotiated on the same temis or terms diffcrent from those that are currently i n  
effect. 

Under the Guaranty Agrecrnents and the supplemental guaranty agreements, if a paymcnt on a FFELP Loan 
guaranteed by a guaranty agency is received after reimbursement by the Secretary, the Secretary is entitled to receive an 
equitable share of the payment. 

Tlie Corporation (or any other liolder of a Loan) is required to exercise due care and diligence in the servicing 
of the Loan and to utilize practices which are at lcast as extensive and forceful as those utilized by financial institutions 
in the collection of other consumer loans. If a guaranty agency has probable cause to believe that the holder lias made 
misrepresentations or failed to comply with the tenns of its agreement for guarantee, the guaranty agency niay take 
reasonable action including withholding paynients or requiring reimbursement of funds. Prior to theend of the initial term 
(or any renewal period), temiination of the agreement by the guarantor would entail notice and the opportunity for a 
hearing. The guarantor has other interini remedies, including emergcncy suspension, and the Secrctary has independent 
remedies. 

LOAN SERVICING AND COLLECTION 

General 

TIieCo~n~iiissionservices the Education Loans owned by theCorporation, includingall AlaskAdvantagcO Loans, 
except to the extent that certain collection activities are delegated to private contractors. The Education Loan Notes 
evidencing the Education Loans will be secured in fireproofcabinets maintained at the offices of the Commission, which 
are also the offices of the Corporation. As described under "THE ALASKA STUDENT LOAN 
CORPORATlONlALASKA COMMlSSlON ON POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION," tlic Corporation does not have 
its own independent staff; tlie staff of the Commission scrves as staff of the Corporation. 

The Commission presently uses education loan scn#icing software froincharter Accounts Systems, lnc. to service 
the Education Loans. The purcliase of the software included the source code, the possession of wliicli etiablcs tlie 



Commission programming staff to enhance reporting capabilities and to service FFELP Loans and Alternative Loans on 
a single scrvicing platforni. 

Servicing of Education Loans 

The Commission services the portfolio of Education Loans owned by the Corporation except as othenvise noted 
above. The Corporation may, in the future, use any other entity or person to service its loans. The Corporation expects 
that all Education Loans pledged as sccurity for payment of the Bonds will be serviced by the Commission or another 
servicer. The servicer will maintain custody of the Education Loans pursuant to a Custody Agreement with the 
Corporation and the Statc of Alaska. 

The Higher Education Act requires the exercise of due diligence in the collection of FFELP Loans. The Higher 
Education Act defines due diligence as requiring the use of collcction practices at least as extensive and forceful as those 
generally practiced by financial instihltions for the scrvicing and collection of consumer loans. See, "INSURANCE AND 
GUARANTEES - Fcderal Insurance-Lender Agreenients." The Higher Education Act also requires the exercise of 
reasonable careanddiligence in tl~emakingandcollection ofFFELP Loans, and provides that the Secretary may disqualify 
an "eligible lender" (which could include the Corporation or the Trustee as a holder of FFELP Loans) from further federal 
insurance if the Secretary is not satisfied that the foregoing standards have been, or will be, met. An eligible lender may 
not relieve itself of its responsibility for meeting these standards by delegation of its responsibility to any servicing agent 
and, accordingly, ifthe servicer fails to meet such standards, the Corporation's ability to realize the benefits of insurance 
may be adversely affected. 

The Higher Education Act rcquircs that a guaranty agency, such as NELA, ensure that due diligence will be 
exercised by an eligible lender in making and collecting FFELP Loans guaranteed by such guaranty agency and in 
collecting loans which it holds. The Commission and other servicers of the FFELP Loans owned by the Corporation have 
established procedures and standards for due diligence to be exercised. If the Commission or any other such servicer does 
not comply with the established due diligence standards, the Corporation's ability to realize the benefits of any guaranty 
may be adversely affected. NELA is obligated under its disburscnient agreenient with the Commission to cxercise due 
diligence and to ensure that its subcontractors exercise due diligence within the meaning of the Higher Education Act. 

Collection 

The Conlmission has authority to facilitate collection on accounts, with respect to Alternative Loans, that are at 
least one hundred eighty days (180) past due without the necd to secure a judgnient issued by a court using various 
administrative collection tools including wage garnishment in Alaska, withholding the renewal of an Alaska occupational 
license, seizure of the State of Alaska Permanent Fund Dividend, and issuing a lien against real propcrty. 

The Alaska State Permanent Fund (the "Permanent Fund") is a fund held and managed by the State, which was 
established by an amendment to the State Constitution in 1976. A percentage of the State's oil and gas royalties is 
deposited each year into the Pennanent Fund. Currently, a portion of the Permanent Fund's earnings is paid annually to 
qualifying State residents who apply for it (the "Permanent Fund Dividend"). The Commission may seize a borrower's 
Pennanent Fund Dividend, ifany, to satisfy the balance of a defaulted education loan. There can be no assurance that the 
Pern~anent Fund Dividcnd program will continue. The Pennanent Fund Dividcnd can be eliminated or reduced by an 
amendment to the Alaska State Constitution, Alaska Stahltes or by failure of the Legislature to appropriate the amount 
produced by the statutory formula. 

The Coniniission also uses collection agencies to provide debt collection on certain accounts that are at least hvo 
hundred and seventy (270) days past due. The contracts w ~ t h  collection agencies are contingcncy fee based, covering the 
cost of pursuing collcction of defaulted loans, including additional skip tracing, legal fees, and judgment enforcement. 



LOAN ORIGINATION 

General 

Following is a general sununary of the chronology of an Alternat~ve Loan and a FFELP Loan. While in most 
situations borrowers do not follow exactly the same flow ofevents from the inception of their loan to the last payment of 
their loan, and in certain cases there are noneonformities with regular procedure, this summary does provide a gencral 
description of the material events in the life of the Alternative Loan and FFELP Loan. 

Alternative Loans 

Loan Applicatio!~ and Payment. After an application for an Alternative Loan is received it is reviewed for 
completeness, and a review of the applicant's credit history, compliance with any outstanding child suppon enforcement 
obligation, and compliance with applicable selective service registration requirements is performed. If the applicant does 
not have an adverse credit history, is in colnpliance with any outstanding child support enforcement obligation, and is 
compliant with applicable selective service requirements the Alternative Loan is approved. Once approved, the borrower 
is sent notification of the award and disbursements are sent to the school. Following the borrower's last datcof attendance, 
and after a grace period, repayment commences. 

Lom~Repayn~e~~t.  Provided the borrower continues to make scheduled monthly payments, the borrower receives 
a monthly bill from the Connnission and remains in the repayment cycle until the Alternative Loan is paid in full. At that 
tinie, a "paid in full" letter and the cancelled promissory note is sent to the borrower. 

Activity Prior to Defaulr. When a borrower fails to make a payment when due, the borrower's next billing 
statement contains text reminding the borrower that the payment is delinquent. The past due status is reflected in each 
subsequent monthly billing until the Alternative Loan is brought current. If the loan was made with a co-signer, the due 
diligence notices will also be sent to the co-signer. Theco-signer's obligation to repay the Alternative Loan begins when 
the borrower's obligatioll beginsand continues even ifthe borrower's obligation to repay the AIternativc Loan isdischarged 
or canceled before thc Alternative Loan, including interest, is repaid in full. In addition, during the tinie that the sclieduled 
payment is between thirty (30) and one hundred eighty (180) days past due, due diligence staff make attempts, by 
telephone and regular mail, to contact the borrower and co-signer in each 30-day period. If both the borrower and 
co-signer fail to respond to the contact or fail to bring the account current, or if the borrower or the co-signer make 
arrangements to bring the account current but fail to keep thearrangement, the Alternative Loan will be nianually reviewed 
by staff. If the following criteria are met, the Altemativc Loan is transferred ton collection agency for further collection 
action: (i) the Alternative Loan is at least two hundred seventy (270)' days past due; (ii) neither the borrower nor the 
co-signer has contacted the Commission to make alternate payment arrangements (or the borrower or co-signer has made 
alterrite payment arrangcments but has not kept the amngcment); (iii) thc Commission has exhausted all administrative 
nicasures for collection; and (iv) the borrower and the co-signer have received all appropriate past due notlces including 
a demand letter. 

In addition to staff comniunications directed to the borrower and the co-signer, due diligence staff also infornis 
the institution which thc borrower attended when such borrower's loan becomes 60 days or more past due. Institutional 
staff then verifies OF updates contact infomiation last known for the borrower (which may include information regarding 
any known employer) and also may engage in institution-based default rnanagenient activities. Due diligence staff 
provides this inforniation to the institutions on a monthly basis through paper rosters and electronic media. 

Rel~abilitatio~r. The Coniniission is authorized to establish a rehabilitation loan program for Alternative Loans 
which are 271, or more, days past due. Such program could allow the borrower to regain eligibility under the Loan 
Program with an alternative repayment schedule, loan defeniient, or loan forbearance. No such program is presently 
approved by the Conimission. 

Forheararlce. The Conmission provides Alternative Loan borrowers with niandatory forbearance optio~is to 
confonii with those offered through the FFELP Loan program. I-lowever, any additional forbearance may be granted at 



the sole discretion of the Commission in cases where, because of tempora~y hardship, a borrower is willing but unable to 
pay in accordance with the repayment schedule. Forbearance would not be authorized when the borrower is unwilling to 
pay. The borrower must submit a request for forbearance and, for a forbearance period of more than six months in length, 
provide other documentation supporting the request. Upon receipt of a written request for forbearance of the principal 
payment from an eligible borrower, forbearance will be granted for a period of time at the discretion of the Conmmission, 
but for a period of no longer than 36 months. 

FFELP Loans 

Loan Applicafion andPay~nenf. The borrower submits a loan application to the Connnission either directly, or 
through the school or the Guarantor. The Commission then sends the borrower a notification of the award, once the 
guarantee is secured. Loan disbursements are sent to the scl~ool. Following the borrower's last datc of attendance, after 
a grace period of, generally, six months in length, repayment commences. 

Loan Repaymenf. Generally borrowers are billed and make payment on a monthly schedule, and remain in the 
repayment cycle until the loan is paid in full. At that time, a "paid in full" letter, and the cancelled promissory note, are 
sent to the borrower. 

TAX EXEMPTION 

In the opinion of Bond Counsel, based on an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings and court decisions 
and assuming, among other things, compliance with certain covenants, interest on the 2005 Bonds is excluded from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes. Interest on the 2005 Bonds is a specific preference item for purposes of the 
federal individual and corporate alternative minimum taxes. 

Bond Counsel is also of the opinion based on cxisting laws of the State as enacted and construed that interest on 
the 2005 Bonds is excluded from taxation by the State except for inl~eritance and estate taxes and taxes on transfers by 
or in contemplation of death and except to the extent that inclusion of said interest in con~puting the alternative minimum 
tax under the Code may affect the corresponding provisions of the State income tax. 

The Code imposes various restrictions, conditions, and rcquirements relating to the exclusion from gross income 
for federal inconic tax purposes of interest on obligations such as the 2005 Bonds. The Corporation has covenanted to 
coniply with certain restrictions designed to assure that interest on the 2005 Bonds will not be included in federal gross 
income. Failure to comply with these covenants may result in interest on the 2005 Bonds being included in federal gross 
income, possibly from the datc of issuance of the Bonds. The opinion of Bond Counsel assumes compliance with these 
covenants. Bond Counsel has not undertaken to determine (or to inforni any pcrson) whether any actions taken (or not 
taken) or events occurring (or not occurring) after the date of issuance of the 2005 Bonds may adversely affect the tax 
status of interest on the 2005 Bonds. 

Although Bond Counsel has rendered an opinion that interest on the 2005 Bonds is excluded from gross income 
for federal income tax purposes, the ownership or disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, such 2005 Bonds 
mav othcnvise affect a Bondholder's federal or state tax liabilih.. The nature and extent of these other tax conseauences ~.~~~ ~ ~~~~~~~ 

will depend upon the Bondholder's particular tax status and the Bondholder's other items of income or deduction. Bond 
Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any other tax consequences relating to the ownership or disposition of, or the 
accrual or receipt of interest on, the 2005 Bonds. 

A description of the proposed opinion of Bond Counsel is set forth in APPENDIX IV hereto and such opinion 
is to be delivered with the 2005 Bonds. 

Original Issue Prcmiuni 

The initial public offering price for the 2005 Bonds is greater than the amount payable on such 2005 Bonds at 
maturity. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion with respect to the treatment of this excess. Investors should seek advice 
thereon from their own tax advisors. 



THE TRUSTEE 

The Corporation has appointed U S .  Bank National Association, Seattle, Washington, as successor Trustee for 
tlie 2005 Bonds. The Trustee is to cany out such duties as are assigned to it under the Indenture and the Continuing 
Disclosure Certificate. 

The TruStce did not participate in the preparation of this Official Statement and makes 110 representations 
concerning tlie 2005 Bonds, the collateral or any other matter stated in this Official Statement. The Trustee has no duty 
or obligation to pay the 2005 Bonds fro111 its own funds, assets or corporate capital or to make inquiry regarding, or 
investigate tlie use of amounts disbursed from tlie Trust Estate. 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

In order to assist tlie Undenvriter in complying witli Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange 
Comiiission (the "Rule"), tlie Corporation will agree to provide continuing disclosure for the benefit of the registered 
owners and beneficial owners of the 2005 Bonds, by executing and delivering a certificate for the benefit oftlie registered 
ow~iers and beneficial owners of the Bonds (the "Continuing Disclosure Certificate"). The Corporation will undertake to 
provideeachNationally Recognized Municipal Securities Information Repository (the "Repositoly"), and ifand when one 
is established, tlie Alaska State Infonilation Depository, on an annual basis on or before 215 days after the end of each 
fiscal year for the Corporation, co~ntne~ici~ig with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2005, the financial and operating data 
concerning thecorporation outlined in the Continuing Disclosure Certificate. The annual financial andoperating data will 
include (i) the Corporation's audited financial statements and (ii) infonnation with respect to the Education Loans held 
pursuant to the Indenture (in a fonnat similar to that provided in this Official Statement under the captions "PLAN OF 
FMANCE - Characteristics of Education Loans" and "PLAN OF FMANCE - Loan Delinquencies and Defaults"). In 
addition, tlie Corporation will undertake for tlie benefit of the registered owners and beneficial owners of the 2005 Bonds, 
to provide to each such Repository or to the Municipal Securities Ruleniaking Board, and to the State Information 
Depository, in a timely manner, the event notices described in the Continuing Disclosure Certificate. 

The sole and exclusive remedy for breach or default under the Continuing Disclosure Certificate is an action to 
compel specific pcrfonnance of the undertakings of the Corporation, and no person, including a registered owner or 
beneficial owner of the 2005 Bonds, may recover monetary damages tliereunder under any circumstances. A breach or 
default under the Continuing Disclosure Certificate shall not constitute an Evcnt of Default under the Indenture. In 
addition, if all or any part of the Rule ceases to be in effect for any reason, then the infonnation required to be provided 
under tlie Continuing Disclosure Certificate, insofar as tile provision of the Rule no longer in effect required the provision 
of such infomiation, shall no longer be required to be provided. 

The Corporation reserves the right to make all filings pursuant to the temis of the Continuing Disclosure 
Certificate in accordance witli the Securities and Exchange Commission Interpretive Letter dated September 7,2004, with 
w~nv.disclosureusa.ors, 

The Corporation has never failed to comply in any material rcspect with any previous undertaking with respect 
to the Rule to provide annual financial information or notices of material events. 

ABSENCE OF LITIGATION 

There isnocontroversy or litigation ofany nature now pending or tlireatcncdrestrainingorenjoining the issuance, 
sale, execution or delivery of tlie 2005 Bonds or in any way contesting or affecting tlie validity of the 2005 Bonds or any 
proceedings of the Corporation taken with respect to the issuance or sale thercofor the pledgeor application ofany moneys 
or securities provided for tlie payment of 2005 Bonds or the existe~ice or powers of the Corporation. 

FINANCIAL ADVISOR 

Public Financial Management, Minneapolis, Minnesota, has becn retained by thecorporation to serve as financial 
advisor witli respect to tlie 2005 Bonds. The financial advisor has assisted the Corporation in matters relating to the 
planning, structuring and issuance of the 2005 Bonds and various other debt-related matters. 



LEGALlTY 

The 2005 Bonds are subject to approval of validity by Wohlforth, Johnson, Brecht, Cartledge & Brooking, P.C., 
Anchorage, Alaska, Bond Counsel. Certain other legal matters will be passed upon for the Corporation by thc State 
Attorney General. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriter by Ballard Spahr Andrews & Ingcrsoll, 
LLP, Salt Lake City, Utah. 

FlNANClAL STATEMENTS OF THE CORPORATlON 

The financial statements oftlieCorporation included in this Official Statement as APPENDIX I have been audited 
by Elgee Rehfeld Mertz, LLC, Independent Auditors, to the extent and for the periods indicated in their report thereon. 

LEGAL 1NVESTMENT IN ALASKA 

The Act provides, subject to any applicable federal requirement or limitation, that the bonds of the Corporation 
are securities in which public officers and bodies of the State, municipalities, insurance companies, insurance associations, 
other persons carrying on an insurance business, banks, bankers, trust companies, savings banks, savings associations, 
building and loan associations, investment companies, other persons carrying on a banking business, administrators, 
guardians, executors, trustees, other fiduciaries, and other persons who are authorized to invest in bonds or other 
obligations ofthe State, may properly and legally invest funds including capital in theircontrol orbelonging to them. The 
Act further states that, nohvithstanding any other provisions of law, the bonds of the Corporation are also securities tliat 
may be deposited with and may be received by public officers and bodies of the State and municipalities for any purpose 
for which the deposit of bonds or other obligations of the State is now or may be authorizcd. 

PLEDGE AND AGREEMENT OF THE STATE 

In the Act, the State pledges to, and agrees with, registcred owners of bonds issued by the Corpomtion that the 
State will not limit or alter the rights and powers vested in the Corporation under Alaska Statutes, Sections 14.42.100 
through 14.42.990, to fulfill the tcmis of a contract made by the Corporation with the bondholders or in any way impair 
the rights and remedies of the bondholders until the bonds, together with the interest on thcm with interest on unpaid 
installments of interest, and all costs and expenses in connection with ao action or proceeding by or on behalf of the 
bondholders, are fully met and discharged. In accordance with the Act, the Corporation has included this pledge and 
agreement of the State in the hidenture. 

RATINGS 

The 2005 Bonds mill be issued as Class I Bonds under the Indenture, and it is expected that the 2005 Bonds will 
be rated upon issuance " M A "  by Fitch and "AAA" by Standard & Poor's. Under the tenns of the Indenture, the 
Corporation has the ability to change rating agencies at its discretion and no assurance can be given that the Corporation 
will continue to request ratings of the Bonds from either of the ratings agencies that originally provided a rating for the 
Bonds. The Indenture, however, requires that the Bonds be rated by at least one nationally recognized rating agency and 
that one of such rating agencies be either Standard & Poor's or Moody's. 

Any explanation ofthe significance of such ratings by Fiteh may be obtained from Fitch at One State Street Plaza, 
New York, New York 10004, (212) 908-0500 and any explanation of such ratings by Standard & Poor's may bc obtained 
from Standard & Poor's at 55 Water Street, New York, New York 10041, (212) 438-2124. Certain information and 
materials concerning the 2005 Bonds and the Corpomtion, some of which have not been included in this Official 
Statement, were furnished to such rating agencies by the Corporation and others. There is no assurance that any such 
rating will be maintained for any given period oftime or tliat it will not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely if, in 
the judgment of the applicable rating agency, circumstances so warmnt. Any such downward revision or withdrawal of 
any such rating may have an adverse cffect on the market price or marketability of the applicable 2005 Bonds. 



UNDERWRITING 

The Undenvritcr has agreed to purchase the 2005 Bonds at an aggregate price of par plus prcmium. The 
Undenvriter is to be paid an underwriting fee of approximately S400,760.00. The purchase contracts provide that the 
Undenvriter is not obligated to purchase any 2005 Bonds on their date of issuance unless all such 2005 Bonds are 
purchased. The initial public offering priccs or yields set forth on the covcr page hereof may bc changed by RBC Dain 
Rauscher From time to time without notice. The 2005 Bonds may be offered and sold to ccrtain dealers (including RBC 
Dain Rauscher and other dealers depositing such 2005 Bonds into invest~nent trusts) at prices or yields lower than the 
public offering prices or yields shown on the covcr. Although there can be no assurance that any market will commence 
or be maintained, the Undenvriter expects to make a niarket in the2005 Bonds after the initial public offcring. It is likely 
that any market that develops will be at prices different from the initial offering priccs or yields. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

All quotations from, and summaries and explanations of, the State, the Act, the Higher Education Act, the 
Indenture (including supplcnients thereto) and any other documents and agreements contained herein do not purport to 
be complete, and reference should be niadc to said laws, docunients and agreements for full and complete statements of 
their provisions. The Appendices attached hereto are a part of this Official Statcnient. Copies, in reasonable quantity, of 
the Indenture and tlie othcr documents and agreements describcd herein may be obtained upon request directed to Alaska 
Student Loan Corporation, Attn: ExecutiveOfficer, 3030 VintageBoulevard, Juneau, Alaska99801-7 109 orto theTrustee, 
US.  Bank National Association, 1420 FiAh Avenue, 7th Floor, Seattle, Washington 98101, Attn: Corporate Trust 
Department. 

Any statements in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so stated, are 
intended as such and not as representations of fact. This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract or 
agreement behveen the Corporation and tlie purcliasers or rcgistered owners of the 2005 Bonds. 

EXECUTION O F  OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

The cxccution and delivcry of this Official Statement has bccn authorized by the Corporation 

ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 

By:: Is1 Diane Barrans 
Diane Barnns 
Executive Officer 
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APPENDIX I 

Audited Combined Financial Statements of the Corporation - June 30,2004 and 2003 
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Alaska Student Loan Corporation 

Tlie -4laska Student Loan Corporation (Corporation) I'unctions as a lender and scmiccr of 
cducation loans. Thc hllowing is a discussion and analysis of the Corporation's linancial 
pcrl'onnance, pro\:itling an overview of the activities for the fiscal ycar cndcd June 30. 
2004. This discussion and analysis contains otlicr supplcmcntary i n h n ~ a t i o n  in atltlition 
to the basic financial statements for the year cndcd Junc 30, 2004. Please rend it in 
coiljunction with the Corporation's linancial statements and the notes to financial 
statements, which follow this section. 

Financial Highlights 

Thc Corporation's total assets at June 30; 2004 were approxiniatcly $9S0.6 
million, which is an incrwse oS$146.8 million ur 18% over h u e  30. 2003. 

The Corporation's long-term dcbt increased by $146.6 million during liscal ycal- 
2003, which represents the net difference between ncw issues and payments and 
r e l l n d i n ~  o f  outstanding debt. During the year the Corporation issued bonds in  
the amount of  $190.2 million. 

'l'hc asscts of the Corporation csccedul its liahilitics at the close of the fiscal ycar 
by $25 1.5 million (reported as net assets), a decrease in net  assets of $71.5 million 
or 33% over Junc 30: 200.3. 

The Corporation's education loans receivable was $577.2 million at year-end; an 
increase ol'$11.1 million during the pear. 

'lhe Corporation's operating rcvcnue was Si8.7 million, an incl-case of S1.5 
million during t l~c  ycar. 

The Corporation's interest expense was $1 9.7 million during the ycar. 

The Corporation's cxpcnscs related to opcrntions was $8.9 million during tiscal 
year 2004. 

Overview of the Financial Statemenis 

'lhe Corporatio~~ is an cntcrprisc fund of the State o f  Alaska. As sucht the Corporation's 
finarlcial stotcn~cills are pi-cpt-etl in conhrnlity with accounting principles gcncrally 
accepted i n  the llnitcd Statcs as applictl on an accrual basis. Untlcr thc accronl method u f  
accounting, t l ~c  same mctllotl uscd hy private scctor busincsscs. rcvcnues are recoynizcd 
in tllc period i n  which the); m-c earned and espcnses ;I]-c recoynizetl in the pcriotl in whicli 
they arc incunzd. Tlie three basic tin;tnci:tl statements of the Corporation are as i\)lltr\vs: 



Alaska Student 1,oan Corporation 

hlAN,\GE41EN'I"S D1SC:USSION AND ANALYSIS 

Balance Sheets - 'I'his statcrncnt prcscnls inhnnation rcsarding the Corpo~-ation's nsscts, 
liabilities and nct asscts. Net assets I-epresent the total amount of assets less thc total o l  
liabilities. The Balance Sheets clirssitl issets. liabilities, and net nsscts as current, now 
current, and reslrictecl. 

Statement of l ievc~~,cs, .E~pcnscs.  and Cllanecs in Net Assets - This stntement prcscnts 
the Corporation's iritcrcst inconle, costs o l  Vuntls, ope.raling expenses. and changes in nct 
asscts for the tiscal year. 

Stalenxnt of  Cash Flows - 'l'llis statement presents cash flows from operations, non- 
capital tinancing, capital, and investing activities. The Corporation presents its cash 
flows statement using the direct method of reporting operating cash flows. 

Financial Analysis 

'l'he followitig contlcrlscd financial infhmialion was dcrived li-om the Corporation's 
financial statctncnts arid rcflccts the Corporalion's cliangcs during the fiscal year: 

Assets: 
Cun-cnt asscls 
Restricted assets 

Total nsscts 

Pcrccnrage 
2003 2003 . Change 

S 33,673,030 3 1,020,062 9% 

1.iahilitics: 
Current liabilitics paynble 

Srmr~ i~nrcstriclcd ;~sscts IO.S63,315 19,680,723 (14%) 
Current liabilities payable 
Ihm rcslrictcd assets 173,057,240 42.1303 19 31196 

Non-currcnt lialdirics payahlo 
liom rc~trictcd ;Issets 

l'otul liabilities 

Nct asscts: 
I<cslricul ncl assets 2.35,M6.077 3 1 1 .603,140 (24%) 

C)riginntion fccs nf $1.4 niillior~ were colle~rccl on loan litntiings during tile ycar. 
bowcvcr, tllc annual i ransh-  li-om the wigination fee illntl lo rcimbursc thc trust fitrltls ihr 
\vrite-offs did not occut- until citter June 30 ,  2004. C)rigitlntion fees in  tlic :lmr)unl $1.2 
inillion were uscd to covcr loan losses and as 3 rcs~tlt: rccluccd t l ~ c  d e f e ~ ~ e t l  credit account 
u~idcr tlic currcnl liabilitics scclion. 



Alaska Student Loan Corporation 

MAN,kGERIENT'S DISCCSSION 1iND ANALYSIS 

Restricted assets, current liabilities payable from rcstricktl assets, and lion-cunrnt 
li;thiIities payable kom restricted asscts increased kern the prior year as a result of  
increased bonding activity during thc ycar antl a Lotal of SS0.6 million return of capital 
payable lo the St:~te in fY2005. 

The C'oyoration issued the 2004 Series bonds in thc amount of S115.1 million to relund 
outstanding bonds and provide funding for the Corporation's loan programs. Tlie 
rehndiiigs included S13.1 million for tlic early redemption of  the I994 Series A bonds 
dntcd July 1: I994 and S26.4 million Tor the early redemption of a portion of the 2002 
Senior Scries A bonds dated Junc 4.2002. 

The Corporation issucd Capital Pro.iect l levcm~c loncls 2001 Scries A in the amount of  
$75.1 million to pay for $75 million of capital projects for the State. 'l'his payment is a 
return of capital providcd by the State for the crcatlon of  thc Corporatiot~. 

Reginning in FY2003, the Coilxwition changcd its nicthod of amortizing bond issuance 
costs from the cfi'ective interest method to thc straight-line method as tnanage~nent 
believes rhc straight-line method is more understandable given thc nature of the 
Corporation's variahle I-ate bonds. Thc cumulative etlecl of the change in amortization 
method recognized in FY2003 was S 1.6 million. 

In IT2003 thc Cor~ot-ation modified the lorn allowance estimate for nwre mature loans 
in the porthlio k t  better recognize thc positive impact of ongoins loan se~vieing and 
collection improvements. 'l'hc cu~nulative eft'ect o f  this cliangc was a reduction in thc 
allo\vance lix loan loss of S 10.4 million i n  FY2001. 

Pcrccotnge 
1004 .... . . . .  . 2003 Clianue 

Operating rcvcnuc-lorn inlcrcsr inconit: R 38,657,784 37,154,043 4% 
O~eratinz esnenses ( I  1.821.508) ( 10.335.689) (33%) - ,  
Nan-operaling cspcnse. net 

Inco~iic Iirlbrc cutnul;~liuc cfkct 
Cumulative effect nl'clinnw 

Speci:~l item, rcturn olc;~pital (S0:600.000) ............... ~~. (5,OOo.OOO) . . . . . . .  (1 5UO%) 
lt~crci~sc i l l  net ilsscts (71 1557S)S73 21,510,770 (433%) 

Nct assets beginning 323.032.770 ....... .- .... 301.522.000 . .~ -?"I I /n 
- .- 

Nct ;~ssc~s  - cndin:, $; 25 1 .~175,0112 .);3,032,779 (22%) '1 1 

---- -.. 

'She Corl)oratici~i 111-ovided bor~.o\+scrs with an intcl-est cost rcclt~ction ihr all loans wit11 
inwes[ ~-;ttes esccetling S.3'!4 for the th id  year in a row. I'hc a s p g a l e  be~iefit rcsulkti 
in ;I reduction in ir~conuc 01' SSS.?.000 and $1.1 inillion i n  FY200.I antl FYZ003, 
respwtivcly. 



Alaska Student Loan Corporation 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANA1,YSlS 

Intcrcst inconic finin inveshnents. which is repol-ted as a non-operating itcm. fell $4 
million from the lx-e\:ious year as  a result of low market intcrcst rates. 

The net non-operating cxpcnsc amount in FY2003 was in~pacted by an ;~llowancc for 
loan loss adjustment. 

Spccial item, return of  capital, represents payments to the Statc of  Alaska as allowetl for 
hy statute. An annual payment as dctcrmincd by tlic Corporation's Board of' Directors is 
based on the amount of  the Corporation's incomc bcforc spccial i t e m  during the fiscal 
year entiins two years beforc thc end of the Iiscal ycar in which the paynent is to bc 
niade. Atiditionally, the Corporation issucd bonds in FY2004 to finance capital projcets 
of thc Statc of  Alaska. 

Q x p ~ t . ~ g n A c l i v i ~ i t i c s  g d  Conditions Affectinr Financial Position 

The Alaska Commission on Postsecondary Etlucation (Coniniission) adrniniskrs the 
Co~-poration's pro3;miss. C)perating expenditures of  the Conxnission are subject to 
budgetary appropriation. T l ~ e  Corporation reimburses the Conimission fix sucli 
expenditures that relate to the prosram administration and arc permitted under the bond 
intlentures o f the  Corporation. 

The ~ L I I ~ O S ~  o f  the loan program is to providc low cost loans to Alaskws pursuing 
education and training at a postsecondary lcvcl and to other qualitietl individuals 
attending postsecondary institutions in thc Statc. 

'iistorically, the Corpol-ation has provided various alternative etlucation loan programs 
under the u~iibrclla titlc of the Alaska Student [.om Program. The C:orporation modified 
and broadcncd its program nf~erings heginning in ihe 2002-2003 acatlc~nic ycar hy 
iniplcnlcntin~ a s~~cccssor  progum, the Al~iskAtlva~it;~g~:~X~ Loan Progrcim, which includes 
Fcdcml Family Educalion Loan I'rogr:~m (1:I'EL.I') loans govcr~icd by Ihc I-liyher 
Education Act. The Corpol-ation also replaced its fixed rntc altcrnativc loan, the Alaska 
Student I.oan, with a new variablc rate altcrnativc loan. thc Alaska S~lpplemental 
Education Loan (ASEL). 

To acconin~odatc FFELP Icnding, the Commission securetl the status of "cli!jblc lender" 
under the Miglier Education Act and entered into various aprccrncnts wilh Nmlhwest 
Etlucation i .o ;~n Association. to sewe as tlic Conimission's "cligihle gumnntor" under the 
Higher Education Act. Loans authorized under the Highel- Education Act which tlic 
Corporation is fundins include Subsitlizcd Staf1i)rtl; Ilnsubsitlized Stafford. and PLIJS 
loans. The Hishcr Etlucation Act provides for federal (i) insurmcc or reinsurance of  
eligible loans. ( i i )  interest subsidy paymcnt to cligiblc lcndcrs with respect to ce~tain 
Subsidized Stafford loans_ and (iii) special :~llowance payments rcprcscnting an 
additional subsidy paid hy the Secrcli~ry of (he C1.S. Dcp:~rtnicnt of  Etlucatiori to holders 
o f  eligihlc loans. For ;I loan loss to bc eligible for rcin~burscnicnt to ;I Iendcr by a 



Alaska Stndcnt Loan Corporation 

RIANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSlON AND ANALYSIS 

guxantor the loan must he serviced according t o  standards set hy fctieral statutes and 
rcgolations. 

The interest rate on FFELP loans is variable: reset annu;tlly on each July I .  Suhsitli~ed 
Stafford and unsuhsidizetl Stallbrtl Loans which are in in-school. gracc, and dek~rnen t  
pcriods hcar interest at a rate equivalent to the 91-day 'f-bill ratc plns 1.7%. with a 
niasimum rate of 8.25%. Subsidized Stafford and unsubsidized Stalfortl loans in all 
nther peliotls bear interest at a ratc cquivalcnt to the 91-day T-hill rate plus 2.3%. with a 
~naximum rate of 8.25%. PLUS loans bear interest at a rate equivalent to the 91-day T- 
bill rate plus 3.1%, with a ~naxirnum 01'9%. 

In April 2004, the Corporahn began offering n new fedewl consolidation loan for any 
borrower already having a loan with the Corporation. Federal consolida~ion loans hear 
intcrcst at a rate equal to the weighted average o f  the interest rates of the lams 
consolidated, rounded to the nearest higher one-cigllth of I%, with a maxi~iwm rate of 
8.25%,. 

The interest rate thr the ASEL is xljustcd annually on or after June I and effcctivc for the 
next twelve inonths beginning July I .  According to State statute, the viiriable interest 
rates are to be based on the bond cquivalcnt rate of 91-day T-bill auctioned at  the tinal 
auction held before .lune I of the loan year plus up to 2.8% and are to be ceppcd at 
8.25% 

In fiscal year 2003, the Co~poration ollkred a new supplemental consolidation loan to 
borl-owers who lind two or  niore lixeti rate Alaska Stutlent I..oans. 'fhc supplclnental 
consolidation loan criteria has h e w  expanded to include any supplemcntnl loan of the 
Corporation except thc Family Etlucatiun 1-oan. The supplemental consolidation loans 
accnrc intcrcst at lixed rates between 3.8% and 6%. 

Tlic AlaskAdvantagd@ Program was st~-ncturctl to provide eligible student horrotvcrs 
with low cost tintuicial aid options. It cncouragcs students to take atlvantage of fcdcral 
aid resources to maximizc their grant and lowest cost loan options prior to tapping into 
altel-native loan sources. Tlic ikdcral loan progcin1 allows borrowers to create a serialized 
note with a givcn lcndcr. 

Bctwccn fiscal yeas 2003 and 2004. thc Col-pornlion saw a 1054 increase in loan 
01-iginations t~ntl had the highest volume of rc~leral loan awards in the state as co~npascti 
to other fetlerd education loan providers in Alaska. Federal loan origi~iitions incre:ised 
by 64'!4 bctwccri fiscal year 2003 and 1004. 

To fncilitatc linmcing the progr;l~n, the Corporation issued $1 15. I  nill lion of tas-cxclnpt, 
limiled ohligation. etlucntion loan rc \uwc  h o ~ d s  uritlcr the 2002 Master ' l 'n~st I~ide~i~ure .  



Alaska Student Loan Corporation 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANA1,YSIS 

The bond issuancc included refmding bonds, which included $13.1 million ihr \he early 
redemption of thc 1994 S e ~ i e s  A R o d s  anti $26.4 million for t l x  early redemption of a 
vortion of ihe Senior Series 2002 A Uontls. 

Under the AlaskAdvantageE Program the C:or])or;ition's Board of Directors has approved 
various loan benefit features that provide inccntivcs and rcwards Lo hossowers who 
psrticipale in the program. 

Under ~ h c  AlaskAdvantage:~ Borrower Bcnclit Program, cn'ective July 1 ,  2004 through 
June 30, 2005, borrowers with qualified loans held by the Colporation arc cligihle for 
certain interest rate rcductions or rchaks on any such iom. 

Rorrower Licnefit Progam ofl'c~ings are subject to the availability of funds and annual 
~notlifications or tcnnination hy the Corporation at its discretion provitlcd, however, that 
any changes do not advcrscly ef'feet the credit rating of certain bonds issued by the 
Corporation. 

contact in^ the Corpolaiion's Financial h'lanaven~cnt 

This financial report is tlesi~netl to provide our customers, invcslors, 2nd creditors with n 
general ovcrview of the Corporation's finances and to demonstrate he  Corporation's 
accountabilily tor its assets. If you h a w  any questions ahout this report or nccd 
additional tinancial information, contact the Finance Officer of thc Chrporation at (907) 
465-6757. 



T'he Board nl'Dirccturs 
Alaska Studcnt Loan Cor1)oration: 

\Vc hnvc mdited tile accirr~~psnying basic tinanci;~l statements of the Alaska Student Loan corpora ti or^ 
(C:oyoratioti), a compvnait unit of the State of Alaska, us oCand for the yews cnded June 30, 2003, and 
2003. as listed in the tohlc of contents. I'hcsc financial statetncnls are the responsibility of tlie 
inanagcment of the Corporation. Our rcsponsihilily is to express an opinion o t ~  these fina~icii~l slatemems 
based on our audits. 

Wc conducted our itutlits i11 accordance with auditing srar~(Iartls g~nerally acccptctl in the IJnitcd States or  
America, illid tlie standards applicable to tinanciul t~udits contained in t i u i w ~ r ~ ~ r o r ~  il!rrlitbrg .'9~1nrlnr~l.s, 
issued by the Coniptrollcr General of tlie IJ~~ilctl  Statcs. Those sta~itlanls require that we plm and perform 
the audit to ohtitin reasonable assurance about wlicthcr tlic financial sl;ilaiients are Trcc of material 
misstalemcnl. An audit includcs cxomini!ig on ;I test basis, evi~lcncc supporling the amouuls and 
discicisurcs in the fit~ancii~l statements. An ;ruclit also includes asscssing the nccountiiig principles used 
iuitl signilic;m( estimates iiiade by lii;m;lgemetit. 3s well as evoluati~~g l11c overall linirncial statement 
lxesent;~tion. We believe that our ;tudits provide ;I reasonable hasis for our opinion. 

In our opinim, the tinaocial sta~cnicnts referred to above present fhirly, in all innrerial respects the 
iiii311cii11 position of tlic Ali~skir Student I m n  Corporation as of June 30: 2004, a1111 2003, and the results 
of its opcratir~ns ;tnd its cash flows for tlie years theti ended in contomtity with accounling principles 
gct~erally accepted i n  the iJnikx1 States of Americ;~. 

'l'lic ivl;~i~agoncnr's Discuwion iind i\tialysis 011 P I I ~ C S  1 thro11g11 6. is not a rquircd pan of' t l x  basic 
tin:incinl starelnents bur is suppleuientary informatimi i-equircd by the Cioveniincntal Accounting 
Standards Eiosrd. We have applied ccrtaitl lirnitc(1 pn)cetlures, wl~icl~ consisted pt~irrcipally of inquiries of 
~~~ ;u~agen ien t  regonling the metliods of w:lsurement and prescr~ti~tion of the wppletnenta~y infc,rniation. 
Ilowcvcr, we (lid not audit tlic iiirol~ixltiotr and cxprcss no  opinion on it. 



ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 

(n Componcnl Unit of the State of Alaska) 

Ralar~ce Shecis 

Yenrs crrdcd June 30,2004 and 2003 

Asscrs 
Cun'cnt assels: 

Cash and cash equivalents (note 3) 
Investments (rlolc 4) 
Acc~ucrl inlcrest I-eceivable 

'1'oIal current asscls 

Restricmi assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents ( ~ ~ o i c  3) 
Invcsl~nen(s (note 'I) 
Lu;ms receivable (note 5 )  
Less allowance for: 

DoubtfY~l lonns (nolc 6) 
Forgiveness (note 7) 
Net loans receivable 

Accrued irltcrcsl rccci\%ible, net of forgive~~css allowance oC 
$708,964 and 5'698,651 i n  2004 ard 2003, respectively 

Due from 1.I.S. Dcpartmcnt of Education 
Rond issuarrcc cost. net of acciuun~ulated nrnortVcdtion of 

$4,742.81 1 and S4,003,522 iri  2004 ;rnd 2003, respect id)  
Total restricted asscls 
Total assets 

Scc ilccompanyin~ notcs to 111~2 lirliluciill statements 



ALASKA STIJDEN'I' LOAN CORPORATION 

(a C:omponent Unit of the State of  Alaska) 

Ralancc Shccts 

Years ended June 30, 2004 and 2003 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Li. b' ' ' ,I i l~ t~es :  
Current liabilitics payable liom unresrricted assets: 

Accour~ts ]myable 
Due to State of Alaska 
Warrants nutslanding 
Deferred crctlit (note 2) 
Kctum of capital payment declared (nole 12) 

Total currcnt irnrcst~ic~ed liabilities 

Cuvcnt liabilities payable from restricted assets: 
Accounts payable 
Due to State of Alaska 
Warrants ouNanding (note 5 )  
Return of c;tpitid payment declared (note 12) 
Bond interest payable 
Current portion of arbitrage rcbalc pay;~ble (note 9) 
Current portion of bonds p;ly;iblc (note 8) 

Total current liabilities 

Nootuwent liabilitics payable f roo~  restricted assets: 
Arbit~xgc rebate paydde (note 9) 
Bonds payable, net of hor~d prcn~iurnsidisco~~~~ts (note 8) 

Total nor~currcnt liabilities 
Total liabilities 

C'om~nitmcnts and contingencies (i~ote 12) 

Nct assets: 
Kcstriclcd net assets 
IJn~~cstricted nct ;~s sc~s  (note 2) 

'I'otal nel asscts 
Tola1 liobililics and net assets 



ALASKA STUDENT LOAN C:OKPOIIATIOX 

(a Component Unit oftlie Slate of Alaska) 

Statemcnls of'llcvenuc, Expenses 

and Chariges in Net Asscis 

Ycxs  cnrlctl June 30. 2004 and 2003 

Operating revenue - imcrcsr income - student loan? 

Operatins expenses: 
I'rovision for: 

1.oa11 losscs (note 6 )  
Forgiveness (note 7) 

Opcr;~tions 
Total operating expewes 
Operating income 

Nonoperating revenue (cxpcnsc), excluding special item: 
Intcrcst i~icomc I'ro~n i~ivest~ilents 
Inlcrcsl cxpcnse 
ibbiirase rebate expense 
Amo~tization oftio~ld issuitncc cosls 
Cliange in cslimarc ol'~1oubtful loan allowaricc (nvtc 6) 

Net nonoperaling expense 
Income 1)efore cu~riulnlivc cCl'cct 

Cumulative effect nt'cliange in accour~tinp method (note 2) 
Incornc hcforc special item ("statutory net irlevnie") 

Special ilc~n, rctuni of capital (note 12) 
Change in ]let assets 

'l'otal nct assets-hegi~~nirty 
Tot;il Ire! assets-cnding 



ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CY3KPORATIOX 

(:I L'oniponcnr Unit of the State of Alaska) 

Slatcmcnts oS Cash i:'low 

Years ended June 30, 2003 ot~d 2003 

Cash flows liom operatin9 activities: 
Principal repayments received on Io;~ns 
Interest receiwd on loans 
Other cash rcccipts 
Loans originated 
Cash paid to Alaska Cornrr~ission on I'ostsecondary 

Fducation ror opcratimg expenses 
Xct cash provided by operating activitics 

C n h  flows rrom noncapital tinancing activitics: 
I'rocceds from issuancc of hontls 
Bond issue costs 
Interest paid on bonds 
Principal paymcnts on boiids 

Net cash provided by (used fix) ~~oncapiliil 
financing activitics 

C:ash flows from investing activitics: 
Interest received on ir~vcstmcnts 
I~~vestnlents rnalural 
Invcst~~icnrs purchased 

Net cash provided hy (used Sor) investing activitics 

(:ash flows f io~n capital activities: 
Procccds f r o r  issuance of bonds 
Bond issue costs 
I<eturn of capilal p:~ymcn(s 

Ncl cash provided by (used for) return oCcapital 

Nct i~lcrcast: ill c;wh and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivale~~ts m hcginriing ol'period 

C. ~ 5 1 1  . i~nd C X I ~  rquivale~~ts at rntl 01' pcrioC 

Scc accmpnnying notcs to l i i~ ;~ ls i ;~ l  stalcmonts 



ALASKA STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION 

(a Co~nponent linit. ot'lhc Stalc oi'.Al:tsk;~) 

State~nents oSCas11 Flows 

Yews ended lunc 30, 2004 ;11itI 2003 

I<econciliation of operating inconrc to net cash 
provitled by opcn~ting ;~clivilics: 

Operating income 

Adjustments to reconcile operaling income to net cash 
provitlctl by opcraling ;icli\:ities: 

Increasc in net loans receivable 
Increase in net accrued inlcrcs! rcccivi~hlc on loans 
Decrease in due lo Statc olillaska 
Increase in other HSSCIS 

Dccl-c;w in accounts payahle 
L)ccrease in warrants outstanding 
Decrease in deferrctl crcrlir 

Net cash providcd by opcrating activities 

Summary of noncash iransx~ions th;~! affcct 
I-ecognized asscts and liabilities: 

Provision h r  loan loss and forgiveness 
l'rovision for lost intercst and forgivcncss 
Write-oft'of uncollcctiblc loans 
Forgivcncss gr;~ntcd - principal 
Forgiveness granted - intel-est 
Bond discount amorlizi~tion 
nonil issuancc cost amortization 
Lkl'crred credit used for loan loss 
Ilefe~wd cretlil nmorli~. 'I I 1011 

1rrlc1-csl c;~pilaliz;~lion 
Unrealized gain (loss) on invcsln~culs 
C:hangc i n  cstin1;ilc d o u b h l  loans 
Cumulative effect of c1inn::c i n  accwnling mclhod 



:\I,!\SI<A STUDENT LOLW CORPORATE03 
(a (:omponent i!nir o t thc  State of .Alaska) 

Notes lo Financial Statcnicnis 

June 30, 2004 and 2003 

( 1 )  Authorizing Legislation and Orpni ra t ion  

The Alaska Stutlenl I h a n  C:(!rporalion (Corporation), a component unit of tlie Stare of :\l:~skil. WI:, 

created i n  1987 by an act oC llrc Stale of Alaska 1.cgislnture (Legislature). The purpose of the 
Corporation is to pro\kk low-iu~crcst cdocation loans to Alusk;rns. The Corporation is autlir~rizctl, with 
certain limitations. to issue its own bonds and other obligations it1 such principal arnounts as, in ihc 
opinion ofthe (h-pornlion, will be ncccssary lo p~rovidc sullicicnt funds for cariyin~ out its purpose. !\I1 
obligations so issued sllall no! be dccn~crl lo constitute a ticbt ol'ihc State of Alaska (State). 

'I'he State Governor appoints the Corpornlion's 13oard of Dircclors m d  tlic staff of the Alaska 
Corn~nission on I'ostsecondaty 13ducation (Co~utnission) administers lllc Corporation. 'l'lie Commission's 
budget provides for reimbursement frmn tlie Corporation for operating ant1 capital cxpenscs. The 
Commission's budxct is subject to review and appmval from both the executive and i c g i s l a t i ~  branches 
0 1 t h ~  Stale. 

The State has provided educaliun loans lhrough various programs sincc 1968. "rior to tlie crcalion d l h c  
Corporation, substantially all such lunns wcrc rccortlcd in 11% Schol;irship Kevolvinp Loan Font1 and 
l'eaclier Scholarship Loan Fund (Funds) ofthe Stale. In April 1985, by :let oClhe Lz$islature. tlle assets. 
liabilities, r~nd equities of the Funds \pew translcrrcd lo the Corpornlio~l crCcclivc December 30. 1987. 

I.oans arc h t n c c d  through the issuance of tax-exempt bonds or with recycled principal and interest 
repaymcnis. The bonds ourshnding are payable. primarily from interest and principal rcpaymcnts on the 
fiilar~ced loans as specified in lhc underlying resolutions authorizing the sale of honds. 

( 2 )  Sotnniory of Signific;~nt Aceo~~nting Policies 

Tile til~nricial aclivitics ol' the C:o~ponirion, which arc restricled by the Corpor;~tion's bond 
irldent.urcs and the rcquircnlcnts of the Legislature. we rccordcd in various funds ns spccilictl in 
such instruuie~~ts or I I C C C S S ~ ~ ~ ~ C ~  by appropri:rliw rcqui~-cn~cnts or sound fiscal nr;~n;~gcrncnt. 
Tlic hnds are combined llir lini~nciel slincnicnt pu~yoscs imd thcre ilre no signiticanl intcrfuntl 
transxtions. The Co~pon~tion's liuids are considcrcd to be entellxist: f'u~lds Sbr financial 
reportiup purposes with rcvaiucs rccugnizctl wl~cn c;l~nctl mtl expenses wl~e t~  incurrctl. 

(Continued) 



ALASKA SI'UL)ENI' 1.0,iN CORPORATION 
(;I Component Unit of the State of Alaska) 

Nntes to Fitiaricial Slatc~ncnts 

.lunc 30, 2004 and 1003 

In preparing the linanci;~l statcments in accordance with gcncn~lly accepted accounting 
principles, ninnagcmenl is required to make estimates and assui~~ptions thar aSfecr the reported 
;irnour~ls ol' assets; liabilities, revenues, and expenses. Actual amounts could differ from those 
eslin~ates. Tlm more significant accounting and reporting policies npplictl in the preparation of 
the accon~pnnying 1in;incial statements are discussed below. 

(e) Loam 

I m n s  represent education loans issued through the AlaskaAdvantage@ I.oitn I'rograms, wl~icli 
include Alaska Supplen~ental Loans, 'l'eaclier Ilducation 1.oans (TEL), Pimily Education Loans 
(1:EL). (collcclivcly referred to as supplenientnl loans), and federally gi~aranteed Stafford, PLUS 
atid Consolidarcd lo:~ns. The teniis of the loans va~). depending on the ycar oS inception and loan 
type. lnteres~ accrues at Sixcd ; ~ n d  variable rates ranging from 2.625% Lo 9% and is generally 
dcterrnined by loan typc and issuc date. .l'he Corpon~tion offers borrower benclils, which reduce 
the interest ccosrs for eligible horrowcrs. The  borrowc~ benefit offerings are approvcd hy the 
Corporation Board of Dircctors alinually and tnny wry  l iun year-to-year. 

Rorrowcrs US I E L  con obtain up to 100?' forgiveness of' Ion11 principal and interest if thc 
horrowcr tc:~ches in rural Alaska for periods specified by the program. 

For certain suppleinental lo;m ;tw;~rdcd prior to July 1, 1987. bon-owrs can obkiin forgiveness 
for up to 50% of 10311 principal i~nd intcrcst if !he borrower resides in Alnsk;~ Tor specified 
periods upon successful tornpletion of'lhc propam ofsludy for wl~icli the loan wns ;iw;~rded. 

The allowarlcc h r  doubtful lonns Irepresents manasement's estimatc, b:~scd on experience, oS:tll 
loi~ns llrat will ultimakly be nncollectible. 'I'lie Co~poration cliargcs oiS supplemental loans to 
the nllowncc up or^ dcillh, b;tnkntptcy as nllowcd by law, total disability of the borrower. or 
wlien n pnymcnt has 1101 bccn received for live yclm on loans not in d~l'cnncnt. In fiscal ywr 
200.1, rrinriagclncnt ckingcd the nllowance estimatc for older loan pi-ogram years to bcttcr reflect 
the impact of onpoirlg loan scr\:icing and collection i~nprovemenrs. To d c t c m ~ i ~ ~ c  the cha~lgc, 
rnnnngclncnt :~n;ilyzcrl default data on maturcd loan pools arid cohorl (lcll~ult declines sincc 
caler~d;lr ycar 1997. Thcsc analyses were used to estimate reserve rates for loans outstnndins ;IS 

of Jur~c 30, 2003. Included in the older program ye:irs arc the lonns 111;iI w u e  brought back Svr 
in-liousc servicing due to lerniination of the collection agency cor~lracls i n  19%. 2001 ant1 2003. 

lnlcrcsi on cl1uc;ition loans is accriicd \\illen earned. I:nr Vedel-ally gu;irantccd subsidized l(~sns. 
i~itcrcst from tlic st;itl date of the loati until a h t c  tliat is six months alicr the student witldraws 
li-om school (plus any nufliorizctl iletl-rnicnt lwiods) is billed lo ii~rd paid by the C.S. Ucpar~nient 
of Education under the Fedcrnl F;~tnily 1~:du~alion LO~III  1 ' 1 - C X ~ I I I .  ' 1 '11~  l m w ~ c r  pays i~~tet-est 



A1,ASKA STU'DKN'I' I.OAN CORPOR/\TIO?4 
(a Component h i t  of the State of Alaska) 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2003 and 2003 

subscquc~ic ro ihst date. For non-suhsitlizcd ktlc~.;~lly guni-anteed loans ant1 ibr ell supplemetital 
loans issucd aner June 30,2002 interest frcrm the disbursement date is paid hy lhc borrower. 

Cerrairi supplc~ncntsl loans are non-interest hearing whilc: the borrower is con~plcting eligible 
studies. All scale guxantcrd loans issued prior to .July 1, 1996 are non-interesl bearing during 
approved periods oS dcfciment and postpoticment. !.oms issued prior to July 1.  19S7 are also 
non-interest hearing during a one-year grace period following completion of studies i~nd a six- 
~nontlt suh-gl-ace pa-iotl rollowing an approved defemicnt. Non-interest hearing lams arc 
approsin~ately %38.176,1 79 tit June 30, 2001. 

I-listoricrtl rates are used to dercrnlinc the ;illowance for douhthl imcrcst. 'l'he allowance Tor 
clouhtful interest is approximately 521.500.000 ant1 $21.900.000 as of Junc 30, 2004 and 2003, 
rcspcctivcly. 'I'he provision for doubtlid inrcrcst is a reduction ot' intcrcs! income and was 
approxint;~tcly $1.340,000 and $4,739,000 fbr Ll~c years ended June 30, 2004 ;ind 2003, 
res[~eclivcly. 

norrowers rvlw received suppletnental lonns afier June 30, 1994 \vet-e charged an origination fee 
of 1%. 3% or 5%. gcncr;~llydetermined by loan issue date. I[s purpose is to oSSsct lonn losses 
due to death. disability, b;cnkruptcy or default of borrowers ch;~rgcd the origination rcc, 'The 
origination fee is rccoglizcd es revenue using the straight-line mrtlmd equal lo ~ h c  loan 
repayment period and assun~cs rcpaymcnt bepins the year following origination. The a1Iow;incc 
for doubtful loans has lxen rcduccd by the rrnemortizrd deferred crcdit. 

'l'he allowance tix hrgivcncss rcpi-cscnts management's estirnatc. hascd on experiwce or  thc 
loan forgiveness tl~at will ul~inmwly be applied for and yanted. 

Bond issua~ice costs illcludc r~nden\,ritcrs' fees and other cosis incurred in con~ieckioit wiilt the 
issuance of hottds. EfCxtivc for the year ended June 30, 7003, the Col-poration changed its 
~netltnd of alnorti~ing bold issuance costs linln the cffectivc into-est method ti1 tlic straight-line 
metltod. Tllc cun~ul;itivc cSCcct of the changc is 6 1 .620,73 1 .  

ElTcclivc for the year cndetf June 30, 2004. the Corporation cIi:lnycd its me~hod of' antot-ri;.ing 
bond discounts. 111-emiurns and ticfcrrcd amounts on rct i~ndin~s front lllc clTcctive interest tnctlicid 
to the straigltt-lin? lttefhnil. I'llcrc is nu cun~~li l t ive effect or this ~ h l l n ~ c .  



ALASKA STIIDENT 1 . 0 A S  CORPOI<ATION 
(a Component Unlt of the State ofj\l;~ska) 

Notes ro Financial Statements 

June 30,2004 and 2003 

Unrestricted net assets rep[-esent assets of the Co~poration not pledged as collateral for specific 
bond indentures. GASR 34 requires assets restricted hy slatutc Lo bc rcpovtcd as unrestricted. 
Assets restricted hy slatute arc approximately S29,200.000 and S2S,100,000 at June 30,2004 and 
2003, respectively. 

(3) Cash and Cash Eqaivnlents 

The statement of cash flows is prcscntcd to reflect Lhc activity rusulling in a change in cash and cash 
equivalents. For purposcsd  lhc slatcrncnt o r  cash llows, lhc Corporation considers its equity in the 
State's Treasury Pools to bc cash and cash cqi~iviilents. The Corporiition's equity consists of cash, Short- 
term and Intermediate-term Fixed Income Pools, and rcpurchasc agccments held by the State as the 
custodian for the Corporation. 

Government Accounting Standards Board Slatcmcnt hk. 3 (GASB 5) a~id GASB ?‘ethnical Bulletin 87-1 
require deposits and invcstmcnls lo bc c; t tcpizcd lo indicalc the lcvel of risk assumed by the 
Corporation at thc cnd of th~. pcriod. Category 1 consisls of investments that are insured or registered 
and hcltl by the Corporalion or ils custodian in the Corporation's name. Category 2 consists of itni~~surcd 
and unregiskrcd invcstmcnls held by the Ciwporation or its costodiau i n  the. Corporation's Iiamc. 
Category 3 inclutlcs uninsured and unregistered investments held by the Corporation or its custodian no1 
in tlic Corpor;ilion's name. 

A summary ol'cash ;and cash cquiv;llcnts at June 30 follows: 

Risk Calcgory 2004 2003 

Fixed income pools - $ 16,374,182 10,189,270 
Depos~ts. collateralized 1 5,448,777 4,506,875 
ltepurchase agrcetnents I S.lS2.11 1 4.692.735 

Eqi~it); in thc Fixed Income pools cal~not he categorized because it rcprcscnts lhc Corporalion's sl~ure of 
ownership in the pool rather than ownership ol'specitic securities. 

Cash and cash cqttiv~l?nts in the amount of S10;0I 1,266 and $'):003;i33 for iiscnl ywrs 2004 u11d 2003, 
rcspcctively, are sul7jecr to certain restrictions 3s specified i n  the bond indcn~itrcs. 



, \ IASK4 STUDENT LOAS C'ORPORA'I'1O.U 
(a Component lJmt of the State of Alaska) 

Notes to Financial Sta~cmcnls 

Junc 30,2004 and 2003 

The Fixed Income pool participates i n  thc r)cparlmcl~l of Revenue's seciirities lending program 
(Program) as allowed by Alaska Statute 37.10.071. Under the Program, fixed income securities are 
luancd to broker agents or other entities tbr collateral in tlie form oCcash or securities, with simultaneous 
agrccmcnl to rctum the collateral for the same securities in the futurc. 

Collateral sccuritics may not be pledged or sold unless the borrower delhulls. Security loans are fully 
collatemlizcd at not less than 102 percent of their fair value. There arc no restrictions on the amount of 
thc loans that can be made under the program. There is limited credit risk associated with tlie lending 
transactions since loss indeninification is providcd if resulting rrom countelpmy failure or default 
(sobject to certain limitations). 

At June 30, 2004 and 2003, the fair value of sccuritics on loan allocablc to the Corporation totaled 
$3,243,043 and $1.900.142, respectively. Thcrc wcrc no losses incurrcd as a result of securities lending 
uaiisactions and there were no significant violations o f  legal or conlractual provisions nor failures by any 
bol~owcrs to return Loaned securities during either h e a l  year 2004 or fiscal year 2003. 

Addiliumel investment information is discloscd in the financial schcdulcs issued by the Department of 
Rcvcnuc, 'I'reasi~q Division. These financial schedules are available through the Department of 
Kcvcnue, 'Treasury Division, P.O. Box 1 1  0405, Juncau, Alaska 9981 1-0405 or at 
~vww.reve~ioe.state.ak.usit~easur~~!Publicatio~is.li~ni. 

Allowable restricted investments are spccilicd in the bond indenture, as are certain restrictions. 
Substantially all invectments arc held, in trust, for tlic betleiit ofllic Coyoration and the bondholders. 

Thc Corporalion's investments at June 30 are sl~own below: 

Kisk C a t e m  - --- .- .... 2004 2003 ....... ..... 
Categorizcd invcstnients: 

U.S. go\:cmmcnt and federal 
apncy  securities I S 106,550,925 120,930,342 

Repurchase agreements 1 38,421,000 41,257,370 
Fo~~vi~ilrd delivew aereements 1 26,819,796 13,000,644 - - 
Co~yor;~tc Bonds 1 2,933,408 - 
Bank invcst~iient contracts 3 .... . -. 9.340;000 ............ 

264.755.129 - .- . - . . 184,528.365 

Non-categori7ed invcstmcnls: 
h,inncy market pool - 

Government sccurilics 
Total i~ivestnients 



ALASK4 STUDENT LOAN COORPORATIOS 
(;I C:omponent Unit of the State of Alaska) 

Sotes to Financial Stntementr 

Junc 30.2004 and 2003 

Pooled investments cannot be catcgosizcd because they represent the Corporation's shnrc of ownership in 
the pool rather than ownership of spocilic securities. 

Thc carrying v;rlue of investments 3t June 30, 2004, by conlraclual matur~ty, a!-e slinwn below: 

Due in one year or less S 3 15,247,849 
Duc witlnn one to l i ~ e  vears 98.594.814 
Due in five years or more 

I~ivcstments include amounts slxcifically designated for Iinancing education loans. At  Junc 30, 2004 and 
2003 the investnietits available Tor financing education loans total S145,165,230 and $133,485,653 
I-cspcctivelp. The funds art available to the Co~poration only if certain cash flow tcsts arc met. 'She 
remaining investnients held by the Truslcc arc rcstrictcd for debt service, capital rcscrvc and rebate 
requirements. 

(5) Restricted Loans Receivable 

A sutimiary of restricted loans rcccivahlc: ill1 o r  which arc inslallment loans to individuals, ;I[ June 30 
follo\ss: 

Al;~sko Supplelnental I.oans S 534.089.988 537,252,920 
Teitcher Educatlon Loans 9,062,785 9.332,715 
Fam~ly Education Loans 9,122.020 9,743,222 
Federal Fatil~ly Education I m n s  24,973,470 9.8 .- 17,694 

S 577,248,263 -- 566,146,55l 

The loan po~tfolio summarixd by loan stitlus 211 Jutic 30 lbllows: 

Rcpaymcnt 
DeSc~mcnl 

1.oa11s a\vardcd iuid not disbut-sed at June 30, 2004 and 2003 lola1 S13,511.526 and %5,723.521 
respeclivcly. 



:Zl.ASKA ST1JI)ENT LOAN CO1WOlt.Xl'IOX 
(a Co~npona~ t  i lni~.  ol'lhc Stalc oL'A!i~sko) 

Nolcs lo Financial Statetnents 

June. 30. 3004 ar111 2008 

Included in loatis rcccivnhlc arc $450,394 and $541 3 5 6  ol'loa!~ w;~rntns issucd but not yet redecnlcd by 
lhe bormwers at June 30, 2004 and 2003. respectively. llctleniption is conlingent upon the horrorvcrs 
meeting certain elipibili~y rcquirctncnrs. 

l<cstricted loans receivnlllzs arc plcdgcd to the Corporation's oulslantli~ip bonds 

(6) Allownnee for  Doubtfnl Loans 

A summary of the activity in  the allorvance h r  doubt LLI loans ;it June 30 hllo\vs: 

Balance at hcgi~~ning of period S; 063129,597 107.710,286 
Provision for lo;m losses 4,439,205 1 :129,039 
N d  lowns c h o r d  off ( 1  .?35.5911 (2.338.0 13) - . , . ,  . , 

C:hange in estimate [note ?(I)) -. ~. (10,171,915) 
Rslancc ;ti end of period $ 96,120,397 . . -. 99.333,01 i-' 

~ . . ~ a  
~ . .. 

(7) Allowmce for Forgiveness 

As described in nole 2, the Corporation rlishurscs Jwns oC which principnl awl inlcrcst bccomc elipible 
lor  i'orgivcncss under cetlain conditions. 

A stltnma~-y crC111c ;tcli\:ily in [he allowance for forgiveness at June .?O Collows: 

2004 . ~ ~ . .  2003 

Balance 31 heginning of period S 2292,031 2,346,535 
l'rovision ior foreivcness 419.148 45L.7SS 



Al.!\SKA S'I'<!DF:NT LOAN CORPOIL\TIOS 
(a Co~nponcni Unit 01-lhc Slaic ofAlaska) 

%ores to Fitlnncial Statctncr~ls 

.lunc 00,2004 and 2003 

(S) Honds I'aynblc 

(a) Bonds payablc at Junc .XI consist of the followit~g: 

Amount ouista~~dino, .... . . ~  ..... 

Original 
Amount 2001 . .. . 2003 

Outstanding ur~dcr thc 1988 4l;ts~cr Indenture: 

1993 Scries i\ Student Loan Ileve~tue Ro~ids 
serial bonds 

1994 Series A Siutlcnr Loan Kcvenue Bonds 
scri;~l bonds, fisul rates ranging 
liom 5.875% to 6.0'5, due 2005 to 200s 

1905 Series A Student Loan Rcvcnuc Bortds 
serial bonds. fixcd ratcs ranging 
liorn 5.5% lo 5.7596. due XI05 to 2000 

1!)96 Series A Student [.om Revcnuc Bonds 
scrial hor~rls, fixcd raws ranging 
from 5.75% to 6.35% due 2005 to 2013 

I997 Scrics A Student Loan Ilevenue 13011ds 
serial bonds; fired rates ranging 
Yrotn 5.1 5% to 5.7.5%, tluc 2005 to 2015 

I998 Scrics .A Studcnl Loan Revenue Bonds 
scrial bonds, fixed rates ranging 
t m n  1.6'5 to 5.3% due 2005 to 2016 

1099 Series A Studenl Loan Rcvcnuc Hrlnds 
scrial bonds, Lxcd ratcs I-anginy 
from 46'% to 5.45%, duc 2005 to 2017 

2000 Scrics h Student Lo;tn Revenue Hontls 
scriitl bonds, fixed rates ranging 
fi'o~n 5.3'16 to 6.05%, duc 2005 lo 201 8 
tcrm boitds, b.09<,, duc July I .  2010 

2001 Scries A Student I m n  Itevenus Wmds 
scri:tl hoiiils, lixcd rates n~nging 
r~t , l l l  3.95'.!.<, ((1 4.65%, dUe 200:! 201 1 



.ALASKA STUDENT I.OAN COKPOKA'llOS 
(a Component Ilnit ol'tlie State of Alaska) 

Notcs to Fiiiancial St:itements 

June 30, 2004 and 2003 

Ourstanding under the 2002 Master Inde~~ture: 

2002 Series A and H Education I.o;ln Kcvcnuc Bonds 
auclion wriable rate bonds, due 2000 ro 2037 

2003 Series A-1 and A-2 Education 1.oan Rcvc~ruc Ro~lds 
auction variable rnlc bonds. cluc 101 I to 2038 

2004 Scrics I\-1, A-2. A-3 Education I.oan I<evenue Bonds 
auction vari:~ble rate bonds due 2044 
serial bonds, f i x 4  rate moging 
iiom 5.0% lo 5.25%. tluc 201 1 lo 2017 

I'lus bond premium 
Sub-total 2002  master Indenture 

Outstanding under tlic 2004 111dc11turc: 

3004 Suies i\ Capital IJroject Revenue I3ontls 
serial boi~tls, fisal rates rnngi~~g 
lio~n 2.0% lo 4.0%, tluc 2005 io 201 7 
Icrm bonds. 4.0%, due July I _ 201 S 

Plus bolld pmniu~n 
Sob-Total 2002 Indcnturc 



Notes to l'ina~~cial Statcmcms 

June 30, 2004 itntl 2003 

(b) The lnininium pitynrcnls and sinking lirnd i~~slnllrncnts related to the cncl~ ir~dcnture for the live 
years sul~zequcn~ to June 30: 2004 and cl~erci~llcr arc ;IS Collo\\x 

I'criod ending 
,70 June z . Principal -. . . . . ~  .... 111trresI .. .- . .. . . Total 



ALASILA S'I'UDICN'T I.O;\N CORPORATION 
(;I Clomponcnt Unit of the State o f  Alnskn) 

Notes to Financial Statcinc~its 

June 30: 2004 and 2003 

l'crivd ending 
June 30 ~ ~ ........ Priricipal 

I'criod ending 
June 30 

Tlw 19SS :md 1002 ;Ll;~stcr indenture L3o1iils are private activiiy honds. 'l'he 2004 lr~(lci~turc 
13onds are IIOI pri\wtc ;icti\ity bonds. All of thc  hoods pay i~llcrcsl scmi;~~inualIy. The bor~ds ;ire 
scciircd by ctlucalion loans and other asscts of  h e  (..oq)or:!~ior and are ~ io t  o1~lig;itiorir of tI1c 
State. 



ALASKA STUDENT I.OAN CORPOR.4'I'IOZ 
(;I Component (!nit of the State of Al;~sk:~) 

Soles to Financial Statctr~cnts 

Jonc 30. 2004 and 2003 

(d) On June 5 ,  2003. tllc Corpordlion issuctl S17;000,000 in etlucalio~~ 10311 revenue bonds, oi' wl~ich 
$15.SS5.000 was fix- the pu~pusc ofrcli~nding ~ h c  outstanding 199.1 Serics A bonds at par. The 
i-e,efi~nding occurred on July 1 ,  2004. 

l 'he refunding porti<in ol' the Scrics 2003A-2 bonds was issued as auc~ion \:arial)le rate 
certilicales i n  whicli the ilttcrcst is rcsct cvcry 35 days and the principal payment due J u w  I .  
2038. The initial interest rate on the Scrics 2003A-2 bonds was 1.12%. Tllc i-cfunded I003 
Scries A bonds interest rates werc fiscd nttcs I-tinging horn 5.5% to 5.625% and were due in level 
dcbt service payments, with the final pifylncnt clue July I, 2006. The rehntling resulted ill 

aggregate debt service payments over lllc ncxt seven y r s  i n  n total ainount. of approximately 
S400,000 less than the deb1 service paymcnls wltich would 11we been due on the rcfur~ded bonds. 
B;tscd on the Series 2003A-2 liands' i r l i l i n l  interest r:llc of' 1.12?.&, there will bc an estimated 
economic gtin of' S900,000. Economic gain is calculatetl as the net difference 1)ctwccn the 
present valuc of the old debt sewice requirements and the present valuc of the new  deb^ scrvicc 
requirc~nents, discoun~ctl ;I! the effective interest rate and adjusted for :itlditionrrl cash paid. 

(e) 011 May 10, 200.4; the Clirporation issucd S1 13.1 15,000 in cducntinr~ loan rc\,cnuc bonds, of 
which $13.055.000 was for the purpose oS rclimding the outstanding 1994 Scrics A bonds and 
S26,400,000 was for the purllose of rel'undi~~g a porlion ol'lhc Series 2002 A bonds, hoth ; ~ t  par. 

'Tl~e 1994 Scrics A rch~nding occurred on July I ,  2004. 'l'tlc rcCunding portion ol' the Scries 
2004A-2 bonds was issucd as aucrion val-iahle rate certilicatcs i n  which the interest is rcsct cvcry 
35 days and 111c principal payment due June 1, 2044. The initial interest rate on r l~c Scries 
2004A-2 bonds was 1 .I 8%,. 'f'l~c rcli~nded 1904 Serics A bonds interest rates were tixed rates 
ranging from 5.S75% to 6% ;~nd werc due in level debt service pnynlcnk, with the h a 1  paymcllt 
due July 1, 2007. The refunding resulted in aggrcgatc debt sewice payrncnts over the next seven 
years i n  n total a ~ n w n t  o l  approxim;ttcly $700.000 Ic$s than the dcbt scrvicc payments which 
mould have been due on the rcSmdcd bonds. Basal on the Series 2004A-2 honds' initial interest 
rare of I. IS'%, there will he a11 cstirn;i~ctl cconc~mic gain of S7N.OOO. 

(1) The Scrics 2002 A rel'unding occurred on Aujiml 16. 2004. 'l'llc rchnding portiot~ of 111c Series 
ZOO4 A-l was issued as nuctior~ variahlc txtc ccrlilicslcs in w11ich the interest is rcsct every 35 
tl:~ys and the principal p a y ~ n e ~ ~ t  due Junc 1 ,  2041. Tllc initial interest mte on the Scrics 2004 A-1 
bonds was 1.20%. The refi~ntlctl Scrics 2002 A hur~tls were iissuetl as ;111ctio11 vorinble rate 
certificates i n  \vhic11 the inlercsl rt~tc reset cvcry 35 ditys :lnd the principnl payments were due 
.lune 1 ,  ZOO9 and 2i)lO. The rcl'u~lding was cSli.ctcd to extend t l~c  nlnturity h t c s  of these honds 
ro .June 1 ,  2044. l'llere is rto cxpcctcd ccc~no~uic gain or changc in  tlebt scrvicc p;iyments over the 
next six years. 



arbitrage rebate liability st .Iutic 30, 2004 and 200.3, represents Ihc a~nouut of arbitrage rebnfc (Itre to the 
federal goverrinletlt ibr cxccss earnings on the bond proceeds. 

(1 0 )  S t ~ ~ d e n t  1.oa11 Interest ;inti Special !\llowa~~cc on Federally Go:ir;tnteed Loans 

The US. 1)eparlment of Educatiorl ~nakcs qm~rterly interest sd>sidy payments on behalf of rlualilictl 
studcn~s until fhc student is required under provisions of the Higher Education .Act to begin repnyrrlcnl. 
Rcp~ymcnt on Stafford Educatiotl loans nt~nndly begins within six inonths aflcr slutlcnts complete tt~cir 
course of study, leave school, or ceasc lo carry i ~ t  Icest one-half the normal Full-Iimc ;\cadc~nic load as 
tletcnriinctl by the educational iuctitutiori. Kcp;rymcnl of PLLiS loans normally begins within sixty days 
from the dote of loan disbursement unless a defkrtuc~l~ ofpay~ncnls has been granted. In these cases, full 
repaynicnt o r  prirtcipnl and interest would resume at tllc expiration oC the defertiienl. Inlcrcst accnles 
durir~g this tlcl.krn~cnt period. 

'l'l~e US. Department oi'I3ucation provides a special allo\\mce payment lo lenders participating in thc 
St;ifford, I'LIJS. and Cnt~soliiln~ior~ loan progra~ns. Special allowance is paid bliscd on a rate illst is 
cslablishcd quarterly. I+ loaris lirsl ilisbursctl after June 30, 1999 and titlanced wilh obligations issuctl 
nllcr Cktober 1.  1993, the rate is based on h c  average riilc established in the auclion of the three-miin111 
I?r~ancial Commercial I'uper, plus a predeteruliucd hetor, lcss the interest rate oil thc loitn. Loans tnacle 
or purcliascd will1 r d s  obtained 111rough the issuance of tax-cxcmpt obligations issual before Octobct, 
1. 1993 are eligible h r  tme-half of the special allo\var~ce rzllc, subject to a minitnum rcturn of 9.5%. 
Loans origitiared or purcliascd with funds obtained through \lie issuance of tax-exe~~ipt ohligations 
originally issued afier October 1 ,  1993 are eligildc for lull spcci;d dlowance atid 3rc IIOL suhjcct to a 
minimum return. 

ElTcctivc July 1, 1007, the Cotnmissioii kidopted the provisions of Governnrcnt .Accou~lting S~;~ud:crds 
Board Statement No. 27 (CiASn 27). ~lccoro~ri~rg 1'rrrsiorr.r /!I; 3 o l e  orid Lucol (;oviwriirr~i/ 
E~irploye~s. 'l'hcre mas no inlpact on the lir~ancial statctnents as a result of GASR 27. 

The Co1ntnissiot1 atid its e~nployees p:ir~icipn~l: irl  tllc State of' Alaska Public Iimployecs' 
Rclircnrcnt System (I'EIG), as a dclii~ctl bc~ielit. iigcnr multiple-employer public etnployec 
rc~irctncn\ system which was establisl~ctl and is adiilinistt.red \by the State lo pmvide pcnzion, 
posl-cmploymcnt healthcare, and dcotii ant1 disability benefits to ~1igil)le c~nployees. All li~ll- 
time anployees are required to p:+rticip;t~c in I'ERS. Benefit and contribution provisions sl-c 
cstiiblished by Sfnle law nrlil may hc ;trncndc~l only by the Starc I.egislnrurc. 



:\I.ASKA S'I'UDEN'I' LOAK CORPOR,UION 
(a Component C n ~ t  ofthe State of Alaska) 

Notes to l:~nanc~al Statcrncnls 

Junc 30; 200-I ;lnd 2003 

.idy 1 :  1986 is calculated using the 2% n~ultiplicr. E~nployees wit11 thirty or more years of  
crcdilcd sctu-ice may retire at arly :qe  : ~ r ~ t l  I-cccivc a nom~al henetit. h,lnjor medical henefils are 
provided \\%]lout cost to all relirecs lirst hircd hcforc July 1 ,  1086. Mcmbcrs with five or inure 
years oTcrcditetl semice first hircd alicr Junc  30: 1986, but before July 1, 1996. may elect rnnjor 
mctlicid hcnefits. Members lirst liirctl aCtcr Junc 30. 1996 must ohlain ;]I least ten years of 
credited scrvice to be eligible to decr major medical bcncfits. 

Facli fiscal ycar, IJEKS issues a puhlicly available linancial repon that inclt~tles financial 
s ta te~ne~~ts  and rct1uircd supplenle~ita~y infornlation. Thal report may be obtaincd by writing to 
the State of hlnskn, Department of Administration, Division uT Retirement and Hcncfits, I'.O. 
Box 1 10203 Juncau, Alaska 9921 1-07-03 or by calling (007) 465-4460. 

Enlployccs arc required, by State statute, to contribute 6.75% oftlleir gross wage to the plan. 
The hriding policy for I'ERS provides fix periodic employer contributions at actuarially 
determined rates Illat, expressed as a percentage of annu;tl covered payroll, arc sufiicient to 
accu~nulate sulficia1t assets lo pay benefits when due. Covered payroll for thc pcriod ended 
June 30, 2004, was spproxi1n:itely $4,361,000 constituting subslantially uII of the Co~nlnission's 
pay-oll. The Conunission's imnual pcnsion cost Eor the current ycar and the related inronnation 
is as follows: 

Cor~trihution rates: 
Enlploycc 
Employer 

Annual Pcnsion cost IU d;tte 6 333.540 
Contributions m:dc S 333.540 

.4ctuarial valuation date 
Actuarial cost metllod 
Amortization 1neLl1ot1 
hnlortization period 
Asset valuatio11 mctl~od 

June 30,2003 
Projected unit crcdit 
Level pcrcenta_pc ul'pay 
25-year Fixed 
5-year s~nootllcd markc[ 

Pn$cclcd salary increase: 
Inflation 3.50% 
Protlucti\;ity 2nd u~crit 2.00% 



ALASKA S'I'UI)EST I.OAN CORPORA'I'IOS 
(:I Component Unit ofthe Statc of Alask;~) 

Notes to Financi;~l S ta~cn~cnls  

June 30, 2004 and 1003 

In thc cun-ent year, the Con~rnission dcicnninetl, in accol-dance wit11 provisions of GASB 27. thac no 
pcnsion liability (asset) existed to PERS ;nd Lhcre was no previously reportctl liability (asset). 

The C:onunission inclu~iecl apprcxin~:~lcly 59,600~0011 in its lhud@ [i~r  fiscal year 2005 as 
reimbursement from the Coqmation Sor ;~dlninismLive and capital cxpcnscs incurred on the 
Corporalion's behalf. Amou~its paid by the Co~por;~Lion will be subject to revision based upon 
;ictuel cxpcnscs incurred by the Conmission. 

Durinp liscal year 2000 the Alaska legislature passed a l h i l l  ihat allows the Corporation to pay the 
State a return or comributcd capital or dividend annually based on net inco~r~c. lr t l~c 
Corporation's h a r d  01' Dircclors elects to make such a paynlcnl, lhc amount may not bc less 
than 10%. nor greater than 35%, of the Corporation's inconle hclbrc Iransl'ers when it equals (a. 
exceeds $2.000,000 fix the Rose Fiscal Year. 'l'hc Base Fiscal Year is dclincd as the fiscal ycar 
ending two years before the end or  the 1isc;ll ycar in which the payment is madc. 

On Scprc~nbcr 23, 2004, the Corpnmtion's n o a d  of Directors appl-wed a SS,h00.000 Return of 
Capital pnyrncnt to ihc Statc wliich will he paid during the fiscal ycar 2005. 

During liscal year 2004 1111: .<l;isk;~ legislature passed a hill nllowitig tile Corporation ;In 
;~dditional means to pay the S~;rlc a rctunl of conlribi~tctl cnpital. The C:orporation is now 
permitted to use its bonding autl~ority to rcturn cnpital invested in thc l ~ ~ n  propun> Imck to the 
Statc. 13y year-end, a Capital Project Kcvcnuc account was estahlisllcd and fu~idcd with 
$75,000,000 for use in financial various Stalc cq~i ta l  projccrs. 

On Dcccrnhcr 4,2000, the Corporation Doard of Llirectors ;\ullx~rized an interest cost reduction 
for 1o:ins a\vnrdccl with inlcrest rates ol")%, 8.0'!4, and S.(% The :ltnount nf the retlucti~n will 
ranee f'rol~r tl~rcc-lcnths percent (.%) to seven-tenths lperccnt (.7%) of the outsta~idirig princip;~l 
balance of thc lo;~n. l'lic apgregate cost reduction in liscal year 2OOJ was approxim~tcly 
SH83,000. Thc C:oqxmtion expects the cost to umtinuc In dcclinc each year, reaclling ;I linal 
retluclion ol';~ppnxini;~rcly $40.000 hy year 2022. 



Notes to Finnnci;ll Statements 

Junc 30. 2004 and 1003 

by a11 amendment to the Alaska Sl;itulcs.'l'Ile Co~nniission may scizc a borrower's Pcnnnnent 
1;und Dividend (PI'T)) pnymenl, if any, to satisfy h e  1)alarlcc o r  a dcfi~ulted loan pursu;tnt to 
Alaska Statutes 14.43.145 and 43.23.067. '1'0 do so. the Comrllissim issues certified chiln lcttws 
to all borrowers ofdefhultctl loans applying for PM), ~~otit'yirig illcm of the Commission's claim. 
l'hc Commission has seizure priority over all otliur executors cxccpr State cliild suppon 
do]-cemer~t  and any caul-I ortlcrcd restitution. There is rltr iissuntnce that any parlicul;~r 
borrower will qualify or apply for n PFD payment. 

PFD scizurcs collected by the Cornrnissiori wcrc approximately iS4,000,000 and $6,S00,000 for 
the years ended June 30. 2004 and 2003, respcc~ivcly. 

'l'lie 1.egislature and 11ic Ciuvcrnor have. from t i ~ i ~ c  lo lime, considered various :~lternative 
measures including reducing or rcstrictinf the size of the PFD. 'l'lie Cor]>oratiorr cnnnol predict 
whether any sucli measure will bc cn:ietcd or the itnpact any such measure would have on lorn 
collections through PFD seimrcs. 

The education I O R I I  progriim hits traditionally lieerr tlic subjcct of legislative action by tho State. 
l'lie laws governin: thc program h;lvc been amended f iwr~  timc 10 time and will continue to be 
the subject of legislative propos;ils calling for lilnlier arilcndmcnt. I'he effect, i f '  my, on the 
program cannot he determinetl. 

Tlie Coyoration is subject to interest n t c  risk i-elating to its variable rate bonds and the loans 
timded with bmd proceeds. '1-lie honds are suhjcct to all interest rate cap of 14% while the loans 
are suhicct. lo ;m interest rate cap of S.25% to 0.5% dcpcnding on the lo311 Iypc. The Col-poration 
has various slr:~tcgics wailable to manage the risk I11:tt the bond rate may rise nbuvc the loan rate 
cap. 

As rurthcr dcscribed in Note X. on Mny 19, 2004, thc Col-poration issued S1 l5,l 15,000 i n  educatiorl lo;t~l 
rcvcnuc bonds in part for ref~tntling at par 513,05S1000 of  the out.;tmdil~g Series 1994 A liotl~ls a~ltl 
$26,400.000 ol' the Serifs 2002 A Iionrls. T l ~ c  Scrics 1994 A refiinding will occur on July I, 2004 :t11d 
the Scrics 1002 A refunding will occur on i\ugusl 16, 2004. 



APPENDIX I1 

THE MASTER INDENTURE 

Ccrlai~r provisions of flre Mosfcr I~rdc~~frrre relofirrg lo llre 2005 Bonds are governed (inclrrdi~~g irr /Ire ovml 
of co~rflcl) by /Ire Forrrflr S~~pplerncnral Inden111re. 
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Exhibit B CustodianlDepositary/Sewicing 
Agreement 

THIS INDENTURE, made and entered into 
as of June I, 2002, by and between the ALASKA 
STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION, a public 
corporation and government instrumentally created 
and existing under the laws of the State of Alaska 
(herein called the "Corporation" or the "Issuer"), 
and ZIONS FIRST NATIONAL BANK, a national 
banking association organized and existing under 
the laws of the United States, as Trustee (herein 
called the "Trustee"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Corporation is authorized 
by the Act (as herein defined) to issue its bonds for 
the purpose of providing funds to acquire Education 
Loans (as defined herein); and 

WHEREAS, the Corporation has 
determined to enter into this lndenture with the 
Trustee to secure its Bonds (as herein defined) as 
the Corporation may electto issuesuch Bonds from 
time to time in accordance with the terms of this 
lndenture and of any Supplemental lndenture 
executed pursuant to this lndenture; and 

WHEREAS, the Bonds shall be special, 
limited obligations of the Corporation, and the 
principal and redemption premium, if any, of and 
interest on the Bonds shall be payable solely from 
the Trust Estate (as defined herein), subject to the 
provisions of this lndenture authorizing the 
Corporation to create security interests in said Trust 
Estate in favor of Credit Enhancement Agencies 
(as defined herein) and counterparties to lnterest 
Rate Exchange Agreements and, further, subject to 
the provisions of this lndenture authorizing the 
Corporation to create Classes (as defined herein) 
and to grant security interests in the Trust Estate 
that are prioritized based upon such Classes; and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the 
issuance of any Bonds, the Corporation may obtain 
Credit Enhancement or enter into lnterest Rate 
Exchange Agreements (as such terms are defined 
herein) and may secure its obligations under such 
Credit Enhancement or lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreements by a pledge of the Trust Estate 
described below, and such pledge may be of a 
priority less than, equal to, or greater than the 
pledge of the Trust Estate to any class or Series of 
Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the time of issuance of any 
Series of Bonds, the form of Bonds, and other 
relevant terms of Bonds are to be specified in the 
Supplemental lndenture pertaining to such Bonds; 
and 

WHEREAS, the execution and delivery of 
this lndenture have been authorized by Resolution 
2002-01 of the Corporation, a certified copy of 
which has been delivered to the Trustee; and 

WHEREAS, all things necessary to make 
the Bonds, when authorized pursuant to a duly 
adopted Supplemental lndenture and authenticated 
by the Trustee and issued as in this lndenture 
provided, the valid, binding and legal special. 
limited obligations of the Corporation according to 
the import thereof, and to constitute this lndenture 
a valid pledge and assignment of the Trust Estate 
to the payment of the principal or redemption price, 
if any, of and interest on the Bonds and all other 
amounts due in connection therewith (subjectto the 
provisions of this lndenture authorizing the 
Corporation to create a security interest in the Trust 
Estate in favor of Credit Enhancement Agencies 
and counterparties to lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreements) have been done and performed, and 
the creation, execution and delivery of this 
lndenture and the creation, execution and issuance 
of the Bonds subject to the terms hereof, have in all 
respects been duly authorized; 

NOW. THEREFORE, KNOW ALL PERSONS BY 
THESE PRESENTS 

GRANTING CLAUSES 

That the Corporation, in consideration of 
the premises and the acceptance by the Trustee of 
the trusts hereby created and of the purchase and 
acceptance of the Bonds by the Bondholders, and 
for good and valuable consideration, the receipt of 
which is hereby acknowledged, and in order to 
secure the payment of the principal or Redemption 
Price, if any, of and interest on the Bonds and the 
obligations of the Corporation arising under any 
Credit Enhancement facility and any lnterest Rate 
Exchange Agreement (but only if and to the extent 
that the Corporation expressly grants a security 
interest under this lndenture in favor of such Credit 
Enhancement facility or lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement in the Supplemental lndenture 
authorizing the Bonds to which such Credit 
Enhancement facility or lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement relates), all according to their tenor and 
effect and all other amounts due in connection 
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therewith and the performance and observance by 
the Corporation of all the covenants expressed or 
implied herein and in the Bonds, in such Credit 
Enhancement facilities, and in such Interest Rate 
Exchange Agreements, does hereby grant, bargain, 
sell, convey, pledge and assign unto, and grant a 
first priority security interest in and to the T ~ s t e e ,  
and unto its respective successors in trust, and to 
their respective assigns, forever, forthe securing of 
the performance of the obligations of the 
Corporation hereinafter set forth, the following 
(herein, the "Trust Estate"): 

The Pledged Loans, Pledged Receipts, and 
Pledged Loan Notes (all as the same are defined 
herein) including all extensions and renewals of the 
term thereof, if any, together with all right, title and 
interest of the Corporation therein, including, but 
without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the 
present and continuing right to claim, collect and 
receive any of the moneys, income, revenues, 
issues, profits and other amounts payable or 
receivable thereunder, to bring actions and 
proceedings thereunder or for the enforcement 
thereof, and to do any and all things which the 
Corporation is or may become entitled to do under 
the Pledged Loan Notes; provided, however, that 
the foregoing pledge is subject to the Corporation's 
right to modify the terms of, or to take other actions 
which may affect, the Pledged Loans, Pledged 
Receipts, and Pledged Loan Notes pursuant to 
Section 707 herein. 

All Funds and Accounts (except any Credit 
Enhancement Fund) and moneys and investments 
therein includina. but not limited to. undisbursed 
proceeds of BAS and amounts held under the 
Custodian/Depositary/Servicing Agreement; 

Any and all service or support agreements 
by and between the Corporation and either the 
Alaska Commission on Postsecondary Education 
or the Student Financial Aid Committee of said 
Commission, including without limitation the 
agreement governing the administration of the 
Education Loan Trust Fund established in the 
Corporation by the Act; provided, however, that 
notwithstanding the introductory paragraph to  these 
Granting Clauses the security interest created in 
this Clause I l l  is second to, and subject to the prior 

lien of, the Corporation's Indenturedated as of May 
1, 1988; 

All moneysand securitiesfrom time to time 
held by the Trustee under the terms of this 
lndenture (except moneys and securities in any 
Credit Enhancement Fund) and any and all other 
real or personal property of every name and nature 
concurrently herewith or from time to time hereafler 
by delivery or by writing of any nature conveyed, 
mortgaged, pledged, assigned or transferred as 
and for additional security under this lndenture for 
the Bonds, to the extent so conveyed, mortgaged, 
pledged, assigned ortransferred by the Corporation 
or by anyone in its behalf, or with its written 
consent, to the Trustee, which is hereby authorized 
to receive any and all such property at any and all 
times and to hold and apply the same subject to the 
terms hereof; and 

Any and all proceeds of the foregoing, 
subject, in all cases, to the terms and provisions of 
this lndenture governing the use and application of 
all such property and rights in property including the 
Corporation'srighttowithdraw, freeand clearofthe 
lien of this lndenture. Pledged Loans, cash and 
other property held hereunder or credited hereto 
subject to the requirements hereof; 

TO HAVE AND T O  HOLD all and singular 
the Trust Estate, whether now owned or hereafter 
acquired, unto the Trustee and its respective 
successors and assigns in trust forever to its and 
their own proper use and behalf but: 

IN TRUST NEVERTHELESS, upon the 
terms and trusts herein set forth for the equal and 
proportionate benefit, security and protection of all 
present and future owners of the Bonds from time 
to time issued and to be issued under and secured 
by this lndenture without privilege, priority or 
distinction as to the lien or otherwise of any of the 
Bonds except to the extent that any privilege. 
priority, or distinction may be created pursuant to 
the terms of this lndenture with respect to the 
creation of Classes (as defined herein); 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that if the 
Corporation, its successors or assigns, shall well 
and truly pay, or cause to be paid, the principal or 
Redemption Price, if any, of and interest on, the 
Bonds due or to become due thereon, and all other 
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amounts due thereunder, at the times and in the 
manner mentioned in the Bonds according to their 
tenor and in accordance herewith, and shall cause 
the payments to be made on the Bonds as required 
under Article VII hereof, or shall provide, as 
permitted hereby, forthe paymentthereof, and shall 
well and truly keep, perform and observe all the 
covenants and conditions pursuant to the terms of 
this lndenture to be kept, performed and observed 
by it, and shan pay or cause to be paid to the 
Trustee all sums of money due orto become due to 
it in accordance with the terms and provisions of 
this lndenture, then upon the final payment thereof 
this lndenture and the rights hereby granted shall 
cease, terminate and be void; otherwise this 
lndenture to be and remain in full force and effect. 

THIS INDENTURE OFTRUST FURTHER 
WITNESSETH, and it is expressly declared, that all 
Bonds issued and secured hereunder are to be 
issued, authenticated and delivered and all of the 
property, rights and interests, including, without 
limitation, the loan payments and other amounts 
hereby assigned and pledged are to be dealt with 
and disposed of under, upon and subject to the 
terms, conditions, stipulations, covenants. 
agreements, trusts, uses and purposes as 
hereinafter expressed, and the Corporation has 
agreed and covenanted, and does hereby agree 
and covenant with the Trustee and with the 
respective holders of the Bonds as follows: 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS 

Section 101 -Definitions. In this lndenture, 
unless the context otherwise requires, the following 
words and terms shall have the meanings set forth 
in this Section: 

"Account" shall mean one of the special 
accounts created and established pursuant to 
Section 501 or Section 510 of this lndenture. 

"Accountant" shall mean a certified public 
accountant or firm of independent certified public 
accountants selected by the Corporation and may 
be the accountant or firm of accountants that 
regularly audits the books of the Corporation. 

"Act" shall mean Sections 14.42.100 
through 14.42.990 of the Alaska Statutes, as 
amended. 

"Additional Bonds"shall mean Bondsother 
than the first series of Bonds authenticated and 
delivered under this lndenture. 

"Authorized Newspaper" shall mean a 
newspaperorfinancial journal printed in the English 
language and customarily published (except in the 
case of legal holidays) at least once a day for at 
least five days in each calendar week, which is of 
general circulation in the Borough of Manhattan, 
City and State of New York. 

"Authorized Officer" shall mean the 
Chairman or Executive Officer of the Corporation 
and, in the case of an act to be perfomled or a duty 
to be discharged, any member, officer or employee 
ofthe Corporation then authorized by the Chairman 
or Executive Officer or by action of the Board of 
Directors of the Corporation to perform such act or 
discharge such duty. 

"Bond"shall mean oneofthe bonds, notes, 
or other evidences of indebtedness authenticated 
and delivered under this lndenture. 

"Bond Counsel" shall mean any firm of 
attorneys selected by the Corporation and 
acceptable to the Trustee that is recognized 
nationally as expert in the area of municipal finance 
and tax-exempt obligations. 

"Bondholder" or "holder" orwords of similar 
import, when used with reference to a Bond or 
Bonds, shall mean any person who shall be the 
registered owner of any Outstanding Bond or 
Bonds issued in fully registered form or the bearer 
of any Bond or Bonds issued in bearer form or 
registered to bearer. 

"Bond Payment Date" shall mean any day 
on which interest, principal, redemption premium or 
any other payment on a Bond is required to be 
made, whether at maturity, redemption or 
otherwise. 

"Bond Year" shall mean the twelve-month 
period beginning on July 1 of any year (but not 
including any year in which there are no Bonds or 
Parity Obligations 0utstanding)and ending on June 
30 of the following year. 

"Business Day" shall mean any day other 
than a Saturday or Sunday or any other day on 
which banks in New York, Alaska, or the state or 
states in which any Trustee appointed hereunder 
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performs its duties hereunder are authorized or 
required to be closed or are closed. 

"By Class in Descending Order of Priority" 
shall mean that any action to be so taken shall be 
taken first with respect to the Bonds that are 
designated as the highest priority Class of Bonds 
Outstanding until there is no such action required 
for such Bonds and then such action shall be taken 
for each lower priority Class of Bonds Outstanding 
in order until such action shall no longerbe required 
for each such Class. 

"Capital Reserve Fund" shall mean the 
capital reserve fund created pursuant to Section 
501 and described as such under the Act. 

"Capital Reserve Requirement." with 
respect to any Series or Class of Bonds, shall have 
the meaning provided in the Supplemental 
lndenture authorizing the issuance of such Bonds. 

"Certificate" shall mean a signed document 
either attesting to or acknowledging the 
circumstances, representations or other matters 
therein stated or set forth or setting forth matters to 
be determined by an Authorized Officer pursuant to 
this Indenture. 

"Class" shall mean one or more Series of 
Bonds, Credit Enhancement facilities, and Interest 
Rate Exchange Agreements having the same 
security interest with respect to the Trust Estate. 

"Code" shall mean the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended. 

"Commission" shall mean the Alaska 
Commission on Postsecondary Education. 

"Continuing Disclosure Agreement" shall 
mean, for each Series, the continuing disclosure 
certificate or agreement, if any, executed by the 
Corporation for the purpose of satisfying the 
continuing disclosure requirements of Rule 15~2-12 
of the Securities and Exchange Commission with 
respect to such Series, as such continuing 
disclosure certificate or agreement is originally 
executed and as it may be amended from time to 
time in accordance with its t e n s .  

"Corporation" shall mean the Alaska 
Student Loan Corporation, a public corporation and 
government instrumentality created and existing 
pursuant to the Act. 

"Costs of Issuance" shall mean all items of 
expense directly or indirectly payable or 
reimbursable by or to the Corporation and related 
to the authorization, sale, or issuance of Bonds, 
including, but not limited to, printing costs; costs of 
preparation and reproduction of documents; filing 
and recording fees; initial fees and charges of any 
Fiduciary and its counsel; legal fees and charges; 
underwriting compensation; placement agent 
compensation; fees and disbursements of 
consultants and professionals; costs of credit 
ratings; fees and charges of any Credit 
~nhancemenl Agency in connection with providing 
Credil Enhancement for any of the Bonds; fees and 
charges for preparation, execution, transportation 
and safekeeping of Bonds; costs and expenses of 
refunding; premiums for the insurance of the 
payment of Bonds; and any other cost, charge or 
fee in connection with the original issuance of 
Bonds. 

"Counsel's Opinion" shall mean an opinion 
signed by an attorney or fin of attorneys of 
nationally recognized standing in the field of law 
relating to state and municipal financing (who may 
be counsel to the Corporation) selected by the 
Corporation and acceptable to the Trustee. 

"Credit Enhancement" shall mean a letter 
of credit, a line of credit, a credit facility, a surety 
bond, bond insurance, or any other instrument or 
arrangement obtained in connection with the 
issuance of a Series of Bonds to further secure the 
payment of the Bonds of such Series or the 
payment of any Pledged Loans. 

"Credit Enhancement Agency" shall mean 
any bank or other institution that provides Credit 
Enhancement. 

"Credit Enhancement Fund shall mean a 
Fund or Account authorized to be created by the 
Corporation under Section 510(B) for the purposes 
of holding and disbursing the proceeds of, or 
holding only, Credit Enhancement. 

"Custod ian lDepos i tary /Serv ic ing 
Agreement" shall mean that certain agreement with 
respect to custody of a portion of the Trust Estate 
by and among the Corporation, the Trustee, and 
the State through the Commission and through its 
Department of Revenue, dated June 1,2002. 

"Debt Service" shall mean, for a Series of 
Bonds Outstanding and for any Parity Obligations 
Outstanding, the scheduled amount of interest and 
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Principal Installmentspayableon the Bondsofsuch 
Series or on such Parity Obligations (or 
substantially equivalent payments due on Parity 
Obligations) during the period of computation. 

"Default Payment" shall mean all amounts 
(in any form) received by the Corporation, by the 
Trustee acting on behalf of the Bondholders, or by 
any agent of either of them as a result of the 
acceleration of the due date of any Pledged Loan 
because of an event of default with respect to such 
Pledged Loan. 

"Depositary" shall mean the State or any 
bank or trust company or national banking 
association selected by the T ~ s t e e  or the 
Corporation as a depositary of moneys orsecurities 
held under the provisions of this Indenture, and 
may include the Trustee, if such party agrees to 
hold such money or securities as an agent of the 
Trustee. 

"Education Loan" shall mean a loan. 
including but not limited to Guaranteed Loans, that 
is authorized by the Act or any other qualifying 
program that may be established by or for the 
Commission or the Corporation or an entity 
controlled by either of them as any such program 
may be administered from time to time by the 
Commission or the Corporation or such entity; 
provided, however, that if any change is made to 
the Education Loan Program as it existson the date 
hereof or if any new program is established by or 
under the Act, "Education Loan" shall not include 
any loan purchased or financed under the 
Education Loan Program, as so changed, or under 
any such new program unless the Corporation shall 
have filed with the Trustee a Rating Confirmation 
reflecting such change or such new program. 

"Education Loan Fund" shall mean the 
Education Loan Fund established within the Master 
Education Loan Revenue Bond Account pursuant 
to Section 501. 

"Education Loan Program" shall have the 
meaning set forth in Section 204. 

"Education Loan Trust Fund" shall mean 
the special revolving trust fund of the Corporation 
created and established by the Act. 

"Event of Default" shall mean any of the 
events specified in clauses (1) through (7) of 
Section 1002. 

"Excess Coverage" shall mean, as of any 
date of calculation, and except as othenvise 
provided in a Supplemental Indenture, the amount 
by which the sum of the value of (a) the Education 
Loans (valued at par plus accrued interest and 
accrued Special Allowance Payments, as such 
t e n  is defined in the Higher Education Act, if any) 
credited to the Education Loan Fund and (b) all 
cash and Investment Securities held in the Funds 
and Accounts (valued as set forth herein or in the 
pertinent Supplemental Indenture, plus accrued 
interest, but excluding amounts irrevocably set 
aside to pay particular Bonds pursuant to Section 
1201) shall exceed all of the following sums taken 
individually and not as an aggregate: (x) 107% of 
the sum of the principal and accrued interest on all 
Outstanding Class I Bonds; and (y) 101.5% of the 
sum of the principal of and accrued interest on all 
Outstanding Bonds; all as evidenced in a 
Certificate, upon which the Trustee may 
conclusively rely. 

"Fiduciary" shall mean the Trustee or any 
Paying Agent or any Co-Paying Agent or Co- 
Registrar for the Bonds or any Series of Bonds. 

"Fund" shall mean one of the special trust 
funds established pursuant to Section 501(A) or 
Section 510. 

"Guaranteed Loan" shall mean (i) any 
Education Loan that is guaranteed underthe Higher 
Education Act; if the Higher Education Act is 
reauthorized or amended and the terms or 
characteristics of loans guaranteed under the 
Higher Education Act following such reauthorization 
or amendment, including but not limited to terms 
and characteristics relating to loan benefits and 
servicing, are materially different than they were 
before such reauthorization or amendment, then 
"Guaranteed Loan" shall mean an Education Loan 
guaranteed under the Higher Education Act as so 
reauthorized or amended only if there has been 
filed with the Trustee a Rating Confirmation that 
takes into consideration such change in terms or 
characteristics; and (ii) any Education Loan that is 
guaranteed under any other federal law, but only if 
a Rating Confirmation is filed with the Trustee 
taking intoconsideration theguarantee undersuch 
other federal law. 

"Guarantor" shall mean any entity which 
has entered into an agreementwith the Corporation 
to guarantee education loans under the Higher 
Education Act or other federal law and has entered 
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into an agreement with the Secretary for 
reinsurance of its guarantees of education loans. 

"Higher Education Act" shall mean Title IV 
of the Higher Education Act of 1965, as amended, 
or any successor federal act, and the regulations, 
directives, bulletins, and guidelines promulgated 
thereunder. 

"lndenture" shall mean this lndenture as 
from time to time amended and supplemented in 
accordance with the terms hereof. 

"Interest Payment Date" shall mean any 
date upon which interest on any Bonds is payable 
in accordance with the terms of the Bonds and the 
terms of this lndenture or any Supplemental 
Indenture. 

"Interest Rate Exchange Agreement" shall 
mean a contract entered into by the Corporation or 
by the Trustee on behalf of the Corporation 
providing for an interest rate cap, floor, or swap with 
respect to any Bonds or Pledged Loans. 

"Investment Securities" shall have the 
meaning, with respect to any Class, set forth in any 
of the Supplemental Indentures authorizing a 
Series of Bonds of such Class if any of the Bonds 
of such Class and Series are Outstanding at the 
time of reference, provided that if more than one 
Series of Bonds of a particular Class has Bonds 
Outstanding and the meanings in the Supplemental 
lndenturesaredifferent, lnvestmentSecuritiesshall 
mean only those investments appearing in both or 
all Supplemental lndentures for Bonds of such 
Series and Class (in the determination of the 
Trustee, which shall be conclusive). 

"Moody's" shall mean Moody's Investors 
Service Inc. 

"Original Purchaser" shall mean with 
respect to each Series the first purchaser or 
purchasers of the Bonds of such Series from the 
Corporation. 

"Outstanding", when used with reference to 
Bonds, shall mean, as of any date, all Bonds 
theretofore or thereupon being authenticated and 
delivered under this lndenture except: 

(1) Any Bonds canceled by the 
Corporation or the Trustee at or prior to 
such date; 

(2) Bonds (or portions of Bonds) for 
the payment or redemption of which there 
shall be held in trust hereunder and set 
aside moneys or Investment Securities 
which represent or are secured by the full 
faith and credit of the United States of 
America, which are not subject to 
redemption prior to the dates on which 
amounts will be needed to make payments 
and the principal of and interest on which 
when due will provide moneys which, 
togetherwith the moneys, if any, deposited 
at the same time, will be sufficient to pay 
the principal or Redemption Price thereof, 
as the case may be, with interest to the 
date of maturity or redemption date on 
such Bonds (or portions of Bonds) and, if 
such Bonds are to be redeemed, for which 
notice of such redemption shall have been 
given as provided in Article VI or provisions 
satisfactory to the Trustee shall have been 
made for the giving of such notice; 

(3) Bonds for the transfer or exchange 
of or in lieu of or in substitution for which 
other Bonds shall have been authenticated 
and delivered pursuant to this lndenture; 
and 

(4) Bonds deemed to have been paid 
as provided in subsection (B) of 
Section 1201. 

"Parity Obligations" shall mean bonds, 
notes, or other obligations so described in 
Section 209(A) hereof and issued under or secured 
by a Parity Obligation Instrument. 

"Parity Obligation Instrument" shall mean 
the indenture, resolution, or other instrument 
securing any Parity Obligation and underwhich the 
Parity Obligation was issued. 

"Paying Agent" shall mean any bank or 
trust company, which may include the Trustee, 
designated by the Corporation as paying agent or 
co-paying agent forthe Bondsofany Series, and its 
or their successor or successors hereafter 
appointed in the manner herein provided. 

"Permitted Spread" shall mean the 
maximum spread between the yield on the Bonds 
of a Series and the yield on the Education Loans 
financed with proceeds of, or, under the Code or 
the Regulations, allocable to, the Series permitted 
under the Code and the Regulations without 
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adversely affecting the tax-exempt status of such 
Bonds. 

"Pledged Loan" shall mean any Education 
Loan held in or credited to the Education Loan 
Fund under this lndenture. 

"Pledged Loan Note" shall mean the 
promissory note orotherdocumentation evidencing 
a Pledged Loan. 

"Pledged Receipts" shall mean (i) all 
amounts, including principal and interest payments, 
paid or payable or othewise received under or 
pursuant to or with respect to any Pledged Loan 
(monthly or otherwise) including, without limitation, 
both timely and delinquent payments with late 
charges, fees and charges, special allowance 
payments, insurance or guaranty payments, 
subsidy payments, and all other revenues and 
income paid to the Trustee, the Corporation, or any 
agent of either on account of or in connection with 
any Pledged Loan, (ii) all Recoveries of Principal, 
and (iii) all interest paid or payable or any gain 
realized upon the investment or deposit of amounts 
in any Fund or Account, but shall not include any 
amount retained by any Servicer of any Pledged 
Loan (otherthan the Corporation, the Commission. 
or any related entity) as compensation for services 
rendered. 

"Prepayment" shall mean any amount 
received or recovered as a prepayment of the 
principal amount of any Pledged Loan, including 
any prepayment penalty, fee, premium or other 
such additional charge, less the amount retained by 
any Servicer of such Pledged Loan, other than the 
Corporation, as additional compensation resulting 
from such prepayment. 

"Principal Installment" shall mean, as of 
any date of calculation and with respect to the 
Outstanding Bonds of any Series, (i) the principal 
amount of such Bonds which are due on a certain 
future date, reduced by the aggregate principal 
amount of such Bonds which would be retired by 
reason of the payment when due and application in 
accordance with this lndenture of Sinking Fund 
Payments payable before such future date for the 
retirement of such Bonds or (ii) the unsatisfied 
balance, determined as provided in  
subsection 505(E), of any Sinking Fund Payment 
due on a certain future date for such Bonds, plus 
the aggregate amount of the premiums, if any, 
which would beapplicable on such futuredate upon 
the redemption of such Bonds by application of 

such Sinking Fund Payments in a principal amount 
equal to said unsatisfied balance or (iii) if such 
future dates coincide as to different Bonds of such 
Series, the sum of such principal amount of Bonds, 
unsatisfied balance and applicable premiums, if any 
or (iv) for any particular Series of Bonds the amount 
specified in the Supplemental lndenture authorizing 
such Series of Bonds. 

"Principal Installment DateWshall meanany 
date upon which a Principal Installment is payable 
on any Bond in accordance with its terms and the 
terms of this lndenture. 

"Program Expenses" shall mean all the 
Corporation's expenses in carrying out and 
administering its Education Loan Program, insofar 
as they are fairly allocable to all Pledged Loans, 
and in servicing the Pledged Loans; "Program 
Expenses" shall include, without limiting the 
generality of the foregoing, expenses incurred in 
the collection of Education Loans: salaries, 
supplies, utilities, mailing, labor, materials, office 
rent, maintenance, furnishings, equipment, 
machinery and apparatus; insurance premiums; 
legal, accounting, management, consulting and 
banking services and expenses; the fees and 
expenses of the Trustee and its agents and 
counsel; the fees and expenses of Depositaries and 
Paying Agents: Costs of Issuance not paid from 
proceeds of Bonds: and payments for pension, 
retirement, health and hospitalization and life and 
disability insurance benefits, all to the extent 
properly allocable to the Education Loan Program 
insofar as they are fairly allocable to Pledged 
Loans. 

"Rating Agency" shall mean any securities 
rating agency but only if and during the times that 
such agency shall have assigned, at the request of 
the Corporation or in connection with any Credit 
Enhancement obtained by the Corporation, and 
have in effect a rating for any of the Outstanding 
Bonds. 

"Rating Confirmation" shall mean a letter 
from each Rating Agency then providing a rating for 
any Bonds confirming that the action proposed to 
be taken will not, in and of itself, have the effect of 
(i) reducing or withdrawing the rating then 
applicable to those Bonds if those Bonds are not 
secured by Credit Enhancement which requires the 
ratings on the Bonds to be maintained at a certain 
minimum rating, or (ii) if those Bonds are secured 
by Credit Enhancement which requires that the 
ratings on the Bonds (without regard to Credit 
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Enhancement) be maintained at a certain minimum 
rating, reducing their rating to a rating below such 
minimum rating without regard to the rating of the 
Credit Enhancement Agency or withdrawing the 
rating. 

"Record Date" shall have the meaning set 
forth in the Supplemental lndenture authorizing the 
particular Series of Bonds. 

"Recoveries of Principal" shall mean all 
amounts received by the Corporation as a recovery 
of the principal amount of any Pledged Loan. 
including any Default Payment, Prepaymentorsale 
Payment. 

"Redemption Date" shall mean the date on 
which any Bonds are subject to redemption. 

"Redemption Account" shall mean the 
Redemption Account of the Revenue Fund 
established pursuant to Section 501. 

"Redemption Price" shall mean, with 
respect to any Bond, the principal amount thereof 
plus the applicable premium, if any, payable upon 
redemption thereof pursuant to the provisions of 
such Bond or this lndenture. 

"Refunding Bonds" shall mean all Bonds. 
whether issued in one or more Series. 
authenticated and delivered on original issuance for 
the purpose ofrefunding Bonds or other obligations 
of the Corporation and all Bonds thereafter 
authenticated and delivered upon the transfer or 
exchange of or in lieu of or in substitution for such 
Bonds pursuant to this lndenture. 

"Registrar" shall mean the person or entity 
responsible for maintaining the registration books of 
the Corporation with respect to the Bonds. 

"Regulations" shall mean temporary and 
permanent regulations promulgated under the 
Code. 

"Revenue Fund" shall mean the Revenue 
Fund established pursuant to Section 501. 

"Sale Payment" shall mean any amount 
received by the Corporation from the sale, 
assignment, endorsement or other disposition of 
any Pledged Loan, except Prepayments or Default 
Payments; provided that withdrawal of a Pledged 
Loan pursuant to Section 502(G) shall not be 
considered a disposition leading toa Sale Payment. 

"Secretary" shall mean the Secretary ofthe 
United States Department of Education. 

"Series" shall mean all the Bonds 
authenticated and delivered on original issuance 
pursuant to a Supplemental lndenture and 
designated as a Series therein and any Bonds 
thereafter authenticated and delivered upon the 
transfer or exchange of or in lieu of or in 
substitution for (but not to refund) such Bonds as 
herein provided, regardless ofvariations in maturity. 
interest rate. Sinking Fund Payments, or other 
provisions. 

"Series Account" shall mean, for each 
Series, the Series Education Loan Account 
established for such Series pursuant to Section 
502. 

"Servicer" shall mean the Corporation, the 
Commission, or, if there has been filed with the 
Trustee a Rating Confirmation reflecting the 
servicing ofany Pledged Loan by anotherinstitution 
pursuant to a Servicing Agreement, any such 
institution. 

"Servicing Agreement" shall mean a 
contractual agreement of the Corporation with a 
Servicerotherthan the Cor~oration forthe servicino 
of Pledged Loans by the ~ervicer. 

" 

"Sinking Fund Installment" shall mean, as 
of any particular date of calculation and with 
respectto the Outstanding Bondsof any Series, the 
amount required to be paid at all events by the 
Corporation on a single future date for the 
retirement of Bonds of such Series which mature 
after said future date, but does not include any 
amount payable by the Corporation by reason only 
of the maturity of a Bond. 

"S&PM shall mean Standard & Poor's 
Corporation. 

"State" shall mean the State of Alaska. 

"Subordinate Obligations" shall mean 
bonds, notes, or other obligations described in 
Section 209(B). 

"Supplemental lndenture" shall mean an 
indenture supplemental to or amendatory of this 
Indenture, executed by the Corporation and 
effective as provided in Article VIII. 
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"Surplus Revenues" shall mean, first, 
amounts held at any time in the Revenue Fund and 
described in Paragraph Eighth of Section 503(C) 
hereof and, second, amounts held in any 
Unallocated Account within the Education Loan 
Fund; provided, however, that the Corporation may 
reverse the foregoing order of priority in 
determining, or eliminate specified amounts from 
being considered as, Surplus Revenues by a 
written direction to the T ~ s t e e .  

"Trustee" shall mean the trustee appointed 
pursuant to Article XI and any successor or 
successors to it or any other person at any time 
substituted in its place pursuant to this lndenture. 

"Trust Estate" shall have the meaning 
provided in the Granting Clauses of this lndenture. 

"Unallocated Account" shall mean an 
Unallocated Account within the Education Loan 
Fund established pursuant to Section 501. 

"Yield Reduction Payment" shall mean the 
minimum amounts payable to the United States 
Treasury as described in Treas. Reg. §I ,148-5(c). 

Section 102 - Interpretations. (A) In this 
Indenture, unless the context othenvise requires: 

(1) Articles and Sections 
referred to by number shall mean the 
corresponding Articles and Sections of this 
Indenture; 

(2) The terms "hereby", 
"hereor, "hereto". "herein", "hereunder" 
and any similar terms, as used in this 
lndenture, refer to this lndenture, and the 
term "hereafter" shall mean after, and the 
term "heretofore" shall mean before, the 
date of its execution: 

(3) Words of the masculine 
gender shall mean and include correlative 
words of the feminine and neuter genders 
and words importing the singular number 
shall mean and include the plural number 
and vice versa; 

(4) Words importing persons 
shall include firms, associations. 
partnerships ( inc lud ing l imi ted 
partnerships), trusts, corporations and 

other legalentities, including public bodies, 
as well as natural persons; 

(5) Words importing the 
redemption or redeeming of a Bond or the 
calling of a Bond for redemption do not 
include or connote the payment of such 
Bond at its stated maturity or the purchase 
of such Bond; 

(6) Any headings preceding 
the texts of the several Articles and 
Sections of this lndenture, and table of 
contents or marginal notes appended to 
copies hereof, shall be solely for 
convenience of reference and shall not 
constitute a part of this lndenture, nor shall 
they affect its meaning, construction or 
effect; 

(7) I f  a Supp lementa l  
lndenture authorizes coupon Bonds it shall 
make provisions for publication of notices 
required to be mailed hereafter in an 
Authorized Newspaper. The notices shall 
be published and contain the same 
information as notices required to be 
mailed. If, because of the temporary or 
permanent suspension ofthe publication or 
general circulation of all Authorized 
Newspapers or for any other reason, it is 
impossible or impractical to publish any 
notice pursuant to this lndenture in the 
manner herein provided, then such 
publication in lieu thereof as shall be made 
with the approval of the Trustee shall 
constitute a sufficient publication of such 
notice; 

(8) U n l e s s  o t h e r w i s e  
determined by the Corporation, any 
Education Loan financed by application of 
amounts in any Series Account shall be 
deemed to have been financed by 
application of amounts relating to the 
Series of Bonds for which such Fund was 
established (and first by proceeds of such 
Series of Bonds) or shall be deemed to 
have been financed proportionately by 
application of amounts relating to one or 
more Series to the extent that such 
Education Loan has been financed by 
application of amounts in more than one 
Series Account; 
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(9) The date upon which any 
Sinking Fund Payment is required to be 
paid pursuant to the Supplemental 
lndenture authorizing the issuance and 
delivery of a Series of Bonds shall be 
deemed to be the date upon which such 
Sinking Fund Payment is payable and the 
Outstanding Bonds of such Series to be 
retired by application of such Sinking Fund 
Payment shall be deemed to be the Bonds 
entitled to such Sinking Fund Payment; 

(10) With respect to any Bond 
that bears interest at a stated rate, 
compounded periodically, first payable (i) 
at maturity or prior redemption or (ii) 
commencing as of a date more than one 
year after the initial authentication and 
delivery thereof, for all purposes of this 
lndenture and of any Supplemental 
lndenture adopted pursuant to this 
Indenture, unless the context or the related 
Supplemental lndenture otherwise 
requires, the "principal amount" of such 
Bond as of any date of calculation shall be 
deemed to be equal to the sum of (x) the 
stated principal amount of such Bond upon 
original issuance plus (y) an amount equal 
to interest thereon accrued (and not 
currently payable) and compounded at the 
applicable rate to the Bond Payment Date 
or other date specified in the related 
Supplemental lndenture which most 
immediately precedes or corresponds to 
the date of calculation; 

(11) This lndenture shall be 
governed by and construed in accordance 
with the applicable laws of the State; 

(12) Any requirement for 
amounts to be deposited in any Fund or 
Account shall be considered satisfied upon 
the crediting of such amounts to such Fund 
or Account; and 

(13) Any requirement herein or 
in any Supplemental lndenture for the 
payment of any money or the taking of any 
other action on a particular date may, 
unless otherwise specifically required, be 
taken on the Business Day following such 
date if such date is not a Business Day and 
such requirement shall thereupon be 
satisfied with the same effect as if the 

payment was made orthe action taken on 
the date required. 

(B) Nothing in this lndenture 
expressed or implied is intended or shall be 
construed to confer upon, or to give to, any person, 
other than the Corporation, the Fiduciaries, the 
Credit Enhancement Agencies and the 
counterparties to Interest Rate Exchange 
Agreements to which the Corporation has expressly 
granted an interest herein and then only to the 
extent of that interest, and the holders of the Bonds 
any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of 
this lndenture or any covenant, conditions or 
stipulation thereof. All the covenants, stipulations. 
promises and agreements in this lndenture 
contained by and on behalf of the Corporation shall 
be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the 
Corporation, the Fiduciaries, such Credit 
Enhancement Agencies and counterparties to 
lnterest Rate Exchange Agreements, and the 
holders of the Bonds. 

Section 103 - Severabilitv of Invalid 
Provisions. If any one or more of the covenants or 
agreements provided in this lndenture on the part 
of the Corporation orany Fiduciary to be performed 
should be contrary to law, then such covenant or 
covenants or agreement or agreements, shall be 
deemed separable from the remaining covenants 
and agreements hereof, and shall in no way affect 
the validity of the other provisions of this lndenture 
or of the Bonds. 

ARTICLE II 
AUTHORIZATION, OBLIGATION AND 

ISSUANCE OF BONDS 

Section 201 - Authorization for lndenture. 
This lndenture is authorized and executed by virtue 
of and pursuant to the provisions of the Act. The 
Corporation has ascertained and hereby 
determines and declares that execution of this 
lndenture is necessary to carry out the powers and 
duties expressly provided by the Act, that each and 
every act, matter, thing or course of conduct as to 
which provision is made herein is necessary or 
convenient in order to carry out and effectuate the 
purposes ofthe Corporation in accordance with the 
Act and to carry out powers expressly given in the 
Act and that each and every covenant or 
agreement herein contained and made is 
necessary, useful or convenient in order to better 
secure the Bonds and are contracts or agreements 
necessary, useful and convenient to carry out and 
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effectuate the corporate purposes of the 
Corporation under the Act. 

Section 202 - lndenture to Constitute 
Contract. In consideration of the purchase and 
acceptance of the Bonds by those who shall hold 
the same from time to time, the provisions of this 
lndenture shall be a part of the contract of the 
Corporation with the holders of Bonds and shall be 
deemed to be and shall constitute a contract 
between the Corporation, the TNstee and the 
holders from time to time of the Bonds. The pledge 
hereof and the provisions, covenants and 
agreements herein set forth to be performed by or 
on behalf of the Corporation shall be forthe benefit, 
protection and security of the holders of any and all 
of such Bonds. Each Bond, Credit Enhancement 
facility, and lnterest Rate Exchange Agreement of 
a Class, regardless of the time or times of its issue 
or maturity, shall be of equal rank without 
preference, priority or distinction over any other 
Bond. Credit Enhancement facility, or lnterest Rate 
Exchange Agreement of such Class except as 
expressly provided in this lndenture. 

Section 203 - Obliqation of Bonds. This 
lndenture creates an issue of bonds of the 
Corporation and creates a continuing pledge and 
lien to secure the full and final payment of the 
principal or Redemption Price of and interest on 
such bonds, and any Sinking Fund Installments for 
the retirement thereof. The Bonds shall be special, 
limited obligations of the Corporation, and the 
principal or Redemption Price, if any, thereof and 
the interestthereon shall be payablesolely from the 
Trust Estate, subject to the provisions of Section 
510(D) hereof authorizing the Corporation to create 
a security interest in the Trust Estate in favor of 
Credit Enhancement Agenc:es and counterparties 
to Interest Rate Exchanoe Aareements. Tne Bonds - - 
shall contain on their face a statement that neither 
the faith and credit northe taxing power of the State 
or ofany political subdivision ofthe State is pledged 
to the payment of the principal thereof or the 
interest thereon. 

Section 204 - Authorization of Bonds. In 
order to provide suflicient funds for the 
~or~orat ion 's  program of financing or purchasing 
Education Loans pursuant to the Act (the 
"Education Loan Program"), bonds of the 
Corporation are hereby authorized to be issued 
from time to time without limitation as to amount 
except as herein provided or as may be limited by 
law, and such bonds shall be issued subject to the 
terms, conditions and limitations established in this 

lndenture and in one or more Series and in such 
Classes as hereinafter provided. 

Section 205 - Issuance and Delivery of 
Bonds; Classes of Obliqations. (A) Afler their 
authorization by a Supplemental Indenture, Bonds 
of a Series may be executed by oron behalf of the 
Corporation and delivered to the Trustee for 
authentication and, upon compliance by the 
Corporation with the requirements, if any, set forth 
in such Supplemental lndenture and with the 
requirements of Section 206 or, in the case of 
Refunding Bonds, Section 207, the Trustee shall 
thereupon authenticate and deliver such Bonds to 
or upon the order of the Corporation. 

(B) The Corporation may designate 
Classes of Bonds and may also include Credit 
Enhancementfacilitiesand lnterest RateExchange 
Agreements in such Classes. Unless otherwise 
designated, any Bond shall be presumed to be of 
the highest Class, and such highest Class shall be 
referred to as "Class I . "  Lower Classes shall be 
designated by successive roman numerals. Except 
as otherwise provided in a Supplemental lndenture 
relating to any Series or Class of Bonds, the 
Trustee and the Corporation are obligated to apply 
the Trust Estate to the payment of amounts due 
with respect to any Class before applying the Trust 
Estate to the payment of amounts due with respect 
to any lower Class. 

Section 206 - Conditions Precedent to 
Delivery of a Series of Bonds. All (but not less than 
all) the Bonds of a Series (other than Refunding 
Bonds) shall be executed by the Corporation for 
issuance and delivered to the Trustee and 
thereupon shall be authenticated by the TNstee 
and delivered to the Corporation or upon its order, 
but only upon satisfaction of Section 708 hereof 
and the receipt by the Trustee of: 

(1) ACounsel'sOpinion tothe 
effect that (i) the Corporation has the right 
and power to execute and deliver this 
lndenture under the Act as amended to the 
date of such Opinion; (ii) this lndenture has 
been duly and lawfully executed and 
delivered by the Corporation, is in full force 
and effect and is valid and binding upon 
the Corporation and enforceable in 
accordance with its terms (subject, as to 
enforcement of remedies, to applicable 
bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency. 
moratorium, or other laws affecting 
creditors' rights generally from time to time 
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in effect); (iii) this lndenture creates the 
valid pledge and assignment which it 
purports to create of the Trust Estate, 
subject to the application thereof to the 
purposes and on the conditions permitted 
by this lndenture; (iv) the Bonds of such 
Series arevalid and binding special, limited 
obligations ofthe Corporation, enforceable 
in accordance with their terms and the 
terms of this lndenture; and (v) the Bonds 
of such Series have been duly and validly 
authorized and issued in accordance with 
the constitution and statutes of the State, 
including the Act as amended to the date 
of such Opinion, and in accordance with 
this lndenture; 

(2) A written order as to the 
delivery of such Bonds, signed by an 
Authorized Officer; 

(3) Either an original of the 
Supplemental lndenture authorizing such 
Series or a copy thereof certified by an 
Authorized Officer, which Supplemental 
lndenture shall specify: 

(a) The authorized 
principal amount and Series 
designation of such Bonds; if such 
Bonds are of a Class lower than 
Class I, the Supplemental 
lndenture must include such 
designation as well; 

(b) The purposes for 
which such Series is being issued. 
which shall be one or more of the 
following: (i) the making of 
deposits into any Fund or Account. 
(ii) the refunding of any Bonds, or 
(iii) paying Costs of issuance; 

(c) The date, and the 
maturity date or dates, of the 
Bonds of such Series or the 
method of determining the same; 

(d) (i) The interest 
rate or rates (if any) or maximum 
interest rate of the Bonds of such 
Series, or the manner of 
determining such rate or rates 
(which may be determinable at 
one or more specified times set 
forth in the Supplemental 

Indenture, which may accrete or 
compound with such frequencies 
or in such manner as shall be 
specified in such Supplemental 
lndenture and which shall be as 
otherwise specified in the 
Supplemental Indenture), and the 
lnterest Payment Dates and 
Record Dates therefor and (ii) a 
manner of calculating accreted 
value or compounded principal 
value during all or any part of the 
term of the Series of Bonds being 
authorized, if interest is not 
payable currently and the 
Corporation determines that it is 
necessary or appropriate; 

(e) The Paying Agent 
or Paying Agents and the place or 
places of payment of the principal 
and Redemption Price, if any, of, 
and interest on, the Bonds of such 
Seriesorthe mannerofappointing 
and designating the same; 

(f) The Redemption 
Price or Prices, if any, and, subject 
to the provisions of Article VI, the 
redemption terms for the Bonds of 
such Series; 

(g) The amount and 
due date of each Sinking Fund 
Installment, if any, for Bonds of 
like maturity of such Series; 

(h) The forms of the 
Bonds of such Series and of the 
Trustee 's  c e r t i f i c a t e  o f  
authentication; 

(i) If, at the time of 
issuance of the Bonds of such 
Series, an lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement will apply to such 
Bonds or such Bonds are to be 
secured by Credit Enhancement, 
the form of Credit Enhancement or 
l n te res t  Ra te  Exchange 
Agreement to be obtained, the 
identity ofthe Credit Enhancement 
Agency or of the counterparty to 
the lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement, and the substantial 
form of the significant documents 
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r e l a t i n g  t o  t h e  C r e d i t  
Enhancement or Interest Rate 
Exchange Agreement; 

0) If Bonds of such 
Series are to contain any tender or 
put options or the like, whether 
such Bonds are to be remarketed 
and, if so, the identity of any 
remarketing agent and the 
substantial form of any 
remarketing agreement relating to 
such Bonds; 

(k) Whether interest 
on the Bonds of such Series is 
intended to be excludible from 
gross income for federal income 
tax purposes pursuant to Section 
103(a) of the Code or any 
successor statute thereto; 

(I) A n y  o t h e r  
provisions deemed advisable by 
the Corporation as shall not 
conflict with the provisions hereof; 
and 

(m) Such additional 
matters as may be necessary or 
appropriate to cause interest on 
the Bonds of the Series to be 
issued pursuant to such 
Supplemental Indenture to be 
exempt from federal income 
taxation pursuant to Section 
103(a) of the Code if it is intended 
that interest on the Bonds be so 
exempt and to prevent the 
issuance of such Series from 
adversely affecting the federal 
income tax treatment of any 
Outstanding Bonds and the 
interest thereon intended to be so 
exempt; 

(4) The amount of the 
proceeds of such Series to be deposited in 
any Fund or Account held by the Trustee 
pursuant to Section 401; 

(5) ACertificate that no Event 
of Default or a payment default relating to 
any Bonds exists or remains uncured or 
will result from such additional issuance. 
unless such additional issuance will cure 

such Event of Default or such payment 
default. 

(6) Such further documents 
and moneys as are required by the 
provisions of Article Vlll or any 
Supplemental Indenture adopted pursuant 
to Article VIII. 

Section 207 - Conditions Precedent to 
Deliverv of a Series of Refundinq Bonds. (A) All 
Refunding Bonds of a Series shall be executed by 
the Corporation for issuance and delivered to the 
Trustee and thereupon shall be authenticated by 
the Trustee and delivered to the Corporation or 
upon its order, but only if the applicable financial 
tests and other requirements of Sections 208 and 
708 hereof are satisfied and only upon the receipt 
by the Trustee of: 

(1) The documents and 
moneys, if any, referred to in paragraphs 
(1). (2). (3) and (4) of Section 206; 

(2) Either (i) moneys (which 
may include all ora portion of the proceeds 
of the Refunding Bonds to be issued) in an 
amount sufficient to effect payment at the 
applicable Redemption Price of the Bonds 
or other obligations to be refunded, 
together with accrued interest on such 
Bonds or other obligations to the 
redemption date, or (ii) direct obligations of 
(including obligations issued or held in 
book-entry form on the books of) the 
Department of the Treasury of the United 
States of America which are not subject to 
redemption prior to the dates on which 
amounts will be needed to make payments 
on the Bonds or other obligations to be 
refunded and the principal of and interest 
on which when due, together with the 
moneys (which may include all or a portion 
of the proceeds of the Refunding Bonds to 
be issued), if any, contemporaneously 
deposited with the Trustee, will be 
sufficient to pay when due the applicable 
Redemption Price of the Bonds or other 
obligations to be refunded, together with 
accrued interest on such Bonds or other 
obligations to the redemption date, which 
moneys or Investment Securities shall be 
held by the Trustee or any one or more of 
the Paying Agents or an escrow agent or 
trustee for other obligations in a separate 
account irrevocably in trust for and 
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assigned to the respective holders of the 
Bonds or other obligations to be refunded; 
and 

(3) Such further documents 
and moneys as are required by the 
provisions of Article Vlll or any 
Supplemental lndenture adopted pursuant 
to Article VIII. 

(6) Neither lnvestment Securities nor 
moneys deposited with the Trustee or an escrow 
agent or trustee for other obligations pursuant to 
paragraph (A) (2) of this Section nor principal or 
interest payments on any such lnvestment 
Securities shall be withdrawn or used for any 
purpose other than, and shall be held in trust for, 
the payment of the applicable Redemption Price of 
the Bonds or other obligations to be refunded, 
together with accrued interest on such Bonds or 
other obligations to the redemption date, and any 
cash received from such principal or interest 
payments, if not then needed for such purpose, 
shall, to the extent practicable, be reinvested in 
such lnvestment Securities as are described in 
clause (ii) of said paragraph maturing at times and 
in amounts sufficient to pay when due the 
applicable Redemption Price of such Bonds or 
other obligations, together with such accrued 
interest. 

Section 208 - Requirements for the 
Issuance of Additional Bonds. Additional Bonds 
may not be issued unless, in addition to the 
requirements of Section 206 or Section 207, 
whichever is applicable, the following requirements 
are satisfied: 

(i) if any Bonds are 
Outstanding prior to the issuance of the Additional 
Bonds and will remain Outstanding after the 
issuance of the Additional Bonds, the Trustee 
receives a Rating Confirmation taking into 
consideration the issuance of such Additional 
Bonds, 

(ii) no Event of Default under 
this lndenture, or payment default with respect to 
any Bonds, as to which the Trustee has knowledge 
shall exist and remain uncured (unless the issuance 
of the Additional Bonds and the application of the 
proceeds thereof will cure the Event of Default or 
payment default), 

(iii) the Capital Reserve Fund, 
immediately after the issuance of such Additional 

Bonds, will be funded to at least the Capital 
R e s e ~ e  Requirement, and 

(iv) a n y  a d d i t i o n a l  
requirements imposed by a Supplemental lndenture 
are satisfied. 

Section 209 - Parity Obliaations: 
Subordinate Obliaations. (A) The Corporation may 
issue Parity Obligations under instruments other 
than this lndenture for any lawful purpose of the 
Corporation, provided that the requirements of this 
lndenture for the issuance of Additional Bonds 
would be met if the term "Parity Obligation" were 
substituted for the term "Additional Bonds" 
appearing therein and in the defined terms therein 
(otherthan any requirement with respect to funding 
the Capital Reserve Fund) and as if the Parity 
Obligations were being issued hereunder, and 
subject to any additional limitations that may be set 
forth in a Supplemental lndenture authorizing a 
Series of Bonds. Parity Obligations shall equally 
and ratably rank with all Bonds, Credit 
Enhancement facilities, and Interest Rate 
Exchange Agreements of the same Class as the 
Parity Obligations except as to the Capital Reserve 
Fund, in which they shall have no rights 
whatsoever. Parity Obligations shall be subject to 
the following additional conditions: 

(1) The Trustee shall act as 
trustee underany Parity Obligation 
Instrument. 

(2) The Parity Obligations 
must be secured by a lien on any 
property financed with the 
proceeds of the Parity Obligations. 

(3) If any Parity Obligations 
are to be secured by any lien. 
mortgage or security interest on 
property that is not part of the 
Trust Estate, the Corporation shall 
grant a lien, mortgage or security 
interest on such property (other 
than any capital reserve fund 
comparable tothecapital Reserve 
Fund) to the Trustee as security 
for the Bonds on a parity with the 
lien, mortgage or security interest 
which will secure such Parity 
Obligations; the Bonds shall share 
in such security interest by Class. 

Alaska Sludenl Loan Corporation 
MASTER INDENTURE 



(4) Any default under or with 
respect to any Parity Obligation 
Instrument shall be a default under 
this lndenture only if and to the 
extent that a similar event with 
respect to a Bond of the same 
Class as such Parity Obligation 
would be an Event of Default, and 
there shall be included in any 
Parity Obligation Instrument a 
provision that any Event of Default 
under this lndenture shall 
automatically be a default under 
such Parity Obligation Instrument. 

(5) According to the terms of 
any Parity Obligation or Parity 
Obligation Instrument, the T ~ s t e e  
shall have substantially the same 
duties, obligations, rights and 
remedies in connection with 
events of default and security for 
or with respect to the Parity 
Obligations as it has in connection 
with Events of Default and the 
Trust Estate hereunder. 

(6) Any Parity Obligation 
Instrument shall include such 
other provisions, reasonably 
satisfactory to the Trustee, as 
shall be necessary to permit the 
Trustee to perform any duties and 
obligations and exercise its rights 
and remedies underthis lndenture 
and any Parity Obligation 
Instrument. 

If there occurs an Event of Default under 
this lndenture, including an Event of Default based 
upon an event of default with respect to a Parity 
Obligation, and the Trustee appliesthe Trust Estate 
to the payment of the Bonds, all collateral held as 
security by the Trustee for the payment of the 
Bonds (other than the Capital Reserve Fund), and 
all collateral held as security for the Parity 
Obligations (other than any capital reserve fund 
comparable to the Capital Reserve Fund) shall be 
applied equally and ratably to the payment of the 
Bonds and Parity Obligations of the same Class. 

(B) The Corporation may issue 
Subordinate Obligations from time to time under 
instruments other than this lndenture subject to the 
conditions set forth below in this Section 209(B) 
and subjectto any additional conditionsthatmay be 

set forth in a Supplemental lndenture authorizing a 
Series of Bonds. Subordinate Obligations may be 
secured by such assets as may be described in the 
instrument authorizing the issuance of the 
Subordinate Obligations, but Subordinate 
Obligations shall have no security in or pledge or 
lien on or rights of any kind whatsoeverwith respect 
to the Trust Estate that is greater than the security, 
pledge, lien, or rights of the Bonds of the lowest 
Class Outstanding. 

ARTICLE Ill 
GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS OF 

BONDS 

Section 301 - Title and Date of Bonds. 
Subjectto the provisions of Section 303, each Bond 
shall be entitled "Education Loan Revenue Bond" 
and shall bear such additional letter or number 
Series designation as shall be determined in the 
Supplemental lndenture authorizing the Bonds of 
the Series of which such Bond is one. The Bonds 
of each Series shall be dated as of and bear 
interest from the date specified in the Supplemental 
lndenture that authorized such Series, which date 
may be contemporaneous with or prior to or after 
the date of issuance of such Bonds. 

Section 302 - Principal Installment and 
Interest Pavment Dates. The date upon which 
each Principal Installment with respect to any Bond 
is payable and the dates upon which interest on 
such Bond shall be payable shall be specified in the 
Supplemental lndenture authorizing the Series of 
which such Bond is a part. 

Section 303 - Leqends. The Bonds of each 
Series shall contain or have endorsed thereon a 
statement to the effect that the State shall not be 
liable thereon and that such Bond shall not be a 
debt of the State and may contain or have 
endorsed thereon such provisions, specifications 
and descriptive words not inconsistent with the 
provisions of this lndenture as may be necessary or 
desirable to comply with custom or otherwise as 
may be determined by the Corporation prior to 
delivery thereof. 

Section 304 - Place and Medium of 
Pavment. The interest on, and the principal (and 
premium, if any) of each Bond of any Series shall 
be payable at the principal or corporate trust office 
of each Paying Agent appointed or provided for the 
Bonds of such Series or at such other location and 
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subject to any terms and conditions as may be 
specified in the Supplemental lndenture authorizing 
the Series of which such Bond is a part. Payment 
of interest on and principal (and premium, if any) of 
each Bond of any Series shall be made in any coin 
or currency of the United States of America which 
at the time of payment is legal tender for the 
payment of public and private debts. 

without coupons or, if the Corporation and the 
Trustee enter into a Supplemental lndenture to 
provide necessary terms under Section 801(5), in 
the form of bearer Bonds with coupons. lnterest on 
Bonds shall be payable to the registered owner 
thereof as of the applicable Record Date as shown 
on the registry books of the Corporation kept for 
such purpose by the Trustee. 

Section 306 - Neqotiability. Transfer and 
Reqistry. (A) Each Bond shall be transferable only 
upon the books of the Corporation, which shall be 
kept for the purpose by the Trustee or any co- 
registrars specified in a Supplemental Indenture, by 
the registered owner thereof in person or by his 
attorney duly authorized in writing, upon surrender 
thereoftogetherwith a written instrument of transfer 
satisfactory to the Trustee duly executed by the 
registered owner or his duly authorized attorney. 
Upon the transfer of any such Bond, the 
Corporation shall issue in the name of the 
transferee a new Bond or Bonds of the same 
aggregate principal amount, Series, Class, maturity, 
and interest rate as the surrendered Bond. 

(B) The Corporation and each 
Fiduciary may deem and treat the person in whose 
name any Bond shall be registered upon the books 
of the Corporation as the absolute owner of such 
Bond, whether such Bond shall be overdue or not. 
for the purpose of receiving payment of, or on 
account of, the principal and Redemption Price, if 
any, of and interest on such Bond and for all other 
purposes, and all such payments so made to any 
such registered owner or upon his order shall be 
valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the 
liability upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or 
sums so paid, and neither the Corporation nor any 
Fiduciary shall be affected by any notice to the 
contrary. The Corporation agrees to indemnify and 
save each Fiduciary harmless from and against any 
and all loss, cost, charge, expense judgment or 
liability incurred by it, acting in good faith and 

without negligence under this lndenture, in so 
treating any such registered owner. 

Section 307 - Requlations With Respect to 
Exchanqes and Transfers. In all cases in which the 
privilege of exchanging Bonds ortransferring Bonds 
is exercised, the corporation shall executeand the 
Trustee shall authenticate and deliver Bonds in 
accordance with the provisions of this lndenture. 
All Bonds surrendered in any such exchanges or 
transfers shall forthwith be cancelled by the 
Trustee. For every such exchange or transfer of 
Bonds, whether temporary or definitive, the 
Corporation or the Trustee may, as a condition 
precedent to the privilege of making such exchange 
or transfer, make a charge sufficient to reimburse it 
for any tax, fee or other governmental charge 
required to be paid with respect to such exchange 
ortransfer. Neitherthe Corporation northeTrustee 
shall be required (i) to transfer or exchange Bonds 
of any Series during the 15 days (or such other 
period of time as may be ,specified in the 
Supplemental lndenture authorizing such Series) 
next preceding an Interest Payment Date on the 
Bonds of such Series or next preceding any 
selection of Bonds of such Series to be redeemed 
or (ii) to transfer or exchange any Bonds previously 
called for redemption. 

Section 308 -Bonds Mutilated. Destroyed, 
Stolen or Lost. In case any Bond shall become 
mutilated or be destroyed, stolen or lost, the 
Corporation shall execute, and thereupon the 
Trustee shall authenticate and deliver a new Bond 
of like Series. Class, maturity and principal amount 
as the Bond so mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost, 
in exchange and substitution for such mutilated 
Bond, upon surrender and cancellation of such 
mutilated Bond or in lieu of and substitution for the 
Bond destroyed, stolen or lost, upon filing with the 
Trustee evidence satisfactory to the Corporation 
and the Trustee that such Bond has been 
destroyed, stolen or lost and proof of ownership 
thereof, and upon furnishing the Corporation and 
the Trustee with indemnity satisfactory to them and 
complying with such other reasonable regulations 
as the Corporation and the Trustee may prescribe 
and paying such expenses as the Corporation and 
Trustee may incur. All Bonds so surrendered to the 
Trustee shall be cancelled by it. Any such new 
Bonds issued pursuant to this Section in 
substitution for Bonds alleged to be destroyed. 
stolen or lost shall constitute original additional 
contractual obligations on the part of the 
Corporation, regardless of whether the Bonds so 
alleged to be destroyed, stolen or lost be at any 
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time enforceable by anyone, and shall be equally 
secured by and entitled to equal and proportionate 
benefits with all other Bonds issued under this 
Indenture, in any moneys or securities held by the 
Corporation or the Fiduciaries for the benefit of the 
Bondholders. 

Section 309 - Pre~aration of Definitive 
Bonds, Tempora~  Bonds. (A) Until the definitive 
Bonds of any Series are prepared, the Corporation 
may execute, in the same manner as is provided in 
Section 311, and, upon the request of the 
Corporation, the Trustee shall authenticate and 
deliver, in lieu of definitive Bonds, but subject to the 
same provisions, limitations and conditions as the 
definitive Bonds except as to the denominations 
thereof and as to interchangeability thereof, one or 
more temporary Bonds substantially of the tenor of 
the definitive Bonds in lieu ofwhich such temporary 
Bond or Bonds are issued, in such denominations 
as may be authorized by the Corporation, and with 
such omissions, insertions and variations as may 
be appropriate to temporary Bonds. The 
Corporation at its own expense shall prepare and 
execute and, upon the surrender therefor of such 
temporary Bonds, the Trustee shall authenticate 
and, without charge to the holder thereof, deliver in 
exchange therefore, definitive Bonds of the same 
aggregate principal amount, Series, Class, and 
maturity asthe temporary Bondssurrendered. Until 
so exchanged the temporary Bonds shall in all 
respects be entitled to the same benefits and 
security as definitive Bonds authenticated and 
issued pursuant to this lndenture. 

(B) If the Corporation shall authorize 
the issuance of temporary Bonds in more than one 
denomination, the holder of any temporary Bond or 
Bonds may, at his option, surrender the same to the 
Trustee in exchange for another temporary Bond or 
Bonds of like aggregate principal amount, Series, 
Class, and maturity of any other authorized 
denomination ordenominations, and thereupon the 
Corporation shall execute and the Trustee shall 
authenticate and, in exchange for the temporary 
Bonds or Bonds so surrendered and upon payment 
of the taxes, fees and charges provided for in 
Section 307, shall deliver a temporary Bond or 
Bonds of like aggregate principal amount. Series. 
Class, and maturity in such other authorized 
denomination or denominations as shall be 
requested by such holder. 

(C) All temporary Bonds surrendered 
in exchange either for another temporary Bond or 

Bonds or for a definitive Bond or Bonds shall be 
forthwith cancelled by the Trustee. 

Section 310 -Cancellation and Destruction 
of Bonds. All Bonds paid or redeemed, either at or 
before maturity, shall be delivered to the Trustee 
when such payment or redemption is made, and 
such Bonds, together with all Bonds purchased by 
theTrustee, shall thereupon be promptly cancelled. 
Bonds so cancelled may, at any time, be cremated 
or otherwise destroyed by the T ~ s t e e ,  who shall 
execute a Certificate of cremation or destruction in 
duplicate by the signature of one of its authorized 
officers describing the Bonds so cremated or 
otherwise destroyed, and one executed Certificate 
shall be filed with the Corporation and the other 
executed Certificate shall be retained by the 
Trustee. 

Section 311 - Execution and 
Authentication. (A) After their authorization by a 
Supplemental Indenture, Bonds of a Series may be 
executed by or on behalf of the Corporation and 
delivered to the T ~ s t e e  for authentication. The 
Bonds shall be executed in the name and on behalf 
of the Corporation by the manual or facsimile 
signature of the Chairman or Executive Officer of 
the Corporation, and the corporate seal of the 
Corporation (or a facsimile thereof) shall be 
thereunto affixed, imprinted, engraved or otherwise 
reproduced thereon, and attested by the manual or 
facsimile signature of any other Authorized Officer, 
or in such other manner as may be required by law. 
In case any one or more of the officers or 
employees who shall have signed or sealed any of 
the Bonds shall cease to be such officer or 
employee before the Bonds so signed and sealed 
shall have been actually delivered, such Bonds 
may, nevertheless, be delivered as herein provided. 
and may be issued as if the persons who signed or 
sealed such Bonds had not ceased to hold such 
offices or be so employed. Any Bond of a Series 
may be signed and sealed on behalf of the 
Corporation by such persons as at the actual time 
of the execution of such Bond shall be duly 
authorized or hold the proper office in or 
employment by the Corporation, although at the 
dateof the Bondsofsuch Series such persons may 
not have been so authorized or have held such 
office or employment. 

(B) The Bonds of each Series shall 
bear thereon a certificate of authentication, in the 
form set forth in the Supplemental lndenture 
authorizing such Bond, executed manually by the 
Trustee or by an agent of the Trustee approved by 
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the Corporation. No Bond shall be entitled to any 
right or benefit underthis lndenture or shall bevalid 
or obligatory shall for any purpose until such 
certificate of authentication shall have been duly 
executed by the Trustee. Such certificate of the 
Trustee upon any Bond executed on behalf of the 
Corporation shall be conclusive evidence that the 
Bond so authenticated has been duly executed, 
authenticated and delivered under this lndenture 
and that the holder thereof is entitled to the benefits 
hereof. 

ARTICLE IV 
APPLICATION OF BOND PROCEEDS, 

PLEDGED RECEIPTS, AND OTHER AMOUNTS 

Section 401 - Ap~lication of Bond 
Proceeds, Accrued lnterest and Premium. (A) The 
proceeds of sale of the Bonds of each Series shall. 
exceot to the extent that such Bonds shall be 
~ e f u h d i n ~  Bonds, as soon as practicable upon the 
delivery of such Bonds by the Trustee pursuant to 
Section 206, be applied as follows: 

(1) The amount, if any, 
necessary to cause the amount on deposit 
in the Capital Reserve Fund to equal the 
Capital Reserve Requirement immediately 
aftersuch deliveryshall bedeposited in the 
Capital Reserve Fund; 

(2) The amount, if any, to be 
deposited therein pursuant to the 
Supplemental lndenture authorizing the 
issuance of such Series shall be deposited 
in the lnterest Account; 

(3) The balance remaining 
afler all other deposits required by this 
Section have been made shall be 
deposited in the Series Account within the 
Education Loan Fund established for such 
Series. 

(B) The proceeds of sale of the Bonds 
of a Series of Refunding Bonds or the proceeds of 
the Refunding Bonds of any Series which includes 
Refunding Bonds, shall be deposited in the 
Redemption Account or shall be applied as 
otherwise provided in the Supplemental lndenture 
authorizing the issuance of such Series of Bonds; 
provided, however, that if the amount in the Capital 

Reserve Fund is, or will be at the time of issuance 
of such Refunding Bonds, less than the Capital 
Reserve Requirement then the Corporation must 
deposit in the Capital R e s e ~ e  Fund the amount 
necessary to cure such deficiency or, if the 
Corporation fails to make such deposit on the date 
of issuance ofsuch Refunding Bonds, such amount 
must be so deposited from proceeds of such 
Refunding Bonds. 

Section 402 - A~Dlication of Pledqed 
Recei~ts and Other Amounts. (A) Pledged 
Receipts shall, promptly upon their receipt,-be 
deposited with a Depositary (who shall hold the 
same in a custodial account as agent for the 
Trustee subject to the provisions of Section 51 1) 
and transmitted to the Trustee at least monthly; 
such Pledged Receipts, together with all Pledged 
Receipts collected by the Trustee, shall be credited 
to the Revenue Fund. Upon receipt by the Trustee 
or any Depositary of any Pledged Receipts, such 
Pledged Receiptsshall be deemed to be credited to 
the Revenue Fund. 

(8)TheCorporation may make a deposit of 
money or any other assets to any Fund or Account, 
and the TNstee shall accept such deposit for such 
Fund or Account. When such deposit is made. 
such money or other assets shall be held for the 
purpose or purposes of such Fund or Account and 
otherwise subject to all of the terms and conditions 
of this lndenture. 

ARTICLE V 
FUNDS AND ACCOUNTS 

Section 501 - Establishment of Funds and 
Accounts. (A) The Corporation hereby establishes 
and creates the Master Education Loan Revenue 
Bond Account as a special account within the 
Education Loan T ~ s t  Fund to be held by the 
Trustee in trust hereunder. Within the Master 
Education Loan Revenue Bond Account, the 
Corporation also hereby establishes and creates 
the following special trust funds and within such 
funds the following accounts (all to be held by the 
Trustee in trust hereunder) to the extent fixed 
hereunder: 

(1) Education Loan Fund; 
(a) Series Accounts; 
(b) Unallocated Accounts; 

(2) Revenue Fund; 
(a) lnterest Account; 
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(b) Principal Account; 
(c) Redemption Account; 

(3) Capital R e s e ~ e  Fund 

(6) Any amounts held by a Depositary 
as agentfortheTrusteeand all amounts held under 
the CustodianlDepositary/Servicing Agreement 
shall be deemed to be held by the Trustee in the 
appropriate Fund or Account hereunder. All 
moneys or securities deposited with the Trustee or 
any Depositary pursuant to this lndenture shall be 
held in trust and applied only in accordance with the 
provisions hereof and shall be considered trust 
funds for the purposes of this lndenture. 

Section 502 - Education Loan Fund. (A) 
The Corporation shall create or identify in the 
Supplemental lndenture authorizing a Series of 
Bonds a Series Education Loan Account within the 
Education Loan Fund applicable to such Series of 
Bonds. Each such Series Account shall be 
identified by inserting in the designation thereforthe 
year, letter, or other designation of the Bonds of 
such Series. In addition, the Corporation may 
direct the Trustee to create additional Unallocated 
Accounts within the Education Loan Fund for the 
purpose of holding Pledged Loans that are not 
allocated to a Series of Bonds or for any other 
purpose designated by the Corporation. The 
Corporation may deposit Education Loans and 
other assets in an Unallocated Account at any time. 
Amounts specified in Section 401 hereof shall be 
deposited in each Series Account. 

(B) Exceptas permitted by subsection 
(F) of this Section, amounts in any Series Account 
shall be expended only (i) to pay the cost of 
acquiring or financing Education Loans (ii) to pay 
reasonable and necessary Costsof Issuance ofany 
Bonds, subject to any limitation on such use that 
may be established in any Supplemental Indenture, 
(iii) to pay the principal or Redemption Price, if any, 
of and interest on the Bonds when due by transfer 
to the appropriateaccount of the Revenue Fund, as 
applicable. (iv) to pay any costs associated with any 
of the foregoing, or (v) for such other purposes as 
the Corporation may direct in writing, including, but 
not limited to, the payment of Program Expenses. 
Education Loans or Investment Securities acquired 
with amounts in a Series Account shall be credited 
to that Series Account. Amounts deposited in an 
Unallocated Account may be used for such 
purposes as the Corporation may direct in writing. 
including, but not limited to, the payment of 
Program Expenses. 

(C) The Trustee shall pay out and 
permit the withdrawal of amounts on deposit in any 
Series Account at any time for the purpose of 
making payments and deposits pursuant to (6) of 
this Section, but only upon receipt of a Certificate of 
an Authorized Officer setting forth (i) the amount to 
be paid, (ii) the person or persons to whom such 
payment is to be made (which may be or include 
the Corporation or, pursuant to the 
CustodianlDepositary/Servicing Agreement 
attached hereto as Exhibit B, the State), and (iii) in 
reasonable detail the terms ofthe Education Loans, 
if any, to be financed by such withdrawal and the 
purpose or purposes of such withdrawal and stating 
that such withdrawal from the Series Account is a 
proper charge thereon. 

(D) At any time that Bonds of a Series 
shall be subject to mandatory redemption or 
payment and amounts in the Redemption Account 
in the case of a redemption, or in the lnterest 
Account and Principal Account in the case of a 
payment, are insufficient forsuch purposes, unless 
otherwise directed by the Corporation, the Trustee 
shall transfer the amounts necessary for such 
purposes first from Surplus Revenues, then from 
the Series Account for such Bonds, then from any 
other Series Account to the Redemption Account or 
to the Interest Account and Principal Account, for 
redemption or payment of such Bonds as the case 
may be, or apply such amounts directly to the 
redemption, purchase or retirement of such Bonds 
in accordance with their terms and the provisionsof 
Article VI. If, after making any transfer required 
pursuant to the preceding sentence there remains 
an insufficiency, the Trustee shall apply amounts in 
the Caplral Reserve Fund in accordance wirh and 
subject to the terms of Sect~on 506 hereof to sar~sfy 
such insufficiency. Except as otherwise provided in 
a Supplemental lndenture authorizing the issuance 
of a Series or Class of Bonds, any redemption or 
payment under this Section shall be made in 
descending order of priority by Class, beginning 
with Class I Bonds, if any. 

(E) RESERVED 

(F) Upon the payment or redemption 
of all of the Outstanding Bonds of any Series, the 
balance, if any, remaining in the Series Account 
established for such Series shall be transferred to 
the Revenue Fund, and any Loans allocated to 
such Series Account shall be reallocated to the 
Unallocated Account unless otherwise provided by 
a Supplemental Indenture. 
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(G) At any time the Corporation may 
direct the T ~ S t e e  to withdraw Pledged Loans or 
other property from any Series Account or any 
Unallocated Account, and the Trustee shall so 
withdraw such Pledged Loansorotherproperty and 
deliver such Pledged Loans or other property to the 
Corporation free and clear of the lien and pledge of 
this lndenture; provided that 

(i) the Trustee receives a Rating 
Conf i rmat ion taking in to  
consideration such withdrawal of 
Pledged Loan or other property; 

(ii) the Trustee receives from the 
Corporation a Certificate that no 
Event of Default and no payment 
default with respect to any Bonds 
exists or remains uncured, and no 
Event of Default or payment 
default with respect to any Bonds 
as to which the Trustee has 
knowledge shall exist and remain 
uncured (unless the withdrawal 
shall cure the Event of Default or 
payment default); 

(iii) the Capital Reserve Fund will 
be funded to at least the Capital 
Reserve Requirement after giving 
effect to the withdrawal; 

(iv) any additional requirements 
imposed by a Supplemental 
lndenture are satisfied; and 

(v) the Corporation shall certify to 
the Trustee that all conditions 
precedent to the withdrawal of 
Pledged Loans and other property 
pursuant to this Section 502(G) 
and pursuant to any other 
applicable provisions of this 
lndenture or any Supplemental 
lndenture shall have been 
satisfied. 

The Corporation may expend any amounts paid to 
it or transfer or use any Pledged Loans or other 
property transferred to it for any lawful purpose 
including, without limitation, the acquisition of 
additional Education Loans fortransfertoany Fund. 

(H) The Corporation may at any time 
sell, assign, transfer or otherwise dispose of a 
Pledged Loan at a price (i) at least equal to the 

principal amount thereof (plus accrued interest) (a) 
when the amounts on deposit in the Funds created 
in Section 501(A) are at least equal the principal 
amount of the Outstanding Bonds or (b) to pay 
current debt service on the Bonds; or (ii) lower than 
the principal amount thereof (plus accrued interest) 
if the Corporation delivers to the Trustee a Rating 
Confirmation taking into consideration such sale, 
assignment, transfer, or other disposition of such 
Pledged Loan at such lower price. The Corporation 
shall sell Pledged Loans if necessary to preventthe 
occurrence of an Event of Default. The Corporation 
shall also sell Pledged Loans if necessary to 
prevent a default in the payment of the principal of 
or interest on any of the Bonds when due, unless 
such sale would cause an Event of Default to 
occur. 

Section 503 - Revenue Fund. (A) Pledged 
Receipts, together with all other funds received 
hereunder and not otherwise directed hereunder, 
shall be credited to the Revenue Fund as required 
by Section 402 hereof. 

(B) Amounts in the Revenue Fund 
shall be applied only for the purpose of making the 
payments or transfers provided in (C) of this 
Section. 

(C) The Trustee shall make payments 
from the Revenue Fund at any time in theorder and 
amounts prescribed below: 

First: To the Corporation, the 
amount certified in writing by the 
Corporation as necessary to make any 
rebate payments or Yield Reduction 
Payments required to comply with its 
covenant contained in Section 714. 

Second: To the Corporation, as 
directed in writing, for the payment of 
Program Expenses, or the establishment of 
reserves therefor, the amount needed and 
required to pay a portion ofthe reasonable 
and necessary Program Expenses and, in 
addition, any amount needed to pay fees 
and expenses with respect to any Credit 
Enhancement, any Interest Rate Exchange 
Agreement, orany Auction Agent or broker 
dealer; provided that the amount so paid to 
the Corporation or set aside in reserve 
during any Fiscal Year for the payment of 
Program Expenses may not exceed 1.25% 
ofthe average principal amount of Pledged 
Loans outstanding during the preceding 
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Fiscal Year or such greater or lesser 
amount as may be set forth in a 
Supplemental Indenture, provided that the 
Corporation must provide the Trustee with 
a Rating Confirmation that reflects any 
greater amount before establishing any 
such greater amount in a Supplemental 
Indenture. 

Third: T o  the lnterest Account, the 
amount necessary to increase the amount 
in such Account so that it at least equals 
unpaid interest on the Outstanding Bonds 
of the highest Class coming due within the 
next Business Day (or to honor any 
reimbursement or payment obligation 
under any Credit Enhancement or lnterest 
Rate Exchange Agreement corresponding 
to the payment of such interest), unless 
otherwise specified with respect to any 
Series of Bonds in the Supplemental 
lndenture authorizing the Series of Bonds. 

Fourth: To  the Principal Account, 
the amount necessary to increase the 
amount in such Account so that it at least 
equals the amount of unpaid Principal 
Installments which will become due on the 
Outstanding Bonds of the highest Class 
within the next Business Day (or to honor 
any reimbursement or payment obligation 
under any Credit Enhancement or lnterest 
Rate Exchange Agreement corresponding 
to the payment of such principal), unless 
otherwise specified with respect to any 
Series of Bonds in the Supplemental 
lndenture authorizing such Series of 
Bonds. 

Fifth: To  the lnterest Account first 
and the Principal Account second the 
amounts necessary to make the payments 
described in Paragraphs Third and Fourth 
of this Section 503(C) By Class in 
Descending Order of Priority with respect 
to any Outstanding Bonds other than the 
Class I Bonds; provided, however, that in 
each case described in this paragraph Fifth 
if any such principal or interest amount has 
been paid through a Credit Enhancement 
facility or lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement, then to that extent any 
Pledged Receipts which would otherwise 
have been applied to such payments shall, 
instead, be applied to honor any 

reimbursement or payment obligation 
under any such instrument corresponding 
to any such payment. 

Sixth: T o  the Capital Reserve 
Fund, the amount, if any, necessary to 
cause the amount in such fund to equal the 
Capital Reserve Requirement. 

Seventh: T o  the Education Loan 
Fund in such amount or amounts as 
directed in writing by the Corporation for 
deposit in any Series Account or 
Unallocated Account as the Corporation 
may indicate for the purposes of such 
Accounts. 

Eighth: Any remaining amounts 
shall be held in the Revenue Fund and 
applied as provided in the foregoing 
paragraphs or applied to payments 
described in Section 502(D), Section 
506(A), or Section 508. 

Section 504 - lnterest Account and 
Principal Account. (A)  The Trustee shall pay out of 
the lnterest Account to the respective Paying 
Agents for the Bonds ( i )  on or before each lnterest 
Payment Date, the amounts required for the 
payment of interest due on the Outstanding Bonds 
on such date and (i i) on or before the redemption 
date or date of purchase, the amounts required for 
the payment of accrued interest on the Bonds 
redeemed or purchased for retirement, unless the 
payment of such accrued interest shall be 
otherwise provided for. In each such case, such 
amounts shall be applied by such Paying Agents to 
such payments; provided, however, that each 
payment shall be made in descending order of 
priority by Class, beginning with Class I Bonds, if 
any, unless otherwise provided in the Supplemental 
lndenture authorizing the issuance of a Series or 
Class of Bonds; and provided, further, that, unless 
otherwise provided in the Supplemental lndenture 
authorizing the issuance of a Series or Class of 
Bonds, interest paymentswith respectto any lower 
Class of Bonds shall be made only if and to the 
extent that principal amounts due with respect to 
any higher Class of Bonds have been set aside in 
accordance with the requirements of paragraph 
Fourth of Section 503(C). 

(B)  From the amount accumulated in the 
Principal Account foreach Principal Installmentwith 
respect to Bonds the Trustee shall pay to the 
respective Paying Agents on or before each 
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Principal Installment Date the amount, if any, 
required for the payment of principal due on such 
date, and such amounts shall be applied by the 
Paying Agents to such payments; provided. 
however, that, unless otherwise provided in the 
Supplemental Indentureauthorizing theissuanceof 
a Series or Class of Bonds, each payment shall be 
made in descending order of priority by Class, 
beginning with Class I Bonds, if any. 

(C) The amount accumulated in the 
Principal Account for each Sinking Fund Payment 
may and, if so directed in writing by the 
Corporation, shall be deposited in the Redemption 
Account (togetherwith amounts accumulated in the 
lnterest Account with respect to interest on such 
Bonds for which such Sinking Fund Payment was 
established) and applied by the Trustee prior to the 
forty-fifth day preceding the due date of such 
Sinking Fund Payment as follows: 

(1) to the purchase pursuant to 
Section 505(B) of Bonds of the Series and 
maturity for which such Sinking Fund 
Payment was established; or 

(2) to the redemption of such 
Bonds pursuant to Section 602 or Section 
603, if then redeemable by their terms, at 
the Redemption Price which would be 
payable for such Bonds upon redemption 
by application of such Sinking Fund 
Payment plus unpaid interest accrued to 
the date of redemption. 

(D) Notwithstanding the foregoing 
provisions of this Section 504, if interest or principal 
with respect to any Bond is paid from Credit 
Enhancement and such payment is required to be 
reimbursed, then amounts held in the Interest 
Account and in the Principal Account shall be used 
to make such reimbursement in lieu of making such 
interest or principal payments in accordance with 
the terms of the instrument creating the Credit 
Enhancement. 

Section 505 - Redemption Account. (A) 
There shall be de~osited in the Redem~tion 
Account any amounts which are required to be 
deposited therein pursuant to this lndenture or any 
Supplemental lndenture and any other amounts 
available therefor and determined by the 
Corporation to be deposited therein. Subject to the 
provisions of this lndenture or of any Supplemental 
lndenture requiring the application thereof to the 
purchase or redemption of any particular Bonds, 

the Trustee shall apply any amounts deposited in 
the Redemption Account to the purchase or 
redemption of any of the Bonds (or to the 
reimbursementofany Credit Enhancement provider 
for amounts advanced by Credit Enhancement to 
pay for such purchase or redemption) at the times 
and in the manner provided in this Section and in 
Section 602 or Section 603, as applicable. 

(B) At any time prior to the forty-fifth 
day prior to the day upon which Bonds are to be 
redeemed from such amounts, the Trustee shall, 
upon the written direction of the Corporation, apply 
amounts in the Redemption Account to the 
purchase of any of the Bonds which may be 
redeemed by application of amounts on deposit in 
the Redemption Account, except that the 
Corporation may, by delivery of written instructions 
to such effect signed by an Authorized Officer. 
require or prohibit such purchases in the discretion 
of the Corporation. The Trustee shall purchase 
Bonds at such times, for such prices, in such 
amounts and in such manner as the Corporation 
shall from time to time direct in writing. The 
purchase price paid (excluding accrued interest but 
including any brokerage and other charges) for any 
Bond purchased shall not exceed the principal 
amount of such Bond unless such Bond may be 
redeemed in accordance with this Indentureon any 
date within thirteen months after such purchase in 
which event such purchase price shall not exceed 
the highest Redemption Price payable on any such 
date upon the redemption of such Bond. In the 
event the Trustee is able to purchase a principal 
amount of Bonds equivalent to the sum of the 
deposits in the Redemption Account for the 
redemption of such Bonds at a purchase price less 
than the sum of such deposits, excluding the 
applicable transfersfrom the interest Account, upon 
the payment by theTrustee of the purchase priceof 
such Bonds, the Trustee shall transfer the balance 
of such moneys remaining in the Redemption 
Account to, and deposit the same in, the Revenue 
Fund. 

(C) The Corporation may, from time to 
time by written instructions, direct the Trustee to 
make purchases under subsection (B) above. No 
purchase of Bonds shall be made by the Trustee 
from amounts in the Redemption Accountwithin the 
period of forty-five days next preceding any date on 
which such Bonds are subject to redemption. 

(D) Upon the purchase or redemption 
of Bonds of any Series and maturity for which 
Sinking Fund Payments have been established 
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from amounts in the Redemption Account, there 
shall be credited toward all future Sinking Fund 
Payments thereafter to become due and any 
payment upon final maturity with respect to such 
Bonds, on a pro rata basis among all such Sinking 
Fund Payments and payment upon final maturity, 
an amount equal to the total principal amount of 
such Bonds so purchased or redeemed. If, 
however, there shall be filed with the T ~ s t e e  
written instructions of an Authorized Officer 
specifying a different method for crediting Sinking 
Fund Payments upon any such purchase or 
redemption of Bonds, then such Sinking Fund 
Payments shall be credited as shall be provided in 
such instructions, but only if the Corporation shall 
have filed with the Trustee a Rating Confirmation 
reflecting such crediting method. 

(E) As soon as practicable after the 
forty-fifth day preceding the due date of any such 
Sinking Fund Payment, the Trustee shall proceed 
to call for redemption pursuant to Section 603, on 
such d ~ e  date. Bonds of the Series and maturity for 
whlch such S nkmg Fund Payment was established 
in such amount as shall be necessary to complete 
the retirement of Bonds ofsuch Series and maturity 
in the principal amount equal to the amount of the 
unsatisfied balance ofsuch Sinking Fund Payment. 
The Trustee shall so call such Bonds for 
redemption without regard to whether it then has 
moneys in the Redemption Account sufficient to 
pay the applicable Redemption Price thereof to the 
redemption date. The Trustee shall pay out of the 
Redemption Account to the appropriate Paying 
Agents on the day preceding each such redemption 
date, the amount required for the redemption of the 
Bonds so called for redemption, and such amount 
shall be applied by such Paying Agents to such 
redemption. 

(F) The Trustee shall pay out of the 
Redemption Account to the Paying Agents for such 
Bonds on or before the redemption date thereof, 
the amounts required forthe payment on such date 
by such Paying Agents, respectively, of the 
Redemption Price of any Bonds to be redeemed 
and the Paying Agents shall apply such amounts to 
the redemption of such Bonds on and after such 
date. If at any date there shall be moneys in the 
Redemption Account and there shall be 
Outstanding none of the Bonds of the Series for the 
redemption of which such moneys were deposited 
in the Redemption Account, such moneys shall be 
withdrawn therefrom and deposited in the Revenue 
Fund. 

(G) Except for amounts which are 
required to be retained therein for the redemption of 
Bonds for which notice of redemption shall have 
been given as provided in Article VI or for which the 
Trustee has received irrevocable instructions to 
give such a notice on a future date, amounts in the 
Redemption Account may, upon thewritten request 
ofthe Corporation, signed by an Authorized Officer, 
be transferred to the Revenue Fund 

Section 506 - Insufficient Revenues: 
Caoital Reserve Fund. (A) If, one Business Day 
before any lnterest Payment Date, the amount in 
the Principal ~ccoun t  or the lnterest Account 
(taking into account amounts scheduled to be 
received from Investment Securities at any time 
before such lnterest Payment Date) shall be less 
than the amount required for the payment of all 
Principal Installments and interest on Outstanding 
Bonds of a Class due on such lnterest Payment 
Date, the Trustee shall apply all Surplus Revenues 
and then amounts In the related Series Accounts 
and then from any other Series Accounts to satisfy 
such insufficiency and, if an insufficiency remains 
thereafter, shall immediately notify the Corporation 
of such event and shall apply amounts from the 
Capital Reserve Fund to the extent necessary to 
make good the deficiency. Amounts so applied 
shall be applied By Class in Descending Order of 
Priority by Class. If on any Redemption Date (or 
any date for the purchase of Bonds under Section 
505(B)), the amount in the Redemption Account 
and the lnterest Account shall be less than the 
amountrequired forthe payment ofthe Redemption 
Price (or purchase price) and interest accrued on 
such Bonds to be redeemed (or purchased) on 
such date the Trustee shall apply all Surplus 
Revenues and then amounts in the related Series 
Accounts and then from any other Series Accounts 
to satisfy such insufficiency and, if an insufficiency 
remains thereafter, shall immediately notify the 
Corporation of such event and shall apply amounts 
from the Capital Reserve Fund to the extent 
necessary to make good the deficiency. Amounts 
so applied shall be applied By Class in Descending 
Order of Priority. If, on any date specified in this 
Section 506(A)for the application of amounts in the 
Capital Reserve Fund, there are insufficient 
amounts for such application, or if, at any time, the 
amount in the Capital Reserve Fund is less than the 
Capital Reserve Requirement, the Trustee shall 
immediately notify the Corporation of such event 
and, upon the written direction of the Corporation, 
shall immediately transfer to the Capital Reserve 
Fund from assets of the Corporation made 
available for such purpose by the Corporation or 
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from any other Fund or Account (provided that the 
TNstee shall make any such transfer from a Series 
Account only aftertransferring any availableassets 
of the Corporation and any amounts in all other 
Funds and Accounts, excluding any Credit 
Enhancement Fund, and then on a pro rata basis 
among the amounts available in all the Series 
Accounts unless a differentallocation isrequiredfor 
Federal tax reasons as set forth in a Letter of 
Instructions, or to pay principal or interest on any 
Bonds) amounts necessaryto increase the amount 
in the Capital Reserve Fund to the amount needed 
for the intended application or to the Capital 
Reserve Requirement, as the case may be. In 
determining whether the amount in the Capital 
Reserve Fund is at least equal to the Capital 
Reserve Requirement, the Trustee shall include the 
amount of cash and the principal amount of 
Investment Securities held in the Capital Reserve 
Fund, together with the amount of interest earned 
or accrued thereon as of the date of valuation, and 
shall also include, but only ifany other requirement 
therefor specified in a Supplemental lndenture has 
been satisfied, the principal component of any 
Credit Enhancement then on deposit in the Capital 
Reserve Fund. 

(B) All income earned or gains realized 
as a result of the investment of amounts on deposit 
in the Capital Reserve Fund shall be deposited 
therein and constitute a part thereof. Except as 
provided in subsection (C) of this Section, if. 
concurrently with any allocation from the Revenue 
Fund pursuanttosubsection (C)of Section 503, the 
amount on deposit in the Capital Reserve Fund 
shall be in excess of the Capital Reserve 
Requirement, theTrustee shall transferthe amount 
of such excess to the Revenue Fund. 

(C) Whenever the Corporation shall 
deliver instructions to the TNstee to redeem Bonds 
of a particular Series or the redemption of Bonds of 
a Series is required b y a  Supplemental 
lndenture (otherthan by applicationofsinking Fund 
Payments)and such redemption is to be made from 
amounts then on deposit in any Fund or Account 
other than the Capital Reserve Fund, the Trustee 
shall calculate the amount by which the amount on 
deposit in the Capital Reserve Fund will exceed the 
Capital Reserve Requirement immediately following 
the redemption of the Bonds specified in such 
inst~ctions (and to be redeemed from such 
amounts) and such excess amount shall on the 
redemption date specified in such instructions, be 
transferred into the Revenue Fund. In making the 
aforesaid calculation, the Trustee shall also take 

into account, as nearly as practicable, the additional 
amount by which the amount on deposit in the 
Capital Reserve Fund will exceed the Capital 
Reserve Requirement as a result ofthe redemption 
of Bonds from the amounts to be so withdrawn. 
The Trustee shall give notice of the redemption of 
such Bonds and shall select the particular Bonds to 
beso redeemed in such manner as the Corporation 
shall specify in written instructions (subject to the 
terms of this lndenture and any Supplemental 
Indenture) or, failing such instructions, as the 
Trusteeshall, in itssole discretion, deem advisable. 

(D) Whenever the amount in the 
Capital Reserve Fund, together with the amount in 
the Interest Account and Principal Account, is 
sufficient to fully pay the principal of and interest on 
all Outstanding Bonds of a Series in accordance 
with their terms (including the Sinking Fund 
Payments for the retirement thereof), and 
immediately thereafter the amount on deposit in the 
Capital Reserve Fund shall at least equal the 
Capital Reserve Requirement, such amount shall, 
at the written direction of the Corporation, be 
transferred from the Capital Reserve Fund to the 
Revenue Fund. Prior to any such transfer, 
investments held in the Capital Reserve Fund in an 
amount necessary to make said transfer shall be 
liquidated. 

(E) The Trustee shall sell or redeem 
Investment Securities to the extent necessary to 
provide money to make any required payment 
pursuantto this Section and, atthe written direction 
of the Corporation, shall sell or redeem lnvestment 
Securities to make any deposit, purchase, payment 
or redemption as permitted pursuantto this Section. 

Section 507 - . RESERVED 

Section 508 - Excess Coveraqe. At any 
time, but no more frequently than once every 
month, the Corporation may deliver to the Trustee 
a Certificate, evidencing the fact that there is then 
Excess Coverage on deposit hereunder and 
specifying the amount thereof and stating that no 
Event of Default or payment default exists 
hereunder. Promptly upon the Trustee's receipt of 
that Certificatewith a Rating Confirmation reflecting 
the release of any Excess Coverage, the Trustee 
shall release such Excess Coverage to the 
Corporation from the Education Loan Fund (other 
than proceeds of Bonds) or from the Revenue 
Fund, as set forth in such Certificate, for any of its 
corporate purposes, including, without limitation, 
the deposit of said amounts in any Fund or Account 
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or the acquisition of additional Education Loans for 
transfer to any Fund. The Trustee may 
conclusively rely upon such Certificate without 
further duty to examine or investigate the accuracy 
thereof. 

Section 509 - Obtaininq Credit 
Enhancements and lnterest Rate Exchanqe 
Aqreements. Except as otherwise provided in a 
Supplemental lndent~re autnorizinq thessuance of 
a series or Class of Bonds, the Corporation may 
obtain Credit Enhancement or an lnterest Rate 
Exchange Agreement with respect to such Bonds 
either at the time of issuance of the Bonds or any 
time thereafter, provided that, in any case, the 
Corporation shall have tiled with the Trustee a 
Rating Confirmation reflecting such Credit 
Enhancement or lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement. The Class ranking of such Credit 
Enhancement or lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement shall be determined as provided in 
Section 510(D). 

Exchange Aqreements. (A) The Trustee shall 
establish within any Fund such Accounts in addition 
to the Accounts herein established as the 
Corporation shall by Supplemental lndenture 
determine and shall in like manner establish within 
any Account such additional subaccounts for the 
purposes of such Account as the Corporation shall 
so determine. 

(6) The Corporation may at any time 
by execution of a Supplemental lndenture establish 
a Fund or Account in which to hold any Credit 
Enhancement and the proceeds thereof or 
drawings thereunder (a "Credit Enhancement 
Fund") for the benefit of any Series of Bonds to 
which such Credit Enhancement has been pledged, 
which pledge may be (but is not required to be) 
exclusively for the benefit of such Series of Bonds 
or certain designated Series of Bonds and not 
equally and ratably among all the Series of Bonds 
and Parity Obligations Outstanding. Amounts held 
in a Credit Enhancement Fund shall not be 
considered a part of the Trust Estate but, rather, 
shall be subject to such lien and pledge as may be 
created in the Supplemental lndenture creating 
such Credit Enhancement. 

(C) If the Corporation creates a Credit 
Enhancement Fund, the Corporation may direct, in 

the Supplemental lndenture creating such Credit 
Enhancement Fund, that the Trustee pay, and if so 
directed in writing by the Corporation the Trustee 
shall pay, principal (including premium, if any) of 
and interest on the Bonds secured by such Credit 
Enhancement Fund directly from amounts in such 
Credit Enhancement Fund and that the Trustee 
reimburse, and if so directed in writing by the 
Corporation the T ~ s t e e  shall so reimburse, such 
Credit Enhancement Fund for such payment from 
the Credit Enhancement Fund; provided, however, 
that the Corporation may, in the Supplemental 
lndenture authorizing the Series of Bonds to be 
secured by Credit Enhancement, treat any, or any 
part of any, obligation owed or which may in the 
future be owed to the Credit Enhancement Agency 
pursuant to the Credit Enhancement Instrument as 
Additional Bonds of the same Class as the Bonds 
secured by such Credit Enhancement if the 
Corporation, at the time of issuance of said Series 
of Bonds and at the time of the creation of any such 
obligation satisfies the requirements ofsection 208, 
in which case the Trustee shall pay the principal of 
and interest on any such obligations in accordance 
with the terms of this lndenture treating such 
obligations as Additional Bonds. In a Supplement 
lndenture authorizing Additional Bonds secured by 
a Credit Enhancement Fund the Corporation may 
fix provisions relating to such Fund different from 
the provisions of Section 511. In addition to the 
foregoing, the Corporation may agree to permit a 
Credit Enhancement Agency to be subrogated to 
the rights of any Bondholders whose Bonds are 
secured by the Credit Enhancement provided that 
such Credit Enhancement Agency is not in default 
under such Credit Enhancement and provided that 
such Credit Enhancement, if it has been assigned 
a Class as provided above, is in a Class at least as 
high as the Class of the Bonds it secures. 

(D) Ifthecorporationenters intoan lnterest 
Rate Exchange Agreement or obtains Credit 
Enhancement with respect to any Series or Class 
of Bonds, the Corporation may grant a security 
interest in the Trust Estate to secure performance 
of the Corporation's obligations under such Credit 
Enhancement or lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement. The Corporation may identify the 
Class ranking of the Credit Enhancement or 
lnterest Rate Exchange Agreement in the 
Supplemental lndenture authorizing the Bonds 
secured by such Credit Enhancement or lnterest 
Rate Exchange Agreement or in the agreement 
creating the Credit Enhancement or lnterest Rate 
Exchange Agreement. The Class ranking of the 
Credit Enhancement or lnterest Rate Exchange 
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Agreement may be equal to or greater or lesser 
than the Class ranking of any Bonds issued under 
this lndenture, including the Bonds secured by the 
Credit Enhancement or lnterest Rate Exchange 
Agreement. 

Section 511 - Deposits and Investments. 
(A) All amounts in any Fund or Account held under 
this lndenture (including amounts described in the 
Custodian/Depositary/Sewicing Agreement and any 
other amounts held in any fund or account created 
by or on behalf of any such fiduciary or Depositary 
for the receipt of amounts held under this 
Indenture) by any Fiduciary or Depositary shall be 
held in trust for the benefit of the Trustee if not held 
by the Trustee and shall be continuously and fully 
secured for the benefit of the Corporation and the 
holders of the Bonds either (i) by lodging 
lnvestment Securities as collateral with the Trustee 
as custodian, having a market value (exclusive of 
accrued interest) not less than the amount of such 
moneys or (ii) in such other manner as may then be 
required by applicable federal or state laws and 
regulations and applicable state laws and 
regulations of the state in which such Fiduciary or 
Depositary (as the case may be) is located. 
regarding security for, or granting a preference in 
the case of, the deposit of trust funds; except that 
it shall not be necessary for a Fiduciary or 
Depositary to give security under this subsection for 
the deposit of any moneys with them held in trust 
and set aside by them for the payment of the 
principal or Redemption Price of or interest on any 
Bonds, or for any Fiduciary or Depositary to give 
security for any moneys which shall be represented 
by obligations or certificates of deposit purchased 
as an investment of such moneys. All amounts 
deposited with the Trustee and each Depositary 
(including amounts received by the State of Alaska 
under the CustodianlDepositary/Servicing 
Agreement) shall immediately be credited to the 
particular Fund or Account to which such amounts 
belong. Until such time as such amounts are 
expended for the purposes authorized by this 
lndenture or any Supplemental lndenture or are 
transferred to another Fund or Account as provided 
in this lndenture or any Supplemental Indenture, 
the Trustee or Depositary shall invest such 
amounts as provided in (B) of this Section. Neither 
theTrustee norany Depositaryshall be responsible 
for any losses resulting from the investment of 
moneys in the funds and accounts created 
hereunder, so long as such investments are made 
in accordance with this lndenture and the written 
direction of the Corporation or, in the case of the 

State acting under the Custodian Agreement, in 
accordance with the Custodian Agreement. 

(B) Upon the deposit of any amounts 
in any Fund or Account, the Corporation may 
furnish the Trustee with a schedule of dates on 
which it is estimated by the Corporation that such 
moneys in said Fund or Account will be required to 
be expended. The Corporation may from time to 
time amend the schedule so furnished. Upon 
receipt of such schedule or amended schedule, the 
Corporation shall direct the Trustee or Depositary. 
in writing, to invest and reinvest in lnvestment 
Securities the moneys in said Fund or Account so 
that the maturity date or date of redemption at the 
option of the holder of such obligations shall 
coincide as nearly as practicable with the times at 
which moneys are needed by the Corporation to be 
so expended, except that (i) with respect to the 
Capital Reserve Fund such lnvestment Securities 
shall include only such investments as are 
permitted pursuant to any Supplemental lndenture 
authorizing a Series of Bonds as to which any 
Bonds remain Outstanding at the time of such 
investment; (ii) the average maturities of 
investments purchased with amounts in the Capital 
Reserve Fund may be limited pursuant to the 
provisions of a Supplemental Indenture; and (iii) 
investments purchased with amounts in the 
Principal Account must mature or be redeemable at 
the option of the holder no laterthan the day before 
the lnterest Payment Date on which amounts used 
to purchase such investments are needed to pay 
principal of the Bonds, and investments purchased 
with amounts in the lnterest Account must mature 
or be redeemable at the option of the holder no 
laterthan theday before the lnterest Payment Date 
on which amounts used to purchase such 
investments are needed to pay interest on the 
Bonds. The obligations purchased shall be held by 
the Trustee and shall be deemed at all times to be 
part of such Fund or Account, and the Trustee shall 
keep the Corporation advised as to the details of all 
such investments. 

(C) Except as otherwise provided in 
this lndenture, obligations purchased as an 
investment of moneys in any Fund or Account held 
by the Trustee under the provisions of this 
lndenture shall be deemed at all times to be a part 
of such Fund or Account, but the income or interest 
earned and gains realized in excess of losses 
suffered by a Fund or Account, other than the 
Capital Reserve Fund, due to the investment 
thereof shall be deposited upon receipt as Pledged 
Receipts into the Revenue Fund. 
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(D) The Trustee shall advise the 
Corporation in writing, on or before the tenth day of 
each calendar month, of the details of all 
investments held for the credit of each Fund and 
Account in its custody under the provisions of this 
lndenture as of the end of the preceding month. 

Section 512 - Use of Funds in Event of 
Default. If an Event of Default described in Section 
1002(1) or (2) occurs and is continuing, the T ~ s t e e  
may use moneysfrom any Fund orAccount created 
hereunder to make payments required hereunder. 

ARTICLE VI 
REDEMPTION OF BONDS 

Sect~on 601 - Prlv leae of Redemption and 
Redempt~on Prce Bonds subjecl to redempt~on 
prior to maturity pursuant to a Supplemental 
lndenture shall be redeemable, upon notice as 
provided in this Article, at such times, at such 
Redemption Pricesand upon such termsas may be 
specified in such Bonds, in this lndenture and in the 
Supplemental lndenture authorizing such Series. 
Nothing in this lndenture or in any Supplemental 
lndenture shall require the redemption of Bonds in 
amounts less than Authorized Denominations. If 
amounts are available for the redemption of Bonds 
but such amounts are less than an Authorized 
Denomination of the Bonds to be redeemed, the 
Trustee shall so notify the Corporation and, at the 
written direction of the Corporation, shall deposit 
such Fund or Account as such written direction 
shall indicate. 

Section 602 - Redemption at the Election 
or Direction of the Corporation. In the case of any 
redemption of Bonds other than as provided in 
Section 603, the Corporation shall give written 
notice at the time specified in the Su~~lementa l  
lndenture relating tosaid Bonds to t h e ~ i s t e e o f  its 
election or direction so to redeem, of the 
redemption date, of the Series, of the principal 
amounts of the Bonds of each maturity of such 
Series to be redeemed (which redemption date. 
Series, maturities and principal amounts thereof to 
be redeemed shall be determined by the 
Corporation in its sole discretion, subject to any 
limitations with respect thereto contained in this 
lndenture and any Supplemental Indenture) and of 
any moneys to be applied to the payment of the 
Redemption Price. Upon the giving of such notice. 
the Corporation, if it holds the amounts to be 
applied to the payment of the Redemption Price. 
shall pay to the Trustee for deposit in the 
Redemption Account an amount in cash which, in 

addition to other moneys, if any, available therefor 
held herein, will be sufficient to redeem on the 
redemption date at the Redemption Price thereof, 
all of the Bonds to be redeemed. 

Section 603 -Redemption Otherwise Tnan 
at Corporation's Election or Direction. Wnenever 
by the terms of this lndenture the Trustee is 
required to redeem Bonds otherwise than at the 
election or direction of the Corporation, and subject 
to and in accordance with the terms of this Article, 
the Supplemental lndenture authorizing the Series 
of Bonds of which the Bonds to be redeemed are 
part, and, to the extent applicable. Article V, the 
Trustee shall select the redemption date of the 
Bonds to be redeemed and give notice of the 
redemption in the manner prescribed by Section 
605. 

Section 604 - Selection of Bonds to be 
Redeemed by Lot. In the event of redemption of 
less than all the Outstanding Bonds of like Series, 
Class, and maturity, the ~rus tee shall select the 
Bonds to be redeemed, from all Bonds or portions 
thereof not previously called for redemption, by lot 
in any manner which the Trustee in its sole 
discretion shall deem fair and appropriate. 

Section 605 -Notice of Redemption, When 
the Trustee shall receive notice from the 
Corporation of its election or direction to redeem 
Bonds pursuant to Section 602, and when 
redemption of Bonds is required by this lndenture 
pursuant to Section 603, unless otherwise required 
for a Series of Bonds by the Supplemental 
lndenture authorizing the same, the Trustee shall 
give notice in the name of the Corporation. 
regardless of whether the Trustee has sufticient 
money available to pay the applicable Redemption 
Price with accrued interest on the Bonds to be 
redeemed, of the redemption of such Bonds, which 
notice shall specify the Series, Class, and 
maturities of the Bonds to be redeemed, the 
redemption date and the place or places where 
amounts due upon such redemption will be payable 
and, if less than all ofthe Bonds of any like Series, 
Class, and maturity are to be redeemed, the letters 
and numbers or other distinguishing marks of such 
Bonds so to be redeemed and, in the case of 
Bonds to be redeemed in part only, such notice 
shall also specify the respective portions of the 
principal amount thereof to be redeemed. Such 
notice shall further state that on such date there 
shall become due and payable upon each Bond to 
be redeemed the Redemption Price thereof, or the 
Redemption Price of the specified portions of the 
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principal thereof in the case of Bonds to be 
redeemed in part only, together with interest 
accrued to the redemption date, and that from and 
after such redemption date interest thereon shall 
cease to accrue and be payable; provided, 
however, that if the Trustee does not have available 
money in an amount sufficient to pay such amounts 
on such date, then such notice of redemption shall 
be null and of no effect. The Trustee shall mail a 
copy of such notice, postage prepaid, at the time 
specified in the Supplemental lndenture that 
authorized the issuance of such Bonds, to the 
registered owners of any Bonds or portions of 
Bonds which are to be redeemed, at their last 
addresses, if any, appearing upon the registry 
books, but such mailing shall not be a condition 
precedent to such redemption and failure so to mail 
any such notice shall not affect the validity of the 
proceedings for the redemption of Bonds. 

Section 606 - Pavment of Redeemed 
Bonds. Notice having been given in the manner 
provided in Section 605, the Bonds or portions 
thereof so called for redemption shall become due 
and payable on the redemption date so designated 
at the Redemption Price, plus interest accrued and 
unpaid to the redemption date, and, upon 
presentation and surrender thereof at the office 
specified in such notice, such Bonds, or portions 
thereof, shall be paid at the Redemption Price plus 
interest accrued and unpaid to the redemption date. 
If there shall be drawn for redemption less than all 
of a Bond, the Corporation shall execute and the 
Trustee shall authenticate and the Paying Agent 
deliver, upon the surrender of such Bond, without 
charge to the owner thereof, for the unredeemed 
balance of the principal amount of the registered 
Bond so surrendered at the option of the owner 
thereof, Bonds of like Series and maturity in any of 
the authorized denominations. If, on the 
redemption date, moneys for the redemption of all 
the Bonds or portions thereof of any like Series and 
maturity to be redeemed, together with interest to 
the redemption date, shall be held by any Paying 
Agent so as to be available therefor on said date 
and if notice of redemption shall have been mailed 
as aforesaid, then, from and after the redemption 
date interest on the Bonds or portions thereof of 
such Series and maturities so called for redemption 
shall cease to accrue and become payable. If said 
moneys shall not be so available on the redemption 
date, such Bonds or portions thereof shall continue 
to bear interest until paid at the same rate as they 
would have borne had they not been called for 
redemption. 

ARTICLE VII 
PARTICULAR COVENANTS 

The Corporation covenants and agrees 
with the Trustee and the holders of the Bonds as 
follows: 

Section 701 - Pavment of Bonds. The 
Corporation shall duly and punctually pay or cause 
to be paid the principal or Redemption Price, if any. 
of every Bond and the interest thereon, at the dates 
and places and in the manner stated in the Bonds 
according to the true intent and meaning thereof 
and shall duly and punctually pay or cause to be 
paid all Sinking Fund Payments, if any, becoming 
payable with respect to any Series of Bonds. 

Section 702 - Extension of Pavment of 
Bonds. The Corporation shall not directly or 
indirectly extend or assent to the extension of the 
maturity of any of the Bonds or the time of payment 
of any claims for interest by the purchase or funding 
of such Bonds or claims for interest or by any other 
arrangement and in case the maturity of any of the 
Bonds or the time for payment of any such claims 
for interest shall be extended, such Bonds or claims 
for interest shall not be entitled, in case of any 
default hereunder, to the benefit ofthis lndenture or 
to any payment out of the Funds or Accounts 
established pursuanttothis lndenture, including the 
investments, if any, thereof, or out of any assets or 
revenues pledged hereunder (except moneys held 
in trust for the payment of particular Bonds or 
claims for interest pursuant to this lndenture) prior 
to benefits accorded to or the payment of the 
principal of all Bonds Outstanding the maturity of 
which has not been extended and of such portion of 
the accrued interest on the Bonds as shall not be 
represented by such extended claims for interest. 
Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit the right of 
the Corporation to issue Refunding Bonds and such 
issuance shall not be deemed to constitute an 
extension of maturity of Bonds. 

Section 703 - Oftice for Servicina Bonds. 
The Corporation shall at all times maintain an oftice 
or agency where Bonds may be presented for 
transfer or exchange, and where notices, 
presentations and demands upon the Corporation 
in respect of the Bonds or of this lndenture may be 
served. The Corporation hereby appoints the 
Trustee as its agent to maintain such office or 
agency for the transfer or exchange of Bonds and 
for the service of such notices, presentations and 
demands upon the Corporation and may appoint 
one or more co-registrars for such purposes. The 

Alaska Student Loan Corporalion 
MASTER INDENTURE 



Corporation hereby appoints the Trustee as Paying 
Agent and hereby appoints the Paying Agent as its 
agent to maintain such offices or agencies for the 
payment of Bonds. 

Section 704 - Further Assurance. At any 
and all times the Corporation shall, so far as it may 
be authorized by law, pass, make, do, execute. 
acknowledge and deliver, all and every such further 
resolutions, acts, deeds, conveyances. 
assignments, transfers and assurances as may be 
necessary for the better assuring, conveying, 
granting, pledging, assigning and confirming all and 
singular the rights, assets, revenues and other 
moneys, securities, funds and property hereby 
pledged or assigned, or intended so to be, or which 
the Corporation may become bound to pledge or 
assign. 

Section 705 - Power to Issue Bonds and 
Pledae Revenues. Funds and Other Pro~erty. The 
Corporation is duly authorized under all applicable 
laws to authorize and issue the Bondsand to 
execute and deliver this lndenture and to pledge 
the Trust Estate purported to be pledged hereby in 
the manner and to the extent herein provided. The 
Trust Estate so pledged is and will be free and clear 
ofany pledge, lien, chargeorencumbrance thereon 
or with respect thereto prior to, of equal rank with, 
or subordinate to, the pledge created hereby, other 
than any pledge or lien granted as security for 
Parity Obligations in conformity with the terms and 
provisions of this lndenture, and all corporate or 
other action on the part of the Corporation to that 
end has been and will be duly and validly taken. 
The Bonds and the provisions of this lndenture are 
and will be the valid and legally enforceable 
obligations of the Corporation in accordance with 
their terms and the terms of this lndenture. The 
Corporation shall at all times, to the extent 
permitted by law, defend, preserve and protect the 
pledge of the Pledged Loans, Pledged Loan Notes, 
Pledged Receipts, and other assets and revenues 
constituting theTrust Estate, including rights therein 
pledged under this lndenture and all the rights of 
the Bondholders under this lndenture against all 
claims and demands of all persons whomsoever. 

Section 706 -Accounts and Re~ortS. (A) 
The Corporation shall keep, or cause to be kept, 
proper books of record and account in which 
complete and accurate entries shall be made of all 
its transactions relating to the Education Loan 
Program and all Funds and Accounts established 
by this lndenture which shall at all reasonable times 
be subject to the inspection of the Trustee and the 

holders of an aggregate of not less than twenty-five 
per centum (25%) in principal amount of Bonds 
then Outstanding or their representatives duly 
authorized in writing. The Corporation shall cause 
records to be maintained designating each 
Education Loan in accordance with the designation 
of the Bonds of the Series from the proceeds of 
which it was financed or deemed to be financed in 
accordance with this lndenture. 

(B) The Corporation shall annually, 
within 120 days after the close of each fiscal year of 
the Corporation, file with theTrustee, and with such 
officials of the State, if any, as may be required by 
the Act, financial statements of the Corporation for 
such fiscal year setting forth in reasonable detail: 
(a) a statement of revenues, expenses, and 
changes in net assets in accordance with the 
categories or classifications established by the 
Corporation for its Education Loan Program 
purposes; (b) a balance sheet or statement of net 
assetsforthe Education Loan Program showing its 
assets and liabilities at the end of such fiscal year; 
and (c) a statement of cash flows for the Education 
Loan Program for such fiscal year. The financial 
statementsforthe Education Loan Program may be 
combined with financial statements for other 
programs and purposes of the Corporation so long 
as the said financial statements for the Education 
Loan Program are separately identified. The 
financial statements shall be accompanied by an 
Accountant's Certificate stating to the general effect 
that the financial statements examined present 
fairly the financial position of the Corporation at the 
end of the fiscal year, the results of its operations 
and the changes in financial position for the period 
examined, in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles. 

(C) A copy of each Accountant's 
Certificate shall be mailed promptly thereafter by 
the Corporation to each Bondholder who shall have 
filed his name and address with the Corporation for 
such purpose. 

Section 707 - Education Loan Proqram. 
(A) The Corporation shall from time to time, with all 
practical dispatch and in a sound and economical 
manner consistent in all respects with the Act and 
its regulations and other applicable provisions of 
law from time to time in effect, the provisions of this 
lndenture and sound banking practices and 
principles, (i) use and apply the proceeds of the 
Bonds, to the extent the same are not directed to 
be used otherwise pursuant to a Supplemental 
Indenture, to finance Education Loans pursuant to 
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the Act and this Indenture, (ii) do all such acts and 
things as shall be necessary to receive and collect 
Pledged Receipts (including diligent enforcement of 
the prompt collection of any delinquencies) 
sufficient to pay the Program Expenses and the 
principal or Redemption Price, if any, of and interest 
on the Bonds and apply such amounts in a manner 
consistent with such purpose, and (iii) diligently 
enforce, and take all steps, actions and 
proceedings reasonably necessary in the judgment 
of the Corporation to enforce, all terms, covenants 
and conditions of Pledged Loans, including, without 
limitation, any action or proceeding necessitated by 
any State legislation purporting to waive or relax 
any of the terms and provisions thereof. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Corporation 
may, upon filing a Rating Confirmation with the 
Trustee reflecting a proposed modification of the 
terms of Pledged Loans or Pledged Loan Notes, 
modify the terms of any Pledged Loan or Pledged 
Loan Note or any group of Pledged Loans or 
Pledged Loan Notes or take any other action it 
chooses which may have theeffectof modifyingthe 
terms of any such Pledged Loans or Pledged Loan 
Notes. 

(B) No amount in the Education Loan 
Fund shall be expended or applied for the purpose 
of financing a Guaranteed Loan, unless (except to 
the extent that a variance from such requirements 
is required by an agency or instrumentality of the 
United States of America insuring or guaranteeing 
the payment of such Guaranteed Loan) the 
Corporation has determined that: 

(i) the payment of the 
principal of and interest on such 
Guaranteed Loan is to the maximum extent 
then permitted by law either (I) insured by 
the Secretary as evidenced by a certificate 
of insurance issued under the provisions of 
the Higher Education Act, or (2 )  
guaranteed by a Guarantor and the 
Secretary is required, at the time of 
financing, to reimburse such Guarantor in 
accordance with the Higher Education Act 
to the extent permitted by federal law for 
amounts expended by such Guarantor in 
discharge of its insurance obligation on 
such Guaranteed Loan; 

(ii) the interest rate on such 
Guaranteed Loan at the time of acquisition 
is the maximum rate of interest then 
permitted under the Higher Education Act. 
as evidenced by its related promissory 

note (unless the Corporation accepts a 
lower interest rate after the Corporation 
delivers a Rating Confirmation reflecting 
such lower interest rate to the Trustee prior 
to instituting the authorization for such 
lesser charges under the Education Loan 
Program); and 

(iii) if not originated by the 
Corporation, ortheTrustee on behalf ofthe 
Corporation, (a) the Guaranteed Loan is 
subject to being repurchased by the seller 
if such Guaranteed Loan does not comply 
with the standards of the Corporation 
under its education loan purchase 
agreement and (b) the seller or other 
transferor of such Guaranteed Loan 
represents that the loan subject to such 
transfer is free of any encumbrances or 
liens. 

If the payment of all Bonds is secured by 
one or more Credit Enhancements, all of the Credit 
Enhancement Agencies may waive the 
requirements of (iii) above. 

The Corporation may exchange with any 
purchaser one or more Education Loans for one or 
more Guaranteed Loans (of approximately the 
same aggregate principal amount and accrued 
interest) of a borrower who is the obligor on other 
Guaranteed Loans. The Corporation may at any 
time and from time to time exchange Education 
Loans for other Guaranteed Loans having an 
aggregate principal amount and interest rate not 
less than the aggregate principal amount and 
interest rate of the Guaranteed Loans being 
exchanged, for the purpose of consolidating 
Guaranteed Loans of a single borrower within one 
indenture. 

(C) The Corporation covenants that the 
Comm~ss~on 1s an ehg~ole lender under the H~gher 
Ed~cat~on Act The Corporat~on, or 11s des~gnated 
agent, shall be responsible foreach of the following 
actions with respect to the Higher Education Act: 

(i) The Corporation, or its 
designated agent, shall be responsible for 
dealing with the Secretary with respect to 
the rights, benefits and obligations under 
the certificates of insurance and the 
contract of insurance with respect to such 
Guaranteed Loans, and the Corporation 
shall be responsible for dealing with the 
Guarantor with respect to the rights, 
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benefits and obligations under any guarantee 
agreement with respect to the Guaranteed 
Loans; 

(ii) The Corporation, or its 
designated agent, shall cause to be 
diligently enforced, and shall cause to be 
taken, all reasonable steps, actions and 
proceedings necessary or appropriate for 
the enforcement of all terms, covenants 
and conditions of all Guaranteed Loans 
and agreements in connection therewith. 
including the prompt payment of all 
principal and interest payments and all 
other amounts due thereunder; 

(iii) The Corporation, or its 
designated agent, shall comply, and shall 
cause all of its officers, director, employees 
and agents to comply, with the provisions 
of the Higher Education Act and any 
regulations or rulings thereunder, with 
respect to the Guaranteed Loans. 

(iv) The Corporation, or its 
designated agent, shall cause the benefits 
of the guarantee agreements, the interest 
subsidy payments and the special 
allowance payments to flow to the Trustee. 
The Trustee shall have no liability for 
actions taken at the direction of the 
Corporation, except for negligence orwillful 
misconduct in the performance of its 
express duties hereunder. The Trustee 
shall have no obligation to administer. 
service or collect the loans in the Trust 
Estate or to maintain or monitor the 
administration, servicing or collection of 
such loans. 

(D) The Corporation hereby covenants 
thatall Guaranteed Loans to be acquired hereunder 
will meet the following: 

(i) Each Guaranteed Loan is 
evidenced by an executed promissory note 
and is, to the best knowledge of the 
Corporation, a valid and binding obligation 
of the borrower, enforceable by or on 
behalf of the holder thereof in accordance 
with its terms, subject to bankruptcy. 
insolvency and other laws relating to or 
affecting creditors' rights. 

relating to such Guaranteed Loan as being 
currently involved in a bankruptcy 
proceeding. 

(iii) To the best knowledge of 
the Corporation, the amount of the unpaid 
principal balance of each Guaranteed Loan 
is true and owing, and no counterclaim, 
offset, defense or right to rescission exists 
with respect to any Guaranteed Loan 
which can be asserted and maintained or 
which, with notice, lapse of time, or the 
occurrence or failure to occur of any act or 
event, could be asserted and maintained 
by the borrower against the Corporation as 
assignee thereof. The Corporation shall 
take all reasonable actions to assure that 
no maker of a Guaranteed Loan has or 
may acquire a defense to the payment 
thereof. 

(iv) The Corporation has full 
right, title and interest in each Guaranteed 
Loan free and clear of all liens, pledges or 
encumbrances whatsoever. 

(v) To the best knowledge of 
the Corporation, each Guaranteed Loan 
was made in compliance with all applicable 
local, state and federal laws, rules and 
regulations, including without limitation all 
applicable nondiscrimination, truth-in- 
lending, consumer credit and usury laws. 

Section 708 - Issuance of Additional 
Oblioations. (A)The Corporation shall not hereafter 
create or permit the creation of or issue any 
obligations or create any indebtedness which will 
be secured by a lien on the Trust Estate except as 
provided in Sections 206, 207,208 and 209. 

(B) The Corporation shall not issue 
any Series of Bonds under this Indenture unless: 

(1) the principal amount of the 
Bonds then to be issued, together with the 
principal amount of the bonds, notes and 
other obligations of the Corporation 
theretofore issued (less any Bonds to be 
refunded thereby and deemed not 
Outstanding) will not in the opinion of Bond 
Counsel exceed in aggregate principal 
amount any limitation thereon imposed by 
law: and 

(ii) No borrower of any 
Guaranteed Loan was noted in the file 
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(2) upon the issuance and delivery 
of such Bonds, the amount credited to the 
Capital Reserve Fund shall not be less 
than the Capital Reserve Requirement. 

Section 709 -The Capital Reserve Fund. 
(A) The Corporation shall at all times maintain the 
capital Reserve Fund created and established by 
Section 501 and do and perform or cause to be 
done and performed each and every act and thing 
with respect to the Capital Reserve Fund provided 
to be done or performed by or on behalf of the 
Corporation or the Trustee or the Paying Agents 
under the terms and provisions of Article V hereof. 

(B) In orderto better secure the Bonds 
and to make them more marketableand to maintain 
in the Capital Reserve Fund an amount equal to the 
Capital Reserve Requirement, the Corporation 
shall, in compliance with the provisions of the Act, 
cause the Chairman ofthe Board of Directorsofthe 
Corporation annually, on or before January 15 of 
each year, to certify in writing to the Governor of the 
State and the Chairmen of the House and Senate 
Finance Committees the amount, if any, required to 
restore the Capital Reserve Fund to the Capital 
Reserve Requirement. A copy of such Certificate 
shall be promptly delivered to the Trustee. All 
moneys received by the Corporation from the State 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
pursuant to any such certification shall be paid to 
the Trustee for deposit and credit to the Capital 
Reserve Fund. In addition, if 15 days prior to the 
end of each calendar quarter during which the 
Bonds are outstanding, the amount in the Capital 
Reserve Fund is not equal to the Capital Reserve 
Requirement or there is not sufficient money 
otherwise available in all Funds and Accounts 
established hereunderto pay Principal Installments 
and interest coming due on the next Interest 
Payment Date, the Chairman of the Board shall 
certify in writing to the Governor the amount, if any, 
required to restore the Capital Reserve Fund to the 
Capital Reserve Requirement or to pay such 
Principal Installment and interest coming due, as 
the case may be. 

(C) Notwithstanding any other 
provision of this lndenture, the Trustee shall not 
permit amounts to be withdrawn from the Capital 
R e s e ~ e  Fund other than pursuant to Section 506. 

Section 710 - Com~liance with Conditions 
Precedent. Upon the date of issuance of any ofthe 
Bonds, all conditions, acts and things required by 
law or by this lndenture to exist, to have happened 

or to have been performed precedent to or in the 
issuance of such Bonds shall exist, have happened 
and have been performed, orwill have happened or 
been performed, and such Bonds, together with all 
other indebtedness of the Corporation shall be 
within every debt and other limit prescribed by law. 

Section 71 1 - General. The Corporation 
shall do and perform or cause to be done and 
performed all acts and things required to bedone or 
performed by or on behalf ofthe Corporation under 
the provisions of the Act and this lndenture in 
accordance with the terms of such provisions. 

Section 712 - Waiver of Laws. The 
Corporation shall not at any time insist upon or 
plead in any manner whatsoever, or claim or take 
the benefit or advantage of any stay or extension 
law now or at any time hereafter in force which may 
affect the covenants and agreements contained in 
this lndenture or in the Bonds, and all benefit or 
advantage of any such law is hereby expressly 
waived by the Corporation. 

Section 713 - Servicina of Education 
Loans. The Corporation covenants that it will 
provide or cause to be provided servicing for the 
Pledged Loans. The Corporation hereby 
represents and warrants that it has the experience 
to administer and service the Education Loans in 
accordance with the requirements of the Act and, 
when applicable, the Higher Education Act and 
covenants that it shall at all times take all action to 
ensure that the Education Loans made with the 
proceeds of the sale of the Bonds and the 
administering and servicing of such Education 
Loans complies with the requirements of the Act 
and, with regards to Guaranteed Loans, the Higher 
Education Act. 

Section 714 - Tax Covenants. (A) The 
Corporation shall not knowingly take or cause any 
action to be taken which would cause interest on 
any Bonds to become taxable for federal income 
tax purposes. The Corporation shall at all times do 
and perform all acts and things necessary or 
desirable, including, but not limited to, complying 
with the rebate provisions of Section 148 of the 
Code, as applicable, and complying with the 
provisions of any letter of instructions from Bond 
Counsel, in order to assure that interest paid on 
Bonds shall, for purposes of federal income 
taxation, be excludable from the gross income of 
the recipients thereof and exempt from taxation. 
The Corporation shall not permit at any time or 
times any proceeds of any Bonds or any amounts 
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held hereunder to be used, directly or indirectly, in 
a mannerwhich would result in the exclusion of any 
Bond from the treatment afforded by subsection (a) 
of Section 103 of the Code. 

(6) This Section shall not apply to any 
Bonds the interest on which is intended by the 
Corporation not to be excluded from gross income 
for federal income tax purposes under Section 103 
of the Code; provided, that no such Bonds shall be 
issued unless a Bond Counsel'sopinion is filed with 
the Trustee stating that the issuance of such Bonds 
will not adversely affect the exclusion from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes of the 
interest on any previously issued Bond. 

Section 715 - Continuinq Disclosure; 
Monitorinq Report: Bankruptcy. (A) The 
Corporation hereby covenants and agrees that it 
will comply with and carry out all the provisions of 
each Continuing Disclosure Agreement. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Indenture, failure of the Corporation to comply with 
any Continuing Disclosure Agreement shall not be 
considered an Event of Default, and any 
Bondholder may take such actions only as may be 
provided in such Continuing Disclosure Agreement. 

(6) The Corporation hereby covenantsand 
agrees that it will file with Moody's, for as long as 
any Bonds are Outstanding as to which Moody's is 
a Rating Agency, an annual monitoring report 
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit 
A; provided, however, that the Corporation and 
Moody's may at any time agree to waive the 
requirements of this subsection or to modify the 
form and content of the monitoring report or the 
time for filing the monitoring report, and no such 
agreement is subject to notice, review, or approval 
by any party, including, but not limited to, the 
Trustee and the Bondholders. The Corporation 
shall file the first monitoring report with Moody's 
within 215 days after the close of the Corporation's 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2003 and, thereafter, 
shall file subsequent monitoring reports within 215 
days after the end of each subsequent fiscal year. 

(C) Thecorporation hereby covenantsand 
agrees that it will notify the Rating Agencies of any 
change in the Act which would permit it or require 
it to declare bank~p tcy  under the Bankruptcy 
Code. 
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ARTICLE Vlll 
SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES 

Section 801 - Supplemental Indentures 
Effective Upon filinq With the Trustee. For any one 
or more of the following purposes and at any time 
or from time to time following written notice to the 
Rating Agencies, a Supplemental lndenture may be 
entered into by and between the Corporation and 
the Trustee 

(1) To close this lndenture 
against, or provide limitations and 
restrictions in addition to the limitations and 
restrictions contained in this lndenture on, 
the authentication and deliveryof Bonds or 
the issuance of other evidences of 
indebtedness; 

(2) To add to the covenants 
and agreements of the Corporation in this 
Indentureother covenants and agreements 
to be observed by the Corporation which 
are not contrary to or inconsistent with this 
lndenture as theretofore in effect; 

(3) To add to the limitations 
and restrictions in this lndenture other 
limitations and restrictions to be observed 
by the Corporation which are not contrary 
to or inconsistent with this lndenture as 
theretofore in effect; 

(4) To surrender any right, 
power or privilege reserved to or conferred 
upon the Corporation by the terms of this 
Indenture, but only if the surrender of such 
right, power or privilege is not contrary to 
or inconsistent with the covenants and 
agreements of the Corporation contained 
in this lndenture; 

(5) To authorize Bonds of a 
Series and, in connection therewith, (A) to 
specify and determine the matters and 
things referred to in, or otherwise take the 
actions described in, Sections 206, 302, 
306(A), 307,40l(A)(2), 401(B), 510, 51 1, 
601,602,603,605, and 1102 and also any 
other matters and things relative to such 
Bonds which are not contrary to or 
inconsistent with this lndenture as 
theretofore in effect, (B) to amend, modify 
or rescind any such authorization. 
specification or determination at any time 
prior to the first authentication and delivery 



of such Bonds or (C) to add such 
provisions to this lndenture and, if 
necessary, amend the provisions of this 
lndenture as may be necessary to permit 
and provide forthe issuance of such Bonds 
as bearer Bonds; 

(6) To confirm, as further 
assurance, any pledge under, and the 
subjection to any lien or pledge created or 
to be created by, this lndenture, of the 
Trust Estate; 

(7) To modify any of the 
provisions of this indenture in any respect 
whatsoever, provided that (i) such 
modification shall be, and be expressed to 
be, effective only after all Bonds of any 
Series Outstanding at the date of the 
adoption of such Supplemental lndenture 
shall cease to be Outstanding, and (ii)such 
Supplemental indenture shall be 
specifically referred to in the text of all 
Bonds of any Series authenticated and 
delivered after the date of the adoption of 
such Supplemental lndenture and of Bonds 
issued in exchange therefor or in place 
thereof; and 

(8) To make such additions. 
deletions, or modifications as may be 
necessary to assure compliance with 
Section 148(d)(3) of the Code or Section 
148(f) of the Code or the Higher Education 
Act or to obtain a satisfactory rating on a 
Series or Class of Bonds from a Rating 
Agency, provided, that no such additions, 
deletions or modifications intended to 
obtain a satisfactory rating shall cause 
reduction in any ratings assigned by a 
Rating Agency to Bonds then Outstanding. 

Section 802 - Su~plemental lndentures 
Effective Upon Consent of TNstee. (A) For any 
one or more of the following purposes and at any 
time or from time to time following written notice to 
the Rating Agencies, a Supplemental lndenture 
may be adopted, which, upon (i) the filing with the 
Trustee of a copy thereof certified by an Authorized 
Officer, and (ii) the filing with the Trustee and the 
Corporation of an instrument in writing made by the 
Tr~stee consenting thereto, shall be fully effective 
in accordance with its terms: 

(1) To cure any ambiguity, 
supply any omission, orcure orcorrect any 
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defect or inconsistent provision in this 
Indenture; or 

(2) To insert such provisions 
clarifying matters or questions arising 
under this lndenture as are necessary or 
desirable and are not contrary to or 
inconsistent with this lndenture as 
theretofore in effect; or 

(3) To provide for additional 
duties of theTrustee in connection with the 
Pledged Loans; or 

(4) To make any change that 
is accompanied by a Rating Confirmation 
reflecting such change or any change 
approved by a Credit Enhancement 
Agency if the change will only affect Bonds 
secured by Credit Enhancement issued by 
such Credit Enhancement Agency. 

(B) Any such Supplemental lndenture 
may also contain one or more of the purposes 
specified in Section 801. and in that event, the 
consent of the T ~ s t e e  required by this Section 
shall be applicable only to those provisions of such 
Supplemental lndenture as shall contain one or 
more of the purposes set forth in subsection (A) of 
this Section. 

Section 803 - Supplemental Indentures 
Effective With Consentof Bondholders. At any time 
or from time to time, a Supplemental lndenture may 
be adopted subject to consent by Bondholders in 
accordance with and subject to the provisions of 
Article IX, which Supplemental Indenture, upon the 
filing with the Trustee of a copy thereof certified by 
an Authorized Officer and upon compliance with the 
provisions of Article IX, shall become fully effective 
in accordance with its terms as provided in said 
Article. 

Section 804 -General Provisions. (A) This 
indenture shall not be modified or amended in any 
respect except as provided in and in accordance 
with and subject to the provisions of this Article and 
Article IX. Nothing in this Article or Article IX 
contained shall affect or limit the right or obligation 
of the Corporation to adopt, make, do, execute. 
acknowledge or deliver any resolution, act or other 
instrument pursuant to the provisions of Section 
704 or the right or obligation of the Corporation to 
execute and deliverto any Fiduciaryany instrument 
which elsewhere in this lndenture it is provided 
shall be delivered to said Fiduciary. 



(B) Any Supplemental lndenture 
referred to and permitted or authorized by Sections 
801 and 802 may be adopted by the Corporation 
without the consent of any of the Bondholders, but 
shall becomeeffective only on the conditions, to the 
extent and at the time provided in said Sections, 
respectively. The copy of every Supplemental 
lndenture filed with the Trustee shall be 
accompanied by a Counsel's Opinion stating that 
such Supplemental lndenture has been duly and 
lawfully adopted in accordance with the provisions 
of this lndenture, is authorized or permitted by this 
Indenture, and is valid and binding upon the 
Corporation and enforceable in accordance with its 
terms (subject, as to enforcement of remedies, to 
applicable bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, 
moratorium, or other laws affecting creditors' rights 
generally from time to time in effect). 

(C) The Trustee is hereby authorized 
to accept the delivery of a certified copy of any 
Supplemental lndenture referred to permitted or 
authorized by Sections 801, 802 or 803 and to 
make all further agreements and stipulations which 
may be therein contained, and the Trustee, in 
taking such action, shall be fully protected in relying 
on an opinion of counsel (which may be a 
Counsel's Opinion) that such Supplemental 
lndenture is authorized or permitted by the 
provisions of this lndenture. 

(D) No Supplemental lndenture shall 
change or modify any of the rights or obligations of 
any Fiduciary without its written assent thereto. 

ARTICLE IX 
AMENDMENTS 

Section 901 - Mailina of Notice of 
Amendment. Any provision in this Article for the 
mailing of a notice or other paper to Bondholders 
shall be fully complied with if it is mailed postage 
prepaid only (i) to each registered owner of Bonds 
then Outstanding at his address, if any, appearing 
upon the registry books of the Corporation, (ii) to 
each holder of any coupon Bond who shall have 
filed with the Trustee within two years preceding 
such mailing an address for notices, and (iii) to the 
Trustee. 

Section 902 -Powers of Amendment. Any 
modifcation or amendment of this lndenture or of 
the rohls and obliaations of the Cor~orat:on and of 
the holders of th;e Bonds and chpons (if any) 
hereunder, in any particular, may be made by a 
Supplemental Indenture, with the written consent 

given as provided in Section 903. (i) of the holders 
of at least two-thirds in principal amount of the 
Bonds of the highest Class Outstanding at the time 
such consent is given, (ii) in case less than all of 
the several Series or Classes of Bonds then 
Outstanding are affected by the modification or 
amendment, of the holders of at least two-thirds in 
principal amount of the Bonds of each Series or 
Class so affected and Outstanding at the time such 
consent isgiven, and (iii) in case the modification or 
amendment changes the terms of any Sinking Fund 
Payment, of the holders of at least two-thirds in 
principal amount of the Bonds of the particular 
Series, Class, and maturity entitled to such Sinking 
Fund Payment and Outstanding at the time such 
consent is given: except that if such modification or 
amendmentwill, by its terms, not take effect solong 
as any Bonds of any specified like Series, Class, 
and maturity remain Outstanding, the consent of 
the holders of such Bonds shall not be required and 
such Bonds shall not be deemed to be Outstanding 
for the purpose of any calculation of Outstanding 
Bonds under this Section. No such modification or 
amendment shall permit a change in the terms of 
redemption or maturity of the principal of any 
Outstanding Bond or of any installment of interest 
thereon ora reduction in the principal amount orthe 
Redemption Price thereof or in the rate of interest 
thereon without the consent of the holder of such 
Bond, or shall reduce the percentages orotherwise 
affect the classes of Bonds the consent of the 
holders of which is required to effect any such 
modification or amendment, or shall change or 
modify any of the rights or obligations of any 
Fiduciary without its written assent thereto. For the 
purposes of this Section, a Series or Class shall be 
deemed to be affected by a modification or 
amendment of this lndenture if the same adversely 
affects or diminishes the rights of the holders of 
Bonds of such Series or Class. In determining 
whether in accordance with the foregoing powers of 
amendment Bonds of any particular Series, Class. 
or maturity would beaffected by any modification or 
amendment hereof the Trustee shall request a 
Counsel's Opinion, on which it shall rely, and any 
such Counsel's Opinion shall be binding and 
conclusive on the Corporation and all holders of 
Bonds. 

Section 903- Consent of Bondholders. (A) 
The Corporation may at any time adopt a 
Supplemental lndenture making a modification or 
amendment permitted by the provisions of Section 
902, to take effect when and as provided in this 
Section. A copy of such Supplemental lndenture 
(or brief summary thereof or reference thereto), 
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together with a request to Bondholders for their 
consent thereto, shall be mailed by the Corporation 
to Bondholders . Such Supplemental indenture 
shall not be effective unless and until there shall 
have been filed with the Trustee (a) the written 
consents of holders of the percentages of 
Outstanding Bonds specified in Section 902 and (b) 
a Counsel'sOpinion stating thatsuchSupplementa1 
lndenture has been duly and lawfully adopted and 
filed by the Corporation in accordance with the 
provisions of this indenture, is authorized or 
permitted hereby and is valid and binding upon the 
Corporation and enforceable in accordance with its 
terms, and (ii) a notice shall have been mailed as 
hereinafter provided in this Section. 

(B) The consent of a Bondholder to 
any modification or amendment shall be effective 
only if accompanied by proof of the holding, at the 
date of such consent, of the Bonds with respect to 
which such consent is given, which proof shall be 
such as is permitted by Section 11 14. A certificate 
or certificates by the Trustee filed with the Trustee 
that it has examined such proof and that such proof 
is sufficient in accordance with Section 11 14 shall 
beconclusive thattheconsents have been given by 
the holders of the Bonds described in such 
certificate or certificates of the Trustee. Any such 
consent shall be binding upon the holder of the 
Bonds giving such consent and upon any 
subsequent holderofsuch Bondsand ofany Bonds 
issued in exchange therefor (regardless of whether 
such subsequent holder thereof has notice thereof) 
unless such consent is revoked in writing by the 
holder of such Bonds giving such consent or a 
subsequent holderthereof by filing with the Trustee, 
prior to the time when the written statement of the 
T ~ s t e e  hereinafter provided for in this Section is 
filed, such revocation and, if such Bonds are 
transferable by delivery, proof that such Bonds are 
held by the signer of such revocation in the manner 
permitted by Section 11 14. The fact that a consent 
has not been revoked may likewise be proved by a 
certificate of the Trustee filed with the Trustee to 
the effect that no revocation thereof is on file with 
the Trustee. 

(C) At any time afler the holders of the 
required percentages of Bonds shall have filed their 
consents to the Supplemental Indenture, the 
Trustee shall make and file with the Corporation 
and theTrusteea written statementthat the holders 
of such required percentages of Bonds have filed 
such consents. Such written statement shall be 
conclusive that such consents have been so filed. 
At any time thereafter notice, stating in substance 

that the Supplemental lndenture adopted by the 
Corporation on a stated date, a copy of which is on 
file with the Trustee, has been consented to by the 
holders of the required percentages of Bonds and 
will be effective as provided in this Section, may be 
given to Bondholders by the Corporation by mailing 
such notice to Bondholders at least once not more 
than ninety days after the holders of the required 
percentages of Bonds shall have filed their 
consents to the Supplemental lndenture and the 
written statement of the Tmstee hereinabove 
provided for is filed. The Corporation shall file with 
the Trustee proof of the publication of such notice 
and, if the same shall have been mailed to 
Bondholders, of the mailing thereof. A record. 
consisting of the papers required or permitted by 
this Section to be filed with the Trustee, shall be 
proof of the matters therein stated. Such 
Supplemental lndenture making such amendment 
or modification shall be deemed conclusively 
binding upon the Corporation, the Fiduciaries and 
the holders of all Bonds at the expiration of forty 
days afler the filing with the T ~ s t e e  of the proof of 
the first publication of such last mentioned notice. 
except in the event of a final decree of a court of 
competent jurisdiction setting aside such 
Supplemental lndenture in a legal action or 
equitable proceeding for purpose commenced 
within such forty day period; except that any 
Fiduciaryand the Corporation during such forty day 
period and any such further period during which 
any such action or proceeding may be pending 
shall be entitled in their absolute discretion to take 
such action, or to refrain from taking such action. 
with respect to such Supplemental lndenture as 
they may deem expedient. 

Section 904 -Modifications bv Unanimous 
Consent. The terms and provisions of this 
lndenture and the rights and obligations of the 
corporation and of the holders of the Bonds may be 
modified or amended in any respect upon the 
adoption and filing by the Corporation of a 
Supplemental lndenture and the consent of the 
holders of all the Bonds then Outstanding, such 
consent to be given as provided in Section 903 
except that no notice to Bondholders either by 
mailing orpublication shall be required; but no such 
modification or amendment shall change or modify 
any of the rights or obligations of any Fiduciary 
unless there shall have been filed with the Trustee 
such Fiduciary'swritten assent thereto in addition to 
the consent of the Bondholders. 

Section 905 - Exclusion of Bonds. Bonds 
owned or held by or for the account of the 
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Corporation shall not be deemed Outstanding for 
the purpose of consent or other action or any 
calc~laton of O~tstanding Bonds provided for in 
ths Article. and theCorooration snall not be ent~tled 
with respect to such Bonds to give any consent or 
take any other action provided for in this Article. At 
the time of any consent or other action taken under 
this Article, the Corporation shall furnish the 
Trustee a Certificate of an Authorized Officer of the 
Corporation, upon which the Trustee may rely, 
describing all Bonds so to be excluded. 

Section 906 - Notation on Bonds. Bonds 
authenticated and delivered afler the effective date 
of any action taken as in Article Vlll or this Article 
provided may, and, if the Corporation so 
determines, shall bear a notation by endorsement 
or otherwise in form approved by the Corporation 
and the Trustee as to such action, and in that case 
upon demand of the holder of any Bond 
Outstanding at such effective date and presentation 
of his Bond for the purpose at the principal office of 
the Trustee or upon any transfer or exchange of 
any Bond Outstanding at such effective date. 
suitable notation shall be made on such Bond or 
upon any Bond issued upon any such transfer or 
exchange by the Trustee as to any such action. If 
the Corporation or the Trustee shall so determine, 
new Bonds so modified as in the opinion of the 
Trustee and the Corporation to conform to such 
action shall be prepared, authenticated and 
delivered, and upon demand of the holder of any 
Bond then Outstanding shall be exchanged. without 
cost to such Bondholder, for Bonds of the same 
Series and maturity then Outstanding, upon 
surrender of such Bonds with all unpaid coupons, 
if any, appertaining thereto. 

ARTICLE X 
DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 

Section 1001 -Trustee to Exercise Powers 
of Statutorv Trustee. The Trustee shall be and 
hereby is vested with all of the rights, powers and 
dutieiof a trustee permitted to beappointed by the 
Corporation pursuant to Section 14.42.230 of the 
Act. 

Section 1002 -Events of Default. Each of 
the fol owhg events is hereoy declared an "Event of 
Default", that is to say if: 

(1) the Corporation shall 
default in the payment of the principal or 
Redemption Price, if any, of any Bond of 
the highest Class Outstanding when and 

as the same shall become due, whether at 
maturity or upon call for redemption or 
otherwise; 

(2) paymentofany installment 
of interest on any of the Bonds of the 
highest Class Outstanding shall not be 
made when the same shall become due; 

(3) the Corporation shall fail or 
refuse to comply with the provisions of this 
Indenture, or shall default in the 
perfomlance or observance of any of the 
covenants, agreements or conditions on its 
part contained herein or in any 
Supplemental Indenture or the Bonds, and 
such failure, refusal or default shall 
continue for a period offorty-five days after 
written notice thereof by the Trustee or the 
holders of not less than twenty-five per 
centum (25%) in principal amount of the 
Bonds of the highest Class Outstanding; 

(4) the Corporation shall 
commence a voluntary case or other 
proceeding seeking l iquidation, 
reorganization or other relief with respect 
to itself or its debts under any bankruptcy, 
insolvency or other similar law now or 
hereafter in effect or seeking the 
appointment of a trustee, receiver, 
liquidator, custodian or other similar official 
of it or any substantial part of its property, 
or shall consent to any such relief or to the 
appointment of or taking possession by 
any such official in an involuntary case or 
other proceeding commenced against it, or 
shall make a general assignment for the 
benefit of creditors, or shall fail generally to 
pay its debts as they become due, or shall 
take any corporate action to authorize any 
of the foregoing; 

(5) an involuntary case or 
other proceeding shall be commenced 
against the Corporation seeking liquidation, 
reorganization or other relief with respect 
to itself or its debts under any bankruptcy, 
insolvency or other similar law now or 
hereafter in effect or seeking the 
appointment of a trustee, receiver, 
liquidator, custodian or other similar official 
of it or any substantial part of its property, 
and such involuntary case or other 
proceeding shall remain undismissed or 
unstayed for a period of 60 days; or an 
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order for relief shall be entered against the 
Corporation under the Federal bankruptcy 
laws as now or hereafter in effect; 

(6) any event of default shall 
have occurred and remain uncured under 
any Parity Obligation Instrument if there 
shall then be issued and outstanding 
thereunder Parity Obligations and if such 
Parity Obligations shall be of a Class at 
least equal to the highest Class of any 
Outstanding Bonds; and 

(7) any event designated an 
Event of Default by a Supplemental 
lndenture shall have occurred and remain 
uncured. 

The Trustee shall be deemed to have 
actual knowledge of an Event of Default described 
in (4) through (7) above only upon receipt by a 
Corporate Trust Officer of the Trustee of a written 
notice thereof. 

Section 1003 - Remedies. (A) Upon the 
happening and continuance of any Event of Default 
sp&ifiedk paragraph (l), (2) or (3) of Section 
1002 as to which the Trustee has knowledge, the 
T ~ S t e e  shall proceed, or upon the happening and 
continuance of any Event of Default specified in 
paragraph (4), (5), (6) or (7) of Section 1002 as to 
which theTrustee has knowledge, theTrustee may 
proceed, and upon the written request of the 
holders of not less than twenty-five per centum 
(25%) in principal amount of the Outstanding Bonds 
of the highest Class, shall proceed, in its own 
name, subject to the provisions of Section 1103, to 
protect and enforce its rights and the rights of the 
Bondholders by such of the following remedies as 
the TNStee, being advised by counsel, shall deem 
most effectual to protect and enforce such rights: 

(1) by mandamus or other 
suit, action or proceeding at law or in 
equity, to enforce all of the Bondholders' 
rights, including the right of the Trustee on 
behalf of the Bondholders to receive and 
collect all Pledged Receipts and to require 
the Corporation to carry out any other 
covenant or agreement with Bondholders 
and to perform its duties under the Act; 

(2) by bringing suit upon the 
Bonds; 

(3) by action or suit in equity, 
to require the Corporation to account as if 
it were the trustee of an express trust for 
the owners of the Bonds and then take 
such action with respect to the Pledged 
Loans and related documents as the 
Trustee shall deem necessary or 
appropriate and in the best interest of the 
Bondholders, subject to the terms of the 
Pledged Loans and related documents, 
including the sale of part or all of the 
Pledged Loans. 

(4) by action or suit in equity, 
enjoin any acts or things which may be 
unlawful or in violation of the rights of the 
holders of the Bonds; 

(5 )  by declaring all Bonds due 
and payable, and if all defaults shall be 
made good, then, with the written consent 
of the holders of not less than twenty-five 
per centum (25%) in principal amount of 
the Outstanding Bonds of the highest 
Class Outstanding, by annulling such 
declaration and its consequences; or 

(6) by pursuing any rights or 
privileges it may have with respect to 
security for the Bonds under any Parity 
Obligation Instrument. 

(B) In the enforcement of any rights 
and remedies under this lndenture, the Trustee 
shall be entitled to sue for, enforce payment on and 
receive any and all amounts then or during any 
default becoming, and at any time remaining, due 
from the Corporation for principal. Redemption 
Price. Program Expenses, interest or otherwise. 
under any provision of this lndenture or a 
Supplemental lndenture or of the Bonds, and 
unpaid, with interest on overdue payments at the 
rate or rates of interest specified in such Bonds, 
together with any and all costs and expenses of 
collection and of all proceedings hereunder and 
under such Bonds, without prejudice to any other 
right or remedy of the Trustee or of the 
Bondholders, and to recover and enforce a 
judgment or decree against the Corporation for any 
portion of such amounts remaining unpaid, with 
interest, costs and expenses, and to collect from 
any moneys available for such purpose, in any 
manner provided by law, the moneys adjudged or 
decreed to be payable. 
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Section 1004 - Prioritv of Pavments After 
Default. (A) In the event that upon the happening 
and continuance of any Event of Default, the funds 
held by the Trustee and Paying Agents shall be 
insufficient for the payment of principal or 
Redemption Price, if any, of and interest then due 
on the Bonds, such funds and any other moneys 
received or collected by t h e T ~ s t e e  acting pursuant 
to the Act and this Article or with respect to Parity 
Obligations or Parity Obligation Instruments, after 
making provision for the payment of any expenses 
necessary in the opinion of the Trustee to protect 
the interests of the holders of the Bonds and forthe 
payment ofthe charges and expensesand liabilities 
incurred and advances made by the Trustee or any 
Paying Agents in the performance of their 
respective duties under this Indenture, shall be 
applied as follows: 

(1) Unless the principal of all 
of the Bonds shall have come or have 
been declared due and payable, the 
T ~ S t e e  shall make the following payments 
within the highest Class of Bonds 
Outstanding and, only after making all such 
payments within such Class, shall then 
make such payments within the next lower 
Class and, thereafter, shall make such 
payments within each succeeding lower 
Class: 

FIRST: To the payment to person 
entitled thereto of all installments of 
interest then due in the order of the 
maturity of such installments, and, if the 
amount available shall not be sufficient to 
pay in full any installment, then to the 
payment thereof ratably, according to the 
amounts due on such installment, to the 
persons entitled thereto, without any 
discrimination or preference except with 
respect to Classes as described above; 
and 

SECOND: To the payment to the 
persons entitled thereto of the unpaid 
principal or Redemption Price of any 
Bonds which shall have become due, 
whether at maturity or by call for 
redemption, in the order of their due dates 
and, if the amounts available shall not be 
sufficient to pay in full all the Bonds due on 
any date, then to the payment thereof 
ratably, according to the amounts of 
principal or Redemption Price, if any, due 
on such date, to the persons entitled 

thereto, without any discrimination or 
preference except with respect to Classes 
as described above. 

(2) If the principal of all of the 
Bonds shall have become or have been 
declared due and payable, the Trustee 
shall make the following payments within 
the highest Class of Bonds Outstanding 
and, only after making all such payments, 
shall then make such payments within the 
next lower Class and, thereafter, shall 
make such payments within each 
succeeding lower Class: to the payment of 
the principal and interest then due and 
unpaid upon the Bonds of a Class without 
preference or priority of principal over 
interest or of interest over principal, or of 
any installment of interest over any other 
installment of interest, or of any Bond of 
such Class over any other Bond of such 
Class, ratably, according to the amounts 
due respectively for principal and interest, 
to the persons entitled thereto without any 
discrimination or preference except as to 
any difference in the respective rates of 
interest specified in the Bonds and 
coupons (if any). 

(B) Whenever moneys are to be 
applied by the Trustee pursuant to the provisions of 
this Section, such moneys shall be applied by the 
Trustee at such times, and from time to time, as the 
T ~ S t e e  in its solediscretion shall determine, having 
due regard to the amount of such moneys available 
for application and the likelihood of additional 
money becoming available for such application in 
the future; the deposit of such moneys with the 
Paying Agents, or otherwise setting aside such 
moneys in trust for the proper purpose, shall 
constitute proper application by the Trustee; and 
theTrustee shall incur no liability whatsoeverto the 
Corporation, to any Bondholder or to any other 
person for any delay in applying any such moneys. 
so long as the Trustee acts with reasonable 
diligence, having due regard for the circumstances. 
and ultimately applies the same in accordance with 
such provisions of this Indenture as may be 
applicable at the time of application by the Trustee. 
Whenever the Trustee shall exercise such 
discretion in applying such moneys, it shall fix the 
date (which shall be an Interest Payment Date 
unless the Trustee shall deem another date more 
suitab1e)upon which such application is to be made 
and upon such date interest on the amounts of 
principal to be paid on such date shall cease to 
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accrue. The T ~ s t e e  shall give such notice as it 
may deem appropriate for the fixing of any such 
date. The Trustee shall not be required to make 
payment to the holder of any unpaid coupon or any 
Bond unless such coupon or Bond shall be 
presented to the Trustee for appropriate 
endorsement or cancellation. 

Section 1005-Termination of Proceedinas. 
In case of any proceedings taken by the Trustee on 
account of any Event of Default shall have been 
discontinued or abandoned for any reason, then in 
every such case the Corporation, the Trustee and 
the Bondholders shall be restored to their former 
positions and rights hereunder, respectively, and all 
rights, remedies, powers and duties of the Trustee 
shall continue as though no such proceeding had 
been taken. 

Section 1006 - Bondholders' Direction of 
Proceedinqs. Anything in this lndenture to the 
contrary notwithstanding, the holders ofthe majority 
in principal amount of the Bonds of the highest 
Class then Outstanding shall have the right by an 
instrument or concurrent instruments in writing 
executed and delivered to the Trustee, to direct the 
method of conducting all remedial proceedings to 
be taken by the Trustee hereunder, provided that 
such direction shall not be otherwise than in 
accordance with law or the provisions of this 
Indenture, and that the Trustee shall have the right 
to decline to follow any such direction which in the 
opinion of the Trustee would be unjustly prejudicial 
to Bondholders not parties to such direction or 
would adversely affect the Trustee. The Trustee 
may rely on an Opinion of Counsel that such 
direction would adversely affect Bondholders. 

Section 1007 - Limitation on Riqhts of 
Bondholders. (A) No holder of any Bond shall have 
any right to institute any suit, action, mandamus or 
other proceeding in equity or at law hereunder, or 
forthe protection or enforcement of any right under 
this lndenture or any right under law unless such 
holder shal havegiven to the Trustee written not'ce 
of the Event of Defau tor breach of dutv on account 
of which such suit, action or proceeding is to be 
taken, and unless the holders of not less than 
twenty-five percentum (25%) in principal amount of 
the Bonds of the highest Class then Outstanding 
shall have made written request of the Trusteeafter 
the right to exercise such powers or right of action, 
as the case may be, shall have occurred, and shall 
have afforded the Trustee a reasonable opportunity 
either to proceed to exercise the powers herein 
granted or granted under the law or to institute such 

action, suit or proceeding in its name and unless, 
also, there shall have been offered to the Tmstee 
reasonable security and indemnity against the 
costs, expenses and liabilities to be insured therein 
or thereby, and the Trustee shall have refused or 
neglected to comply with such request within a 
reasonable time; and such notification, request and 
offer of indemnity are hereby declared in every 
such case, at the option of the Trustee, to be 
conditions precedent to the execution ofthe powers 
under this lndenture or for any other remedy 
hereunder or under law. It is understood and 
intended that no one or more holders of the Bonds 
hereby secured shall have any right in any manner 
whatever by their action to affect, disturb or 
prejudice the security of this lndenture, or to 
enforce any right hereunder or under law with 
respectto the Bondsof this lndenture, except in the 
manner herein provided, and that all proceedings at 
law or in equity shall be instituted, had and 
maintained in the manner herein provided and for 
the benefit of all holders of the Outstanding Bonds. 
Nothing in this Article contained shall affect or 
impair the right of any Bondholder to enforce the 
payment of the principal or Redemption Price, if 
any, ofand interest on such Bondholder's Bonds, or 
the obligation ofthe Corporation to pay the principal 
or Redemption Price, if any, of and interest on each 
Bond issued hereunder to the holder thereof at the 
time and place in said Bond expressed. 

(B) Notwithstanding anything to the 
contrary contained in this Section, or any other 
provision of this lndenture, each holderofany Bond 
by such holdets acceptance thereof shall be 
deemed to have agreed that any court in its 
discretion may require, in any suit for the 
enforcement of any right or remedy under this 
lndenture or any Supplemental Indenture, or in any 
suit against the T ~ s t e e  for any action taken or 
omitted by it as Trustee, the filing by any party 
litigant in such suit of an undertaking to pay the 
reasonable costs of such suit, and that such court 
may in its discretion assess reasonable costs, 
including reasonable attorneys' fees, against any 
party litigant in any such suit, having due regard to 
the merits and good faith of the claims or defenses 
made by such party litigant: but the provisions of 
this paragraph shall not apply to any suit instituted 
by the Trustee, to any suit instituted by any 
Bondholder, or group of Bondholders, holding at 
least twenty-five per centum (25%) in principal 
amount of the Bonds of the highest Class 
Outstanding, or to any suit instituted by any 
Bondholder for the enforcement of the payment of 
the principal or Redemption Price of or interest on 
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any Bond on or after the respective due date 
thereof expressed in such Bond. 

Section 1008 - Possession of Bonds by 
Trustee Not Reauired. All rights ofaction underthis 
lndenture or under any of the Bonds, enforceable 
by the Trustee, may be enforced by it without the 
possession of any of the Bonds or the production 
thereof on the trial or other proceeding relative 
thereto, and any such suit, action or proceeding 
instituted by the Trustee shall be brought in its 
name for the benefit of all the holders of such 
Bonds, subject to the provisions of this lndenture. 

Section 1009 - Remedies Not Exclusive. 
No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to 
the Trustee or to the holders of the Bonds is 
intended to be exclusive of any other remedy or 
remedies, and each and every such remedy shall 
be cumulative and shall be in addition to any other 
remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter 
existing at law or in equity or by statute. 

Section 1010 - No Waiver of Default. No 
delay or omission of the Trustee or of any holder of 
the Bonds to exercise any right or power accruing 
upon any default shall impair any such right or 
power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any 
such default or an acquiescence therein; and every 
power and remedy given by this lndenture to the 
Trustee and the holders of the Bonds, respectively, 
may be exercised from time to time and as often as 
may be deemed expedient. 

Section 101 1 -Notice to Bondholders. The 
Trustee shall give to the Bondholders notice of 
each Event of Default hereunder known to the 
Trustee within ninety days after knowledge of the 
occurrence thereof, unless such Event of Default 
shall have been remedied or cured before the 
giving of such notice. Each such notice shall be 
given by the Trustee by mailing written notice 
thereof to all registered holders of Bonds, as the 
names and addresses of such holders appear upon 
the books for registration and transfer of Bonds as 
kept by the Trustee purpose and to such other 
persons as is required by law. 

ARTICLE XI 
CONCERNING THE FIDUCIARIES 

Section 1101 - Trustee. Zions First 
National Bank, a t ~ s t  company or bank having the 
powers of a trust company doing business and 
having its principal office in the City of Denver, in 
the State of Colorado, is hereby appointed as 

Trustee. The Trustee shall signify its acceptance of 
the duties and obligations imposed upon it by this 
lndenture by executing the certificate of 
authentication endorsed upon the Bonds, and, by 
executing such certificate upon any Bond, the 
Trustee shall be deemed to have accepted such 
duties and obligations not only with respect to the 
Bond so authenticated, but with respect to all the 
Bonds thereafter to be issued; but only, however, 
upon the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Indenture. 

Section 1102 - Appointment and 
Acceptance of Duties of Pavina Agents. (A) The 
Corporation shall appoint one or more Paying 
Agents for the Bonds of any Series in the 
Supplemental lndenture authorizing such Bonds or 
shall appoint such Paying Agent or Paying Agents 
by resolution of the Corporation adopted prior to the 
authentication and deliverv of such Bonds. and mav 
at any time or from time to time appoint one or 
more other Paying Agents in the manner and 
subject to the conditions set forth in Section 11 13 
for the appointment of a successor Paying Agent. 

(B) Each Paying Agent shall signify its 
acceptance of the duties and obligations imposed 
upon it by this lndenture by written instrument of 
acceptance executed and delivered to the 
Corporation and the TNStee. 

(C) The principal or corporate trust 
offices ofthe Paying Agents are hereby designated 
as the respective agencies of the Corporation for 
the payment of the interest on and principal or 
Redemption Price of the Bonds. 

Section 1103 - Res~onsibilitv of 
Fiduciaries. (A) The recitals of fact herein and in 
the Bonds contained shall be taken as the 
statements of the Corporation and no Fiduciary 
assumes any responsibility for the correctness of 
thesame. No Fiduciarymakesany representations 
as to the validity or sufficiency of this lndenture or 
of any Bonds or coupons issued thereunder or in 
respect of the security afforded by this lndenture or 
the Trust Estate, and no Fiduciary shall incur any 
responsibility in respect thereof. The Trustee shall, 
however, be responsible for its representation 
contained in its certificate on the Bonds. No 
Fiduciary shall be under any responsibility or duty 
with respect to any other Fiduciary. No Fiduciary 
shall be under any obligation or duty to perform any 
act which would involve it in expense or liability or 
to institute or defend any suit in respect hereof, or 
to advance any of its own moneys, unless 
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indemnified to its satisfaction. No Fiduciary shall be 
liable in connection with the performance of its 
duties hereunder except for its own negligence or 
willful misconduct. Neither the Trustee nor any 
Paying Agent shall be under any responsibility or 
duty with respect to the application of any moneys 
paid to any one of the others or the use or 
application by the Corporation of the Bonds or the 
proceeds thereof. 

(B) Except during the continuance of 
an Event of Default, the Trustee undertakes to 
perform such duties and only such duties as are 
specifically set forth in this lndenture, and no 
implied covenants or obligations shall be read into 
this lndenture against the Trustee, and, in the 
absence of bad faith on its part, the Trustee may 
conclusively rely, as to the truth of the statements 
and the correctness of the opinion expressed 
therein, upon certificates or opinions furnished to 
the Trustee and conforming to the requirements of 
this lndenture. 

(C) In case an Event of Default has 
occurred and is continuing, the Trustee shall 
exercise such of the rights and powers vested in it 
by this lndenture and use the same degree of care 
and skill in their exercise as a prudent person would 
exercise or use under the circumstances in the 
conduct of his own affairs. 

(D) No provision ofthis Indentureshall 
be construed to relieve the Trustee from liability for 
its own negligent action, its own negligent failure to 
act, or its own willful misconduct, except that (I) the 
Trustee shall not be liable for any error of judgment 
made in good faith by a responsible officer, unless 
it shall be proved that the Trustee was negligent in 
ascertaining the pertinent facts, (2) the Trustee 
shall not be liable with respect to any action taken 
or omitted to be taken by it in good faith in 
accordance with the direction of the holders of a 
majority in principal amount of the Outstanding 
Bonds relating to the time, method and place of 
conducting any proceeding for any remedy 
available to the Trustee, or exercising any trust or 
power conferred upon the Trustee, under this 
Indenture, and (3) no provision of this lndenture 
shall require the Trustee to expend or risk its own 
funds or otherwise incur any financial liability in the 
performanceof any of its duties hereunder, or in the 
exercise of any of its rights or powers, if it shall 
have reasonable grounds for believing that 
repayment of such funds or adequate indemnity 
against such risk or liability is not reasonably 
assured to it. Except as otherwise expressly 

provided herein, the Trustee shall determine 
whether any conditions or requirements set forth 
herein for any purpose have been met, and such 
determination by the Trustee shall be conclusive. 

(E) Regardless of whether it is therein 
expressly so provided, every provision of this 
Indenture, any Supplemental Indenture, Parity 
Obligation Instrument, Credit Enhancement or any 
related document relating to the conduct or 
affecting the liability of or affording protection to the 
Trustee shall be subject to the provisions of this 
Article. 

(F) The Trustee shall be under no 
obligation to exercise any of the rights or powers 
vested in it by this lndenture at the request or 
direction of any of the Bondholders pursuant to this 
Indenture, unless such Bondholders shall have 
offered to the T ~ s t e e  security or indemnity to its 
satisfaction against the costs, expenses and 
liabilities which might be incurred by it in 
compliance with such request or direction. 

(G) The Trustee shall not be bound to 
make any investigation into the facts or matters 
stated in any resolution, certificate, statement, 
instrument, opinion, report, notice, request, 
direction, consent, order, bond, debenture, coupon 
or other paper or document. 

(H) The Trustee may execute any of 
the trusts or powers hereunder or perform any 
duties hereunder either directly or by or through 
agents or attorneys, and the Trustee shall not be 
responsible for any misconduct or negligence on 
the part of any agent orattomey appointed with due 
care by it hereunder. 

(I) The Trustee shall have no 
responsibility for or liability in connection with 
assuring that all of the procedures or conditions to 
closing set forth in the Purchase Agreement have 
been met on the Closing Date to the parties are 
actually delivered, except its own responsibility to 
receive the proceeds of the sale, deliver the Bonds, 
and deliver and receive other certificates and 
documents expressly required to be delivered by it 
and its counsel. The Trustee may assume that 
parties to the Purchase Agreement have waived 
their rights to receive documents or to require the 
performance of procedures if the parties to whom 
such documents are to be delivered or for whom 
such procedures are to be performed do not require 
delivery or performance on or prior to the Closing 
Date. 
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(J) The permissive right oftheTrustee 
to do things enumerated in this lndenture shall not 
be construed as a duty. 

(K) In accepting the trusts hereby 
created, the Trustee acts solely as Trustee for the 
Bondholders and not in its individual capacity and 
all persons, including, without limitation, the 
Bondholders and the Corporation having any claim 
against theTrustee arisingfrom this lndenture shall 
look only to the funds and accounts held by the 
Trustee or its agent hereunder for payment except 
as otherwise provided herein. Under no 
circumstances shall the Trustee be liable in its 
individual capacity forthe obligations evidenced by 
the Bonds. 

(L) The Trustee shall not be 
responsible for the validity or effectiveness of any 
collateral given to or held by it. The TNstee shall 
not be responsible for the recording or filing of any 
document relating to this lndenture or of financing 
statements (or continuation statements in 
connection therewith) or of any supplemental 
instruments or documents or further assurance as 
may be required by law in order to perfect the 
security interests in any collateral given to or held 
by it. 

(M) If, as a result of the occurrence of 
an Event of Default, the Corporation or the Trustee 
employs attorneys or incurs other fees and 
expenses for the collection of payments due 
hereunderor for the enforcement of performance or 
observance of any obligation or agreement on the 
part of the Corporation, the Corporation will, on 
demand, reimburse the Trustee for the reasonable 
fees of such attorneys and such other reasonable 
fees and expenses so incurred; provided, however. 
that amounts in the Trust Estate shall first be 
applied as provided in Section 1004. 

(N) In no event shall the Trustee be 
responsible for and it makes no representations or 
warranty, express or implied, with respect to, 
compliance with the Act, the making of Education 
Loans, the servicing of the Education Loans, or the 
sufficiency of the promissory notes or other 
instruments or documentation related thereto. 

(0) The Trustee's rights to 
indemnification and payment of its fees, expenses, 
losses and liabilities shall survive its resignation or 
removal and final payment of the Bonds. 

(P) The Trustee makes no 
representation as to the correctness or 
completeness of any information contained in the 
Official Statement or any other offering material 
pertaining to any Series of Bonds. 

Section 1104 - Evidence on Which 
Fiduciaries May Act. Each Fiduciary may rely and 
shall be protected in acting upon any notice. 
resolution, request, consent, order, certificate, 
report, opinion, bond or other paper or document 
believed by it to be genuine, and to have been 
signed or presented by the proper party or parties. 
Each Fiduciary may consult with counsel, who may 
or may not be of counsel to the Corporation, and 
the opinion of such shall be full and complete 
authorization and protection in respect of any action 
taken orsuffered or omitted by it hereunder in good 
faith and in reliance thereon. Whenever any 
Fiduciary shall deem it necessary or desirable that 
a matter be proved or established prior to taking or 
suffering oromitting any action hereunder, including 
payment of moneys out of any Fund or Account, 
such matter (unless other evidence in respect 
thereof be herein specifically prescribed) may be 
deemed to be conclusively proved and established 
by a Certificate signed by an Authorized Officer. 
and such Certificate shall be full warrant for any 
action taken or suffered in good faith under the 
provisions of this lndenture upon the faith thereof. 
but in its discretion the Fiduciary may in lieu thereof 
accept other evidence of such fact or matter or may 
require such further or additional evidence as to it 
may seem reasonable. Except as otherwise 
expressly provided herein, any request, order, 
notice or other direction required or permitted to be 
furnished pursuant to any provision hereof by the 
Corporation to any Fiduciary shall be sufficient 
executed ifexecuted in thenameofthe Corporation 
by an Authorized Officer. 

Section 1105 - Compensation, The 
Corporation shall pay to the Trustee and to each 
Paying Agent from time to time reasonable 
compensation for all services rendered under this 
Indenture, and also all reasonable fees, expenses. 
charges, counsel fees and other disbursements. 
including those of their attorneys, agents and 
employees, incurred in and about the performance 
of theirpowersand duties underthis lndenture, and 
the Trustee and each Paying Agent shall have a 
lien therefor on any and all funds at any time held 
by it under this lndenture. The Corporation further 
agrees to indemnify and save the Trustee and each 
Paying Agent harmless against any liabilities. 
losses, expenses, and advances which it may incur 
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in the exercise and performance of its powers and 
duties hereunder, which are not due to its 
negligence or willful misconduct. 

Section 1106 - Permitted Acts and 
Functions. TheTrustee and any Paying Agent may 
become the owner of any Bondsand coupons, with 
the same rights it should have if it were not such 
Trustee or Paying Agent. The Trustee and any 
Paying Agent may act as Depositaryfor, and permit 
any of its officers or directors to act as a member 
of, or in any other capacity with respect to, any 
committee formed to protect the rights of 
Bondholdersortoeffectoraid in any reorganization 
growing out of the enforcement of the Bonds or this 
Indenture, regardless of whether any such 
committee shall represent the holders of a majority 
in principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding. 

Section 1107 - Resiqnation of Trustee. 
The Trustee may at any time resign and be 
discharged of the duties and obligations created by 
this lndenture by giving not less than ninety days 
written notice to the Corporation and to the 
registered owners ofthe Bonds, specifying the date 
when such resignation shall take effect. If any 
Bonds are Outstanding in bearer form, the Trustee 
shall also publish such noticeonce in an Authorized 
Newspaper. Such resignation shall take effect upon 
the day specified in such notice unless previously 
a successor shall have been appointed, as 
provided in Section 1109, in which event such 
resignation shall take effect immediately on the 
appointment of such successor. Notwithstanding 
any of the foregoing, no registration of the Trustee 
shall be effective until a successor has been 
appointed. 

Section 11 08 - Removal of Trustee. The 
Trustee shall be removed by the Corporation if at 
any time so requested by an instrument or 
concurrent instruments in writing, filed with the 
Trustee and the Corporation, and signed by the 
holders of a majority in principal amount of the 
Bonds then Outstanding or their attorneys-in-fact 
duly authorized, excluding any Bonds held by or for 
the account of the Corporation. The Corporation 
may remove the Trustee at any time, except during 
the existence of an Event of Default, for such cause 
as shall be determined in the sole discretion of the 
Corporation by filing with the Trustee an instrument 
signed by an Authorized Officer of the Corporation. 

Section 1109 - ADDointment of Successor 
Trustee. (A) In case at any time the Trustee shall 
resign or shall be removed or shall become 

incapable ofacting, or shall be adjudged a bankrupt 
or insolvent, or if a receiver, liquidator or 
conservator of the Trustee, or of its property, shall 
be appointed, or if any public officer shall take 
charge or control of the Trustee, or of its property or 
affairs, the Corporation covenants and agrees that 
it will thereupon appoint a successor Trustee. The 
Corporation shall provide written notice of such 
appointment to the registered owners of the Bonds 
and, if any Bonds are Outstanding in bearer form, 
shall also publish notice of such appointment in an 
Authorized Newspaper, such notice to be given and 
publication to be made within twenty days after 
such appointment. 

(B) If in a proper case no appointment 
of a successor Trustee shall be made pursuant to 
the foregoing provisions of this Section within forty- 
five days after the Trustee shall have given to the 
Corporation written notice, as provided in Section 
1107, or after a vacancy in the office of the Trustee 
shall have occurred by reason of its inability to act. 
the Trustee or the holder of any Bond may apply to 
any court of competent jurisdiction to appoint a 
successor Trustee. Said court may thereupon, 
after such notice, if any, as such court may deem 
proper and prescribe, appoint a successorTrustee. 

(C) Any Trustee appointed under the 
provisions of this Section in succession to the 
Trustee shall be a trust company or bank in good 
standing having the powers of a trust company 
within or outside the State and subject to 
examination by federal or state authority, having a 
capital and surplus aggregating at least Seventy- 
Five Million Dollars ($75,000,000) and acceptable 
to each Credit Enhancement ifthere be such a trust 
company or bank willing and able to accept the 
office on reasonable and customary terms and 
authorized by law to perform all the duties imposed 
upon it by this lndenture. 

Section 1110 - Transfer of Riqhts and 
Property to Successor Trustee. Any successor 
Trustee appointed under this lndenture, shall 
execute, acknowledge and deliver to its 
predecessor Trustee, and also to the Corporation, 
an instrument accepting such appointment, and 
thereupon such successor Trustee, without any 
further act, deed or conveyance, shall become fully 
vested with all moneys, estates, properties, rights, 
powers, duties and obligations ofsuch predecessor 
Trustee, with like effect as if originally named as 
Trustee; but the Trustee ceasing to act shall 
nevertheless, on the request of the Corporation, or 
of the successor Trustee, execute, acknowledge 
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and deliver such instruments of conveyance and 
further assurance and do such other things as may 
reasonable be required for more fully and certainly 
vesting and confining in such successor Trustee 
all the right, title and interest of the predecessor 
Trustee in and to any property held by it under this 
Indenture, and shall pay over, assign and deliverto 
the successor Trustee any money or other property 
subject to the trusts and conditions herein set forth. 
Should any deed, conveyance or instrument in 
writing from the Corporation be required by such 
successor Trustee for more fully and certainly 
vesting in and confirming to such successor 
Trustee any such estates, rights, powers and 
duties, any and all such deeds, conveyances and 
instruments in writing shall, on request, and so far 
as may be authorized by law, be executed. 
acknowledged and delivered by the Corporation. 
Any such successor Trustee shall promptly notify 
the Paying Agents of its appointment as Trustee. 
The Corporation shall pay the expenses ofeffecting 
a transfer under this Section. 

Section 11 11 - Merger or Consolidation. 
Any company into which any Fiduciary may be 
merged or converted or with which it may be 
consolidated or any company resulting from any 
merger, conversion or consolidation towhich itshall 
be a party or any company to which any Fiduciary 
may sell or transfer all or substantially all of its 
corporate trust business, provided such company 
shall be a trust company or bank which is qualified 
to be a successor to such Fiduciary under Section 
11 10 or Section 1 1 13 and shall be authorized by 
law to perform all the duties imposed upon it by this 
Indenture, shall be the successor to such Fiduciary 
without the execution or filing of any paper or the 
performance of any further act, anything herein to 
the contrary notwithstanding. 

Section 11 12 -Adoption of Authentication. 
In case anvofthe Bonds contemolated to be issued 
under thisindenture shall have been authenticated 
but not delivered, any successorTrustee may adopt 
the certificate of authentication of any predecessor 
Trustee so authenticating such Bonds and deliver 
such Bonds so authenticated, and in case any of 
the said Bonds shall not have been authenticated, 
any successor Trustee may authenticate such 
Bonds in the name of the S U C C ~ S S O ~ T N S ~ ~ ~ ,  and in 
all such cases such certificate shall have the full 
force which it is anywhere in said Bonds or in this 
lndenture provided thatthecertificateoftheTrustee 
shall have. 
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Secl~on 11 13 - Resqnalion or Removal of 
the Pavlna Agents and Apponrment of Successors. 
(A) Any Paying Agent may at any time resign and 
be discharged of the duties and obligations created 
by this lndenture by giving at least sixty days' 
written notice to the Corporation and Trustee. Any 
Paying Agent may be removed at any time by an 
instrument filed with such Paying Agent and the 
Trustee and signed by an Authorized Officer of the 
Corporation. Any successor Paying Agent shall be 
appointed by the Corporation and shall be a trust 
company or bank having the powers of a trust 
company, having a capital and surplus aggregating 
at lease Three Million Dollars ($3,000.000), and 
willing and able to accept the office of Paying Agent 
on reasonable and customary terms and authorized 
by law to perform all the duties imposed upon It by 
this lndenture. 

(A) In the event of the resignation or 
removal of any Paying Agent, such Paying Agency 
shall pay over, assign and deliver any moneys held 
by it to its successor, or if there be no successor 
then appointed, to the Trustee until such successor 
be appointed. 

Section 11 14 - Evidence of Signatures of 
Bondholders and Ownership of Bonds. (A) Any 
request, consent or other instrument which this 
lndenture may require or permit to be signed and 
executed by the Bondholders may be in one or 
more instruments of similar tenor, and shall be 
signed or executed by such Bondholders in person 
or by their attorneys appointed in writing. Proof of (i) 
the execution of any such instrument, or of an 
instrument appointing any such attorney, or (ii) the 
holding by any person of the Bonds or coupons 
appertaining thereto shall be sufficient for any 
purpose of this lndenture (except as otherwise 
herein expressly provided) if made in the following 
manner, but the Trustee may nevertheless in its 
discretion require further or other proof in cases 
where it deems the same desirable: 

(1) The fact and date of the 
execution by any Bondholder or his 
attorney of such instrument may be proved 
by the certificate, which need not be 
acknowledged or verified, of an officer of a 
bank or trust company satisfactory to the 
Trustee or of any notary public or other 
o f f i c e r  a u t h o r i z e d  t o  t a k e  
acknowledgments of deeds to be recorded 
in the state in which she purports to act. 
that the person signing such request or 
other instrument acknowledged to him the 



execution thereof, or by an affidavit of a 
witness of such execution, duly sworn to 
before such notary public or other officer. 
The authority of the person or persons 
executing any such instrument on behalf of 
a corporate Bondholder may be 
established without further proof if such 
instrument is signed by a person purporting 
to be the president or a vice president of 
such corporation with a corporate seal 
affixed and attested by a person purporting 
to be its secretary or an assistant 
secretary; 

(2)  The amount of Bonds 
transferable by delivery held by any person 
executing such request or other instrument 
as a Bondholder, and the numbers and 
other identification thereof, and the date of 
his holding such Bonds, may be proved by 
a certificate, which need not be 
acknowledged or verified, satisfactory to 
the Trustee, executed by an officer of a 
trustcompany, bank, financial institution or 
other depository or member of the National 
Association of Securities Dealers. Inc. 
whereversituated, showing that at thedate 
therein mentioned such person exhibited to 
such officer or had on deposit with such 
depository the Bonds described in such 
certificate. Continued ownership after the 
date stated in such certificate may be 
proved by the presentation of such 
certificate if the certificate contains a 
statement by such officer that the 
depository held that Bonds therein referred 
to on the date of the certificate and that 
they will not be surrendered without the 
surrender of the certificate to the 
depository, except with the consent of the 
Trustee, and a certificate of the Trustee, 
which need not be acknowledged or 
verified, that such consent has not been 
given. 

(0) Except in the case of Bonds 
transferable by delivery only, the ownership of 
Bonds and the amount, numbers and other 
identification, and date of holding the same shall be 
proved by the registry books. Any request, consent 
or vote of the owner of any Bond shall bind all 
future owners of such Bond in respect of anything 
done or suffered to be done by the Corporation or 
any Fiduciary in accordance therewith. 
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Section 11 15- Preservation and Inspection 
of Documents. All documents received by any 
Fiduciary under the provisions of this Indenture or 
any Supplemental Indenture shall be retained in its 
possession until six (6) years after the final 
payment of principal of the Bonds becomes due 
and payable and shall be subject at all reasonable 
times to the inspection ofthe Corporation, any other 
Fiduciary and any Bondholder and theiragents and 
their representatives, any of whom may make 
copies thereof. 

Section 11 16 -Administration of Education 
Loan Proqram. The Corporation agrees that the 
Trustee shall have no responsibility whatsoever for 
monitoring, or any other activity, with respect to the 
Corporation's administration of the Education Loan 
Program or the servicing of the Education Loans. 

Section 1117 - Power to Appoint Co- 
Trustee. (A) At any time after an Event of Default, 
if necessary to meet the legal requirements of any 
applicablejurisdiction, theTrustee shall have power 
to appoint one or more co-trustees under this 
Indenture, with such powers as may be provided in 
the instrument of appointment, and to vest in such 
person or persons any property, title, right or power 
deemed necessary or desirable, subject to the 
remaining provisions of this Section. 

(0) Each co-trusteeshall, to theextent 
permitted by applicable law, be appointed subject 
to the following terms: 

(i) The Bonds shall be 
authenticated and delivered solely by the 
Trustee, and all rights, powers, duties and 
obligations hereunder in respect of the 
custody of Investment Securities, cash and 
other personal property held by, or 
required to be deposited or pledged with, 
the Trustee hereunder shall be exercised 
solely by the Trustee. 

(ii) The rights, powers duties and 
obligations hereby conferred or imposed 
upon the Trustee in respect of any property 
covered by such appointment shall be 
conferred or imposed upon and exercised 
or performed by the Trustee or by the 
Trustee and co-trustee jointly, as shall be 
provided in the instrument appointing such 
co-trustee, except to the extent that, under 
any law of any jurisdiction in which any 
particular act or acts are to be performed. 
the Trustee shall be incompetent or 



unqualified to perform such act or acts, in held by them pursuant to this Indenture which are 
which event such rights, powers, duties not required for the payment or redemption of 
and obligations shall be exercised by such Bonds not theretofore surrendered for such 
co-trustee. payment or redemption. 

(iii) The Trustee may at any time. 
by an instrument in writing executed by it. 
accept the resignation of or remove any 
co-trustee appointed under this Section. 

(iv) No power given to any co- 
trustee shall be separately exercised 
hereunder by such co-trustee except with 
the consent in writing of the TNstee, 
anything contained in this Section to the 
contrary notwithstanding. 

(C) Shouldany written instrument from 
the Corporation be required by any co-tmstee so 
appointed for more fully confirming to such co- 
trustee such rights, powers, duties and obligations. 
any and all such instruments shall, on request, be 
executed, acknowledged and delivered by the 
Corporation forthwith. 

(D) The rights, powers and duties of 
the Corporation with respect to any co-trustee shall 
be the same as its rights, powers and duties with 
respect to the Trustee. 

ARTICLE XI1 
MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 1201 - Defeasance. (A) If the 
Corporation shall pay or cause to be paid to the 
holders of the Bonds, the principal and interest and 
Redemption Price, if any, to become due thereon, 
at the times and in the manner stipulated therein 
and in this lndenture, and also shall pay or cause to 
be paid all other sums payable hereunder by the 
Corporation, including any amounts payable to the 
United States, then the pledge of any revenues and 
assets hereby pledged and all other rights granted 
hereby shall, at the election of the Corporation 
(ewdenced by a certifcate of an Author~zed Officer 
filed w~ lh  rne Trustee, slgn fyng the lntenllon of the 
Corporation to discharge all such indebtedness and 
this lndenture and any Supplemental Indenture), 
and notwithstanding that any Bonds shall not have 
been surrendered for payment, be discharged and 
satisfied. In such event, the Trustee shall, upon the 
written request of the Corporation, execute and 
deliver to the Corporation all such instruments as 
may be desirable to evidence such discharge and 
satisfaction and the Fiduciaries shall pay over or 
deliver to the Corporation all moneys or securities 

(B) If funds shall have been set aside 
and shall be held in trust by Fiduciaries for the 
payment of principal, interest and Redemption Price 
(through deposit by the Corporation of funds for 
such payment or redemption or otherwise) at the 
maturity or upon the date upon which such Bonds 
have been duly called for redemption thereof, such 
Bonds shall be deemed to have been paid within 
the meaning and with the effect expressed in 
subsection (A) of this Section. All Outstanding 
Bonds shall, prior to the maturity or redemption 
date thereof, be deemed to have been paid within 
the meaning and with the effect expressed in 
subsection (A) of this Section if (i) in case any of 
said Bonds are to be redeemed on any date priorto 
their maturity, the Corporation shall have given to 
the Tmstee in form satisfactory to it irrevocable 
instructions to publish as provided in Article VI 
notice of redemption on said date of such Bonds, 
(ii) there shall have been deposited with t h e T ~ s t e e  
either funds in an amount which shall be sufficient, 
or Investment Securities which are not subject to 
redemption prior to the dates on which amounts will 
be needed to make payments on the Bonds 
defeased and the principal of and the interest on 
which when due will provide moneys which. 
togetherwith the moneys, if any, deposited with the 
Trustee at the same time, shall be sufficient in the 
opinion of an Accountant delivered to the Trustee. 
to pay when due the principal or Redemption Price. 
if any, and interest due and to become due on said 
Bonds on any date prior to the redemption date or 
maturity date thereof, as the case may be, (iii) in 
the event said Bonds are not by their terms subject 
to redemption within the next succeeding sixty 
days, the Corporation shall have given the Trustee 
in form satisfactory to it irrevocable instructions to 
mail a notice to the holders of such Bonds that the 
deposit required by (ii) above has been made with 
the Trustee and that said Bonds are deemed to 
have been paid in accordance with this Section and 
stating such maturity or redemption date upon 
which moneys are to be available for the payment 
of the principal or Redemption Price, if any, of said 
Bonds and (iv) a Counsel's Opinion stating that all 
conditions precedent to the satisfaction and 
discharge of this lndenture have been complied 
with, the defeasancecomplies with the termsofthis 
Indenture, and the defeasance will not adversely 
affect the tax status of the Bonds. Neither 
Investment Securities ormoneysdepositedwith the 
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T ~ S t e e  pursuant to this Section nor principal or 
interest payments on any such lnvestment 
Securities shall be withdrawn or used for any 
purpose other than, and shall be held in trust for. 
the payment of the principal or Redemption Price. 
if any, of and interest on said Bonds; provided that 
any cash received from such principal or interest 
payments on such lnvestment Securities deposited 
with the Trustee, if not then needed for such 
purpose, shall, to the extent practicable, be 
reinvested in lnvestment Securities maturing at 
times and in amounts sufiicient to pay when due 
the principal or Redemption Price, if any, and 
interest to become due on said Bonds on and prior 
to such redemption date or maturity date thereof, as 
the case may be, and interest earned from such 
reinvestmentsshall be paidoverto the Corporation, 
as received by the Trustee, free and clear of any 
trust, lien or pledge. 

(C) If, through the deposit of moneys 
by the Corporation or otherwise, the Fiduciaries 
shall hold, pursuant to this lndenture, moneys 
sufficient to pay the principal and interest to 
maturity on all Outstanding Bonds or to pay, in the 
case of Bonds in respect of which the Corporation 
shall have taken all action necessary to redeem 
priorto maturity, the Redemption Price and interest 
to such redemption date, then at the written request 
of the Corporation all moneys held by any Paying 
Agent shall be paid over to the Trustee and, 
together with other moneys held by it hereunder, 
shall be held by the Trustee for the payment or 
redemption of Outstanding Bonds. 

(D) Anything in this lndenture to the 
contrary notwithstanding, any moneys held by a 
Fiduciary in trust for the payment and discharge of 
any of the Bonds which remain unclaimed for six 
years afler the date when all of the Bonds have 
become due and payable, either at their stated 
maturity dates or by call for earlier redemption, if 
such moneys were held by the Fiduciary at such 
date, or for six years afler the date of deposit of 
such moneys if deposited with the Fiduciary after 
the said date when all of the Bonds became due 
and payable, shall be repaid by the Fiduciary to the 
Corporation, as its absolute property and free from 
trust, and the Fiduciary shall thereupon be released 
and discharged. 

Section 1202 - Monevs Held for Particular 
Bonds. The amounts held by any Fiduciary for the 
payment of the interest, principal or Redemption 
Price due on any date with respect to particular 
Bonds shall, on and after such date and pending 

such payment, be set aside on its books and held 
in trust by it for the holders of the Bonds entitled 
thereto. If any such amount remains unclaimed for 
a period of six years afler such date, the Trustee 
shall pay over such amount, together with all 
investment earnings thereon and all investment 
earnings on any investment earnings, to the 
Corporation. 

Section 1203 - No Recourse Under 
lndenture or on Bonds. All covenants, stipulations, 
promises, agreements and obligations of the 
Corporation contained in this lndenture shall be 
deemed to be the covenants, stipulation, promises. 
agreements and obligations of the Corporation and 
not of any member, officer or employee of the 
Corporation in his individual capacity, and no 
recourse shall be had for the payment of the 
principal or Redemption Price of or interest on the 
Bonds or for any claim based thereon or on this 
lndenture against any member, officeroremployee 
of the Corporation or any natural person executing 
the Bonds. 

Section 1204 - Notices to Ratinq Aqencies 
and to Credit Enhancers. The Trustee shall give 
prompt notice to the Rating Agencies and any 
Credit Enhancers of the resignation of the Trustee 
or the appointment of any successor Trustee, of 
any amendment to or modification of this lndenture 
or the execution of any Supplemental lndenture or 
when there are no longer any Bonds remaining 
Outstanding. All notices to a Rating Agency or a 
Credit Enhancer hereunder shall be sent by first 
class mail to the address provided to theTrustee by 
such Rating Agency or Credit Enhancer. 

Section 1205 - Conflict. All resolutions or 
parts of resolutions or other proceedings of this 
Corporation in conflict herewith be and the same 
are repealed insofar as such conflict exists. 

Section 1206 - Governinq Law. This 
lndenture and the Bonds shall be construed in 
accordance with, and governed by, the laws of the 
State of Alaska. 

Section 1207 - Effective Date. This 
lndenture shall take effect immediately upon its 
execution. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, ALASKA 
STUDENT LOAN CORPORATION has caused this 
lndenture to be executed by its Executive Officer 
and Zions First National Bank has caused this 
lndenture to be executed by its Assistant Vice 
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President and Trust Officer, all as of the day and 
year first above written. 

ALASKA STUDENT LOAN 
CORPORATION 

BY 
DIANE BARRANS 
Executive Officer 

ZIONS FIRST NATIONAL BANK 

BY 
DAVID W. BATA 
Vice President 
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July 28, 2005 

Members of the Board of Dircctors of 
the Alaska Student Loan Corporation 

Juneau, Alaska 9981 1 

Dcar Members: 

We have examined the Constitution and laws of the State of Alaska and a record of 
proceedings relating to the issuance of $58,250,000 aggregate principal amount of Education Loan 
Rcvcnuc Bonds, Senior 2005 Series A (the "2005 Bonds") of the Alaska Studcnt Loan Corporation 
(the "Corporation"), a public corporation and government instrumentality of thc State of Alaska 
crcatcd by and cxisting under Alaska Statutcs 14.42.100-14.42.990, as amended (the "Act"). 

The Bonds are datcd thc datc hcrcof. The 2005 Bonds will mature as set forth in thc table 
below: 

Due Principal Interest Duc Principal Interest 
Amoont Amount - Rate 

2008 $2.000.000 4.00% 2014 S6.500.000 5.00% 

Tlle Bonds are being issued in fully registered form only. Interest on the Bonds is payable on 
Dccembcr 1,2005, and semiannually thcrcaftcr on June 1 and Dcccmbcr 1 in each year. The Bonds 
are subject to redemption prior to their scheduled maturity as provided in the Indenture (as hereinafter 
defined). 

In conncction with the issuancc of thc Bonds, we have reviewed thc Indcnturc; the tax 
certificate of the Corporation dated the datc hcrcof (the "Tax Ccrtificatc"); certificates of thc 
Corporation, thc Trustee and others; and such other documents, opinions and nmttcrs as we deemcd 
necessary to render the opinions sct forth herein. 
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The opinions expressed herein are based on an analysis of existing laws, regulations, rulings 
and court decisions and cover certain matters not dircctly addressed by such authorities. Such 
opinions may be affectcd by actions taken or omitted or events occurring after the date hcrcof. We 
have not undertaken to determine, or to infornl any person, whether any such actions or events are 
taken or do occur. We disclaim any obligation to update this letter. We have assumed the 
genuineness ofall documents and signatures presented to us (whcthcr as originals or as copies) by any 
parties other than the Corporation and the due and lcgal execution and delivery thereof by any parties 
other than the Corporation. We have not undertaken to verify independently, and have assumed, 
accuracy ofthe factual mattcrs rcprcsentcd, warranted or certified in the documents referred to in the 
preceding paragraph. Furthermore, we have assumed compliance with the covenants and agrcements 
contained in the Indenture and the Tax Certificate, including (without limitation) covenants and 
agreements compliance with which is necessary to assure that future actions, onlissions or events will 
not cause interest on the Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income tax purposes. We 
call attention to the fact that the rights and obligations under the Bonds, the Indenture (as hereinafter 
defined) and the Tax Certificate may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, 
arrangement, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium and other laws relating to or affecting creditors' 
rights, to the application of equitable principles and to the exercise ofjudicial discretion in appropriate 
cases. We express no opinion with respect to any indemnification, contribution, choice oflaw, choice 
of forum or waiver provisions contained in the foregoing documents. Finally, we express no opinion 
as to the Official Statement or othcr offering material relating to the Bonds. 

The Bonds are authorized and issued pursuant to the Act and a resolution of the Corporation 
adoptcd on June 27, 2005, (the "Resolution") and are issued pursuant to an indenture between the 
Corporation and U.S. BankNational Association, as successortrustee, (the "Trustee") datcd as ofJune 
1,2002 (the "Master Indenture") and a supplemental indenture by and between the Corporation and 
the Trustee, dated as of July 1,  2005 (the "Supplen~cntal Indenture" and, togcther with the Master 
Indcnturc, the "Indenture"). 

Based on the foregoing, we are of the opinion that: 

1. Under the Constitution and laws of the State, the Corporation has been duly 
created and organized and validly exists as a public corporation and government 
instrumentality ingood standing under the laws ofthe State ofAlaska, performinganessential 
public function with full corporate power and authority, among other things, to cany out the 
studcnt loan program to be financed in part by thc issuance of the Bonds, to provide funds 
therefor by thc execution of the Indenture and the issuance and sale of the Bonds, and to 
perform its obligations under the tcrms and conditions of the Indcnturc. 

2. The Indenture has bccn duly authorized, exccutcd, and delivered and 
constitutes a legal, valid, and binding instrument enforceable against the Corporation in 
accordance with its terms. 
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3. Tbc Bonds are legal, valid, and binding special, limited obligations of thc 
Corporation for tlic payment of which, in accordance with their tcrnis, the Trust Estate (as 
defined in the Indenture) has bccn legally and validly pledgcd, and the Bonds are entitled to 
thc cqual bcncfit, protection, and security of the provisions, covenants, and agrcenicnts of the 
Indcnturc on a parity with other bonds of the same Class (as such tcrm is defined in the 
Indenture) issued and to bc issued under the Indenture, to the cxtcnt provided therein. 

4. Interest on the Bonds is cxcludcd from gross income ofthe owners thereof for 
federal income tax purposes pursuant to Section 103 of the Code under existing statutes and 
court decisions. It sliould be noted, howcvcr, that such intcrest is a specific prefcrcnce item 
for purposcs ofthc fcdcral alternative minimum taxcs imposed on individuals and corporations 
by tlic Codc. Thc opinion set forth in the first sentence of this paragraph is subject to tlie 
condition that the Corporation comply with certain arbitrage and rcbatc requirements set forth 
in Section 148 of tlie Code that must be satisfied subsequent to thc issuance of the Bonds in 
order that interest thereon bc, or continue to be, excluded from gross income for fcderal 
income tax purposes. The Corporation has covenanted to comply with each such requirement. 
Failure to comply with certain of such requirements may cause the inclusion of interest on the 
Bonds in gross income for federal incomc tax purposcs to be retroactive to the date of issuancc 
of the Bonds. We express no opinion regarding other fcdcral tax consequences arising with 
rcspcct to thc Bonds. 

5 .  Interest on the Bonds is excnipt from taxation by or undcr the authority of the 
State, except for inhcritancc and estate taxes and taxes on transfers by or in contemplation of 
dcath. 

Sincerely, 

WOHLFORTH, JOHNSON, BRECHT, 
CARTLEDGE & BROOKlNG 

Cynthia L. Cartlcdgc 
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APPENDIX V 

THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY 

SAMPLE OFFERING DOCUMENT LANGUAGE 
DESCRIBING BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY ISSUANCE 

(Prepared by DTC - bracketed material may be applicable only to certain issues) 

I. The Depository Trust Co~npany ("DTC"), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the 
securities (the "Securities"). The Securities will be issued as fully-registered securities rcgistered in the name of Cede 8: 
Co. (DTC's partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One 
fully-registered Security certificate will be issued for [each issue ofj the Securities, [each] in the aggregate principal - ~ 

xnlwnt oilany issu?anJ will b:dcpositsd will1 WfC. [If, liow?\sr, thc 3~~rcgatcprincipaI ~nioonr di[any] issu~.csc::ds 
SjOO  nill lion, onc ccrtificnrc will bc issusd with rcspcct to cach SjUO million of principal xnounr, and an add~t~onill 
certificate will be issued with respect to any remaining principal amount of such issue.] 

2.  DTC, the world's largest depository, is a limited-purpose tnlst company organized under the New York 
Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal 
Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaningoftheNew YorkUnifonn Commercial Code, anda "clearing 
agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and 
provides asset servicing for over 2 million issues of US. and non-US. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, 
and money market instruments from over 85 countries that DTC's participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with DTC. 
DTC also facilitates the post-trade scttlemcnt among Dircct Participants of sales and othcr securities transactions in 
deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants' 
accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement ofsecurities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. 
;md non-C.S. ccur i t i ;~  brokcr;iuid dciilers, bnnks, tn~st  co~~~p~~iics.clcnri~~gcorporu~io~is.o~id ;cr tninoth~rorga~i~znr~ons.  
WIT is ;I \vhollv-o\rn;d d ~ d ~ a n .  ufThc Dcnus~torv Tnbt & CIcnrinr. Cornoration I '  DTCC"! VICC. i n  rum. is oaned u .  , ~ ~~~ . ~ - -  
by a number of Direct Participants of DTC and Members of the National Securities Clearing Corporation, Government 
Securities Clearing Corporation, MBS Clearing Corporation, and Emerging Markets Clearing Corporation, (NSCC, GSCC, 
MBSCC, and EMCC, also subsidiaries of DTCC), as well as by theNew York Stock Exchange, Inc., the American Stock 
Exchange LLC, and the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Access to the DTC system is also available to 
others such as both US.  and non-US. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations 
that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly ("Indirect 
Participants"). DTC has Standard & Poor's highest rating: A M .  The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More infornmtion about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com. 

3. Purchases of Securities under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which 
will receive a credit for the Securities on DTC's records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser ofeach Security 
("Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be recordcd on the Direct and Indirect Participants' records. Beneticial Owners will not 
receive written confimiation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written 
confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or 
Indirect Participant through which the Bencficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in 
the Securities are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalfof 
Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates reprcsenting their ownership interests in Securities, 
except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Securities is discontinued. 

4. To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Securitiesdeposited by Direct Participants with DTCare registered 
in the name of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede 6; Co., or such othcr name as may be requested by an authorized 
representative of DTC. The deposit of Securities with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other 
DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownersliip. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Bencficial Owners 
of the Securities; DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Securities are 
credited, which may or may not be the Bencficial Owners. The Direct or Indirect Participants will remain responsible for 
keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customcrs. 



5 .  Conveyance ofnotices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants 
to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will he governed by 
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. 
[Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of 
significant events with respect to thc Securities, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the 
Security documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of Securities may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the 
Securities for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial 
Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be provided 
directly to them.] 

[6 .  Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Securities within an issue are being 
redeemed, DTC's practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be 
redeemed.] 

7. Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to 
Securities unless authorized by a Dircct Participant in accordance with DTC's Procedures. Under its usual procedures, 
DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to Issuer as soon as possible after the rccord date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & 
Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Securities are credited on the rccord date 
(identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

8. Redemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments on the Securities will be made to Cede & 
Co. or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC's practice is to credit Direct 
Participants' accounts upon DTC's receipt of funds and corresponding detail infonilation from Issuer or Agent, on payable 
date inaccordance with their respective holdings shown onDTC's records. Payments by Participantsto Beneficial Owners 
will be governed by standing instructtons and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of 
customers in bearer forni or registered in "street name," and will be tlie responsibiltty of such Participant and not of DTC 
[nor its nominee], Agent, or Issuer, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to 
time. Payment ofredemption proceeds, distributions, and dividend payments to Cede & Co. (orsuch otlier nominee as may 
be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of Issuer or Aqent, disbursement of such - 
payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disburserncnt of such payments to the Beneficial 
Owners shall be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 

[9. A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its Securities purchased or tendered, through its 
Participant, to [TenderiRemarketing) Agent, and shall effect delivery of such Securities by causing the Direct Participant 
to transfer the Participant's interest in the Securities, on DTC's records, to [Tender/Remarketing] Agent. The requirement 
for physical delivery of Securities in connection with an optional tcnderora mandatory purchase will be deemed satisfied 
when the ownership rights in the Securities are transfeGd by Direct Participants on DTC'S records and followed by a 
book-entry credit of tendered Securities to [Tender/Rcmarketing] Agent's DTC account.] 

10. DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Securities at any time by 
giving reasonable notice to Issuer or Agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a succcssor depository is not 
obtained, Security certificates arc required to be printed and delivered. 

11.  The Issuer may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a 
successor securities depository). In that event, Security certificates will be printed and delivered. 

12. The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained from 
sources that Issuer believes to be reliable, but Issuer takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 




